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ADN Telecom Limited Wins Silver Award of
the 11" ICSB National Award for Corporate Governance Excellence, 2023
in the Category of Information and Communication Technology
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The future is shaped by those who
put their effort into something
greater. We thank everyone who has
come up with significant enthusiasm
to make this report happen. You are
the ultimate artists of the greater
picture we are envisioning.

‘To Err Is Human’

In spite of the fact that we attempted
our best to create this presentation
immaculately, we apologize for any
inadvertent divergence.



L ElTER OF
TRANSMITTAL

To

All esteemed Shareholders

Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC)
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and Firms (RJSC)
Dhaka Stock Exchange PLC (DSE)

Chittagong Stock Exchange PLC (CSE)

Subject: Annual Report of ADN Telecom Limited (ADNTEL) for the year ended 30 June 2024.
Dear Sir(s),

We are pleased to enclose a copy of ADNTEL’s Annual Report containing the Directors’ Report along
with the Audited Financial Statements as on 30 June 2024, comprised of Statement of Financial
Position, Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity,
and Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June 2024, along with notes thereto of the
company and its subsidiaries for your kind information and records.

Yours Sincerely,
For ADN Telecom Limited

O

|
Md. Monir Hossain, FCS

Company Secretary
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To view the report online

The objective of this report is to inform our
valued stakeholders about our financial and

operational performances in the financial

year 2023-2024.

It also includes the presentation of our
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business activities, challenges, risks and the

opportunities.

Visit www.adntel.com.bd



NOTICE OF THE
21t ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 215t Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Shareholders of ADN Telecom Limited
(“Company”) will be held on Wednesday 18 December 2024 at 11:00 am (Dhaka Time) through Hybrid System
in combination of physical presence at La Vita Hall, Lakeshore Grand, House: 46, Road: 41, Gulshan 2,
Dhaka-1212 as well as digital platform at the link https://adntel.bdvirtualagm.com to transact the following
businesses:

Agenda

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 30
June 2024 and the Reports of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2. To approve Dividend for the year ended 30 June 2024 as recommended by the Board of Directors.

3. To elect Directors in place of those who shall retire by rotation in accordance with the provisions of

Articles of Association of the Company.

4. To appoint the Statutory Auditors for the year 2024-25 and to fix their remuneration.

5. To appoint the Auditors to provide the certificate on compliance on Corporate Governance Code of BSEC

for the year 2024-25 and to fix their remuneration.

By order of the Board of Directors

Oy

24 November 2024 Md. Monir Hossain, FCS
Dhaka Company Secretary
Note

1.

The Shareholders, whose name appeared in the Depository Register as on the “Record Date” i.e., 17
November 2024, will be eligible to attend/participate and vote in the Annual General Meeting physically
or through the digital platform and to receive dividend.

The Board of Directors of the Company recommended 10% Cash Dividend for the year ended 30 June
2024.

Pursuant to the BSEC Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/208/Admin/81 dated June 20, 2018,
soft copy of the Annual Report 2023-24 will be emailed to respective Shareholders’ email IDs available
in their BO A/C. The Annual Report 2023-24 will also be available in the Company’s website at
www.adntel.com.bd

A shareholder entitled to attend/participate and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint a
proxy on his/her behalf. Copy of the proxy form duly signed and stamped shall be sent to the share office
or through email at investor.relations@adnsl.net not later than 48 hours before the meeting.

The Corporate Shareholders need to send their authorization letter to join the meeting of the Company
at least 48 hours before the commencement of the AGM.
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6. The shareholders can log into the link https://adntel.bdvirtualagm.com by using their BO A/C number
and will be able to submit their questions or comments and vote electronically 24 hours before the
meeting and also during AGM. For any IT related guidance in this regard, Shareholders may contact cell
number +8801777770551.

The concerned Merchant Banks and all Depository Participants (DPs) are requested to provide the
copies of the list of margin clients along with the bank details for entitlement of dividend on or before 15
December 2024 as per the following:

a) Hard copy: Registered mail or courier to Share Office, ADN Telecom Limited,
Red Crescent Concord Tower (19t Floor), 17 Mohakhali C/A, Dhaka-1212.
b)  Soft copy: Email to investor.relations@adnsl.net

In compliance with the Circular No. SEC/CMRRCD/2009-193/154 dated 24 October 2013 issued by
BSEC, no benefit in cash or kind shall be offered to the members during the Annual General Meeting.
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ADN TELECOM LIMITED

Connecting Your World with
c the most reliable partner

ADN Telecom Limited, the flagship company of
- ADN Group, is Bangladesh’s leading, fully
integrated telecommunications service
9 provider, with a strong infrastructure base that
i g supports flawless connectivity. For over a
4 i B decade, ADN Telecom has played a pivotal role
J in connecting people and businesses through
EF!, evolving communication technologies,
'_y — reflecting the nation’s rapid economic growth
and advancements in the telecommunications

industry.

As a premier provider of advanced technology
and communication services, ADN Telecom
serves a broad range of industries, offering
= solutions that meet diverse market needs. With
_ a solid reputation in communications, ADN
@ Telecom is instrumental in building the network
infrastructure that ensures seamless & reliable
connectivity. The company’s robust and
innovative infrastructure is tailored to address
the complex demands of both local and
international markets, delivering cutting-edge

services that exceed customer expectations.

To further its growth and strengthen its position
in the competitive ICT sector, ADN Telecom has
acquired controlling stakes in other companies,
driving vertical integration. Additionally, the
company has invested in four other companies,
& expanding its portfolio and diversifying
ﬂ operations to meet the ever-evolving needs of
the industry. ADN Telecom remains focused on
delivering strong returns to its shareholders and
& upholds rigorous governance practices. By
ensuring transparency and providing
shareholders, including minority stakeholders,
® with access to key information and
decision-making processes, the company
@ fosters trust and engagement. ADN Telecom
@ remains committed to its shareholders while
. also recognizing the contributions of its others
stakeholders, reinforcing its responsibility to the

broader community.




Endorsements That
Strengthen Our Expertise

&

Nationwide
Internet Service
Provider (ISP)

—AE

Nationwide Internet
Protocol Telephony
Service Provider License
(Nationwide IPTSP)

VSAT Hub
Operator License

Frequency 5 GHz,
10.5 GHz &
18 GHz License

r

2.4 & 5.7 GHz
(ISM) Band
Frequency Permission

Google
Cache Server

Facebook
Cache Server

Baishan Cloud
Cache Server

-

Video on Demand
(VoD)/
Streaming Service

ADN WiFi Service

Apps Based

Calling under
IPTSP License

Radio Equipment
Importer and
Vendor Enlistment

BN ADNTEL
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¢ |Internet Service

e Data Service IPVPN (Internet Protocol
Virtual Private Network)

e Multiprotocol Label Switching (MPLS)
¢ International Private Leased Circuit (IPLC)

¢ Internal LAN Connectivity

k- VSAT Connectivity
@

* Surveillance Solution

¢ Video Management System

* Access Control

¢ Vault Security Solution

* Anti-Money Laundering solution

& Drone Solutions
@

* Indoor Wi-Fi Solution

¢ Large Area Wi-Fi Coverage Solution
* Radius Manager Solution for Wi-Fi Network

* Video Conference Solution

* Manged Service Solution
¢ Microsoft 365
* Microsoft Exchange Server

k. Satellite phone Service

Our Commitment

to Business Growth

Data Center

e Hosting Service

e Co-Location Service

e Domain Registration

* Website Hosting

e Mail Hosting

e Public Cloud Service
& Disaster Recovery Service

IP Telephony

e |P PBX Solution
e (Call Center Solution
e SMS Service (A2P SMS)
e SMS Service (P2A SMS)
e Dynamic IVR system
e Voice broadcast system
e Survey system
e PA system
e Conference bridge system
e Call queue system
e Ticketing system
e OTP system
Product verification system

k Service rating system
@

*  Wi-fi Based Indoor loT Solution

» Smart City Solution with loT

* Smart Office Solution

ADNTEL N
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Name of The Company

ADN Telecom Limited

Date Of Incorporation 22 September 2003
Authorized Capital BDT 2,000,000,000
Paid-up Capital BDT 646,516,660
Face Value (Per Share) BDT 10

Listing In Stock Exchange
Dhaka Stock Exchange PLC Chittagong Stock Exchange PLC
Listing year-2019 Listing year-2019
Trading Code-ADNTEL Trading Code-ADNTEL
Scrip Code: 22651 Scrip Code: 24012

Central Depository System

Through CDS the trading of shares started on
6 January 2020

Registered & Corporate Office

Red Crescent Concord Tower (19t Floor)
17 Mohakhali C/A, Dhaka 1212, Bangladesh

Telephone : +880 222 226 1234 Website: www.adntel.com.bd
IP Phone :+880 961 000 8888 E-mail: info@adnsl.net
Fax : +880 222 228 7551

Key Bankers
The City Bank PLC | Eastern Bank PLC

Dutch-Bangla Bank PLC

Statutory Auditors

Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co.
Chartered Accountants.

Corporate Governance Code Compliance Auditors

Ahsan Manzur & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Credit Rating Agency

Emerging Credit Rating Limited

CORPORAE DIRECIORY

Membership

Dhaka Chamber of Commerce and Industry (DCCI)

Internet Service Providers Association of Bangladesh (ISPAB)
Wireless Internet Broadband Association (WIBA)
Bangladesh Association of Software and Information Services (BASIS)
e-Commerce Association of Bangladesh (e-CAB)
Bangladesh Association of Publicly Listed Companies (BAPLC)
Indian Importers Chambers of Commerce & Industry (IICCI)
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Asif Mahmood Wagar Ahmad Choudhury
Chairman Director

Md. Moinul Islam Md. Maruf

Director Independent Director

Md. Mahfuz Ali Sohel Henry Hilton

Director Managing Director

Audit Committee Nomination & Remuneration

Committee (NRC)
Md. Maruf Md. Maruf
Chairman Chairman
Md. Moinul Islam Md. Moinul Islam
Member Member
Wagar Ahmad Choudhury Md. Mahfuz Ali Sohel
Member Member

Shahriar Akbar Chowdhury

Adviser to the Board of Directors

Head Of Internal Audit - . . .
& Compliance Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Md. Abul Kashem Mohammad Nazim Uddin, FCA Md. Monir Hossain, FCS

Note:

Major General Golam Mohammad, SUP, awc, psc (Retd), one of the Independent Directors of the Company, has resigned
from the Board with effect from 10 November 2024. As the count of independent directors of the company has
dropped below 2, the Company intend to appoint a qualified candidate to fill the vacancy within 90 days following the
resignation of Mr. Golam Mohammad in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code of BSEC.

ADNTEL
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VISION

Delivering innovative and delightful customer experience
through passion, commitment and technology for a
brighter tomorrow.

» Captivate customers through constant delivery of high quality
services.

* Provide technical innovations by implementing next generation
technologies and network advancement in services and operations
for the benefit of customers.

» Provide a safe, challenging and rewarding environment for our
employees.

* Be environment friendly.

» Be profitable and successful in business.

ALUES

* Achievement
* Respect
» Customer Satisfaction

B8 ADNTEL
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STRENGTH

« Our business solutions are born from a deep understanding of
customer needs and our ability to develop products that cater to
their key priorities, which include enhancing customer experience,
improving operational efficiency, and ensuring financial growth.

» Strong Management with an excellent track record.

» Leading ISPs in Bangladesh to have a diverse access network of
fiber, wireless and satellite.

» Reliable and responsive network and service delivery.
 Largest provider of international MPLS and IPLC service.
» Strong relationship with NTTNs, ITCs, IIGs, ICXs and IGWSs.

* Alliance with Singtel, Orange Business Services, TATA
Communications, Bharti Airtel, among others.

» Nationwide wireless coverage, including remote areas without
fiber-based infrastructure.

* Remarkable work experience in global arena.

ADNTEL HEN
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HISTORY

Awarded Nationwide
Internet Service
Provider (ISP) license.

Awarded 18 GHz
frequency.

Incorporated as
Advanced Data
Networks System
Limited.

Alliance with
Singtel.

Alliance with OBS
(Orange Business
Awarded Services).
ISO 9001:2008

certification.

Alliance with TATA
Communication.

Awarded Internet
Protocol Telephony
Service Provider

(IPTSP) license. !

Rebranded as
ADN Telecom Limited.

Converted to Public
Limited Company.

Awarded 5.4 GHz
band frequency.

Alliance with
Bharti Airtel.

Awarded DDCSP
license and 3.5 GHz
band frequency.

B ADNTEL
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Awarded 10.5 GHz
frequency.




Launched nationwide
B2C (retail) internet
services under the
brand of “Udoy”

Commencement
of Digital Business
unit ADN DigiNet.
IPO approval &
listing in
DSE & CSE. Strategically expanding
Road show vertical acquisition in
for IPO. ADN International Gateway
Footprint in Global A
prena serving UN. | JELIng o edsteeh troush
. peacekeeping
Started trading mission
in DSE & CSE. Entering the world of Digital

Media and Infotainment

IPO Bidding

approval. Equity participation in the online
ticketing platform, SHOHOZ

Awarded D-U-N-S certification

A Legacy of Striving for Excellence

MILESTONES

ADNTEL
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COMMENCEMENT
OF BUSINESS

SEPTEMBER 2003 |

NUMBER OF
CIRCUITS
90,000+

b
4
NUMBER NUMBER OF
OF CLIENTS EMPLOYEES
40,000+ 550+
BUSINESS & STOCK
MARKET INFORMATION
NUMBER OF IS0 9001: 2015
REGIONAL HUBS NUMBER OF POPS & D-U-N-S
9 600+ CERTIFICATION

NUMBER OF 64 DISTRICTS

REGIONAL 450+ UPAZILAS
OFFICES 6 NATIONWIDE
NETWORK COVERAGE

ACHIEVED
INTERNATIONAL
FINANCE AWARD
2019

ICSB AWARD
GOLD-2022
SILVER-2023

Free float shareholding of the Company as on 30 June 2024:

1. Total Outstanding Securities

a. Securities held by Sponsors/Directors
b. Securities held by Government

c. Strategic stakes by private corporate bodies/individuals (any holding more than
5% held by an individual/company considered as strategic)

LESS

d. Securities held by associate companies (cross holdings)
e. Any other locked-in securities

Total Free Float Securities (1-2)
Number of Sponsors

-s in respect of total securities
BEN ADNTEL
Annual Report 2024

ACHIEVED MASTER
BRAND AWARD BY
HBO WORLD CONGRESS
2019 and 2020

24/1
CUSTOMER SERVICE

{ 116615

64,651,666

27,682,334

27,682,334
36,969,332
6

57.19



GENERAL INFORMATION

s

Authorized Capital  Issued and fully Paid-up Capital  Face Value per share  Class of Share

BDT 2,000 Million BDT 646.52 Million BDT 10 Ordinary Share
Y Voting Rights One vote per Ordinary Share )

STOCK EXCHANGES LISTING

The shares of the Company is listed with both

Dhaka Stock Exchange PLC and Chittagong Stock Exchange PLC.

Debut Trading Date Trading Code DSE Scrip Code CSE Scrip Code
06 January 2020 ADNTEL 22651 24012

DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES

The Company’s shares are traded in dematerialized form and are available
General Public  for trading with the Central Depository Bangladesh Limited (CDBL). The
36.66% shareholders can hold the Company’s shares with any of the depository
participants, registered with the CDBL. ISIN for the Company’s shares is
= BDO651ADNTLS.

Sponsors / Institute
Director SHAREHOLDER SERVICES
If you have any queries relating to your shareholding and dividend, please
42.81% contact at +880 1777 770 324
| 1.99% or mail to Share Office at investor.relations@adnsl.net
0% Forei Market Price Per Share in BDT as on 30 June 2024
‘ oretgn Particulars 30 June 2024
By category of holders as Highest during the year 152.70
on 30 June 2024 Government Lowest during the year 77.80
Average during the year 115.25

Total market capitalization (as on 30 June 2024) BDT 6406.98 million

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING
By number of shares held as on 30 June 2024

Highest
during the year

Category
(By number
of shares)

0-5,000
5,001-50,000
50,001-200,000
200,001-500,000
500,001-1,000,000
Total

1,000,001-64,651,666

Number of
47312 Shareholders

~
(o))
(o))
—_
jury

o
=
59
S5
7 0)
£s
o
]

Number of
Shares

Market Price Per
Share in BDT as on
30 June 2024

ADNTEL HEN
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4,252,448
36,498,457

o
<
L0
]
n
2
~

7,363,909
7,938,380

3.9

(@)

% 11.39% 12.28% 9.35% 6.58% 56.45% 100% ;/ohgies



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS OF LAST FIVE YEARS

(Million in BDT)
Particulars 2024 | 2023 | 2022 | 2021 | 2020
Financial Performance
Net Revenue 1,429.59 1,344.26 1,154.92 1,141.04 1,129.62
Operating Profit 230.58 330.41 201.14 196.04 165.03
Net Profit Before Tax 208.19 322.79 191.74 189.69 156.62
Net Profit After Tax 144.30 258.55 167.63 165.86 161.47
Financial Position
Paid-up Capital 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 | 2,000.00 2,000.00
Total Equity 2,022.00 1,974.68 1,781.79 | 1,678.81 1,633.53
Total Assets 3,087.43 2,746.21 2,555.30 | 2,337.29 2,233.63
Total Liabilities 1,065.41 771.52 773.50 658.48 600.10
Total Current Assets 1,169.73 1,265.61 1,198.27 | 1,100.15 1,090.59
Total Current Liabilities 516.00 420.64 497.27 455.62 416.64
Non-Current Assets 1,917.69 1,480.60 1,357.03 | 1,237.14 1,143.04
Non-Current Liabilities 549.43 350.89 276.24 202.87 183.46
Cash Flows
Net Cash generated from Operating Activities 333.13 157.63 212.02 135.85 180.52
Net Cash used in Investing Activities (532.26) (232.36) (251.87) | (147.36) (274.37)
Net Cash used in Financing Activities 135.65 (54.63) 55.39 (107.14) 441.56
Particulars 2024 | 2023 | 2022 | 2021 | 2020
Ordinary share information:
Ordinary Shares Outstanding (in million) 646.52 646.52 646.52 646.52 646.52
Face Value per Share (BDT) 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00
Net Asset Value (NAV) Per Share (BDT) 31.28 30.54 27.56 25.97 25.27
Earnings Per Share (EPS) (BDT) 2.23 4.00 2.59 2.57 2.50
Net operating cash flow per share (NOCFPS) (BDT) 5.15 2.44 3.28 2.10 2.79
, \
1600 !
1400 |
1200
1000 |
800 : E E E g !
600
400
200 :
0.
\_ 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
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VALUE ADDED STATEMENT

Particulars

Net Revenue

A
1

2023-2024 2022-2023 |
mount in BDT % Amount in BDT % \
429,585,594 1,344,256,212

Less: Cost of networks and services

655,616,448 514,334,136

Value added 773,969,146 100% 829,922,076 100%
Applications
Government 119,835,323 15.48% 104,767,808 | 12.62%
Employee benefits 342,910,548 44.31% 329,087,940 | 39.65%

Providers of

finance:

Shareholders

96,977,499 12.53% 64,651,666 7.79%

Financial Institutions

27,664,911 3.57% 10,749,783 1.30%

Value reinve

sted and retained:

Depreciation and amortization

139,257,290 17.99% 126,761,434 | 15.27%

Retained profit

47,323,575 6.11% 193,903,445 | 23.36%

Total

773,969,146 100% 829,922,076 100%

VALUE ADD

ED STATEMENT

3.759

Government

Employee Benefits
Shareholders

Financial Institutions
Depreciation and amortization
Retained profit

VALUE ADDED STATEMENT

39.65% 15.27%

1.309

Government

Employee Benefits
Shareholders

Financial Institutions
Depreciation and amortization
Retained profit
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We stay on the

cutting edge of our
industry by consistently
adopting emerging
technologies and
adapting to evolving
market trends

ASIF MAHMOOD

Chairman
ADN Telecom Limited




CHAIRMAN’S

Distinguished Shareholders, Members of the Board
of Directors, and all other Stakeholders welcome to
your company's 215t Annual General Meeting.

Dear Shareholders,

It is with immense pleasure and gratitude that |
communicate with you today. Our collective efforts,
shared values, and the unwavering commitment of
every member of this remarkable team have shaped
your company's vision. The year 2024 marks a
significant milestone for Bangladesh.

As | convey my message to you, the world has been
shaken by proliferation of generative Al and 4IR.
Notwithstanding the anxiety regarding its long -term
repercussions on human emotions and employment,
it is being increasingly admitted that Al has vast
potential for a better world if developed and applied
with wisdom, responsibility and acumen.

While ADN Telecom carries out its activities, it
remains aware that ICT can foster progress towards
implementation of each of the seventeen (17) goals
of the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals
and our activities. Through our efforts, we have
substantially contributed to the national strategy of
expanding digitalization of the various sectors of the
country.

As a leading provider of telecommunication services
and digital connectivity in Bangladesh, we have
gained prominence in delivering innovative,
customized, and affordable solutions to corporate
clients. With the significant rise in internet
penetration at the retail level in recent years, we
have ventured into the retail internet market seeking
to capture a decent share of this segment of the ISP
market. Our commitment to empowering the people
of Bangladesh through cutting-edge telecom and
digital connectivity services remains solid. To further
this mission, we are expanding our business by
launching new operations while continuing to
strengthen our existing ones.

ADN Telecom has been in a positive track since its
inception and 2023-24 has been no exception. In
2023-24, we placed greater emphasis on
diversification of our business to keep pace with
rapidly evolving technological advances globally and
in Bangladesh. In a world of constant shifts and
challenges, and the rapid adoption of new and
disruptive technologies, we have redefined our
strategy to capitalize on the opportunities presented
by this tech- intensive era. Our approach is twofold:
to enhance operational and financial performance,

. Message

thereby increasing shareholder value, and to play a
significant role in the national efforts for the
economic and social upliftment of the people of
Bangladesh. ADN Telecom’s revenue in the year
under review was impressive, despite facing some
headwinds.

However, before going further, | would like to thank
our immediate past Board member Mr. Khondkar
Atique-e-Rabbani, FCA. We are truly grateful for the
enduring impact his insights, leadership, and
dedication have had on our mission.

Spirit & Prospects

Amidst numerous external challenges, we constantly
endeavor to uncover opportunities for growth and
demonstrated remarkable resilience—a testament to
the dedication and agility of ADNTEL's outstanding
team. Their unwavering commitment has been the
driving force behind our confidence in overcoming
obstacles and exploring new horizons.

Future-ready

Innovation forms the foundation of our success. We
stay on the cutting edge of our industry by
consistently adopting emerging technologies and
adapting to evolving market trends. Our dedication
to research and development fuels our ability to
create transformative solutions that tackle local and
global challenges. Collaboration is key to our
strategy, and we will strengthen our partnerships
with local and international organizations to ensure
steady growth and achieve impactful outcomes.

Business Strategy

ADN Telecom’s persistent desire for achieving new
heights in the industry has driven it to adopt
diversification and expansion schemes which are
expected to solidify its operational and financial
position in the long run. Our resolute commitment to
technology and understanding our customers'
evolving needs ensures that we stay ahead of the
curve.

ADN has initiated a long-term strategic investment
plan, including taking controlling stakes in some
industries and acquiring land in various good
locations for data centers and warehouses, investing
in a high-tech park, and constructing a
state-of-the-art high-rise building on our land.

Forward guidance

As we look ahead, we are appropriately positioned to
make best use of the opportunities arising out of the
thrust on digital progression. We are also determined

ADNTEL
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to stay functionally spirited and financially sound. We
are confident of surmounting the challenges which
we will face in our quest for success. However, we are
self-assured in our ability to adapt and succeed in the
changing conditions. Our focus remains on our
long-term strategy, and we are dedicated to
delivering value to our shareholders.

Despite numerous challenging circumstances, ADN
Telecom has achieved steady and positive financial
growth. The company remains committed to
protecting shareholder interests while actively
pursuing strategic business expansion. As you are
already aware, we initially secured long-term leases
at Sylhet Hi-Tech Park, followed by Kaliakair Hi-Tech
Park for an advanced manufacturing facility. This
approach reinforces ADN Telecom's strong vision
and financial stability, positioning the company for
sustained, long-term growth and diverse market
opportunities.

Thanks and Gratitude

| reserve my profound gratitude for the members of
the Board of Directors of ADN Telecom Limited for
their unconditional support, guidance and wise
counsel to the company from time to time.

In furtherance of the company’s business with his
insights and leadership. Finally, | would like to
express my deep gratitude to our esteemed
shareholders. Your continued confidence in us has

3

.)))
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been instrumental in our success. | also want to
thank our valued business partners for their
unceasing contributions to the company’s good
standing.

Thanks to Team ADN Telecom, whose collective
effort and passion have driven our transformative
journey. Despite a challenging year, they delivered
notable results, demonstrating agility and resilience
in the face of new challenges while embracing new
realities to meet stakeholder expectations.

Together, we are shaping a future that transcends
business success, contributing to a sustainable and
brighter tomorrow for all.

Thank you once again.

Sincerely,

1

Asif Mahmood
Chairman
ADN Telecom Limited




HENRY HILTON

MANAGEMENT

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF

BUSINESS FROM

Managing Director’s Desk

ADN Telecom’s esteemed shareholders, Honorable Chairman and
other Directors of the Board

ADN Telecom has continued to prosper in its business and operations
domestically and internationally to preserve its dominant position in ISP
industry. Appropriate and forward -looking business strategy, urge for
innovation, competence and commitment of the employees have
bolstered ADN Telecom Limited’s position in the industry in which it
operates. It creates enabling conditions for its clients to comprehend
the various dimensions of digitization. ADN Telecom Limited performs a
vital role in the digital transformation of Bangladesh.

The basic values of our business and operations are undeniably aligned
with the interests our users and with our shareholders. We seek to
create and maintain a congenial and supportive working environment in
our activities paving the way for our employees to deliver their
respective best in any situation which, we believe, strengthens ADN
Telecom Limited’s operational and financial viability.

As is case with any business venture, ADN Telecom Limited must
confront challenges in its operations. ADN Telecom Limited is always
well — prepared, and is equipped with the necessary skills, to overcome
these challenges to move forward strongly.

ADN Telecom is cognizant of swift development and innovation in
technology and ICT sector world- wide. The recent trends in new
technologies are redefining the fundamental elements of the digital age:
granularity, speed and scale. At the same time, the magnitude of
changes in digital parameters such as in computing power, bandwidth
and analytical sophistication has ushered new dimensions for the better.
For example, the evolution of cloud and 5G exponentially increases
compute power and network speed. ADN Telecom has the necessary
infrastructure and competence to adopt suitable strategies keeping in
view Bangladesh context.

Government’s digital policy and strategy and the private sector’s
aptitude has a big and strong say on digital progression, enlargement
and structure of the ICT industry and ISP industry in the country. ADN
Telecom’s activity and performance is shaped by these factors at the
national level.

Esteemed shareholders,

The ISP industry overall has been encountering some fundamental
challenges as a consequence of lack of optimal coordination in
implementation of policy decisions at the level of various stake holders
which adversely impacted the operational and business performance of
the ISP industries in different degrees. Notwithstanding this
unfavourable situation, your company, ADN Limited’s business and
financial performance was notable when compared with the industry
trend. ADN Telecom took appropriate steps at the right time to protect
the interest of its shareholders and other stakeholders.
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Total revenue of ADN Telecom was BDT 1,429.59
million in FY 2023-24 as compared to total revenue
of BDT 1,344.25 million in FY 2022-2023. Gross profit
and operating profit were BDT 541.57 million and BDT
230.57 million respectively in FY 2023-24. In the
previous FY, gross profit and operating profit were

BDT 618.09 million and BDT 330.41 million
respectively. Cost of Goods Sold in FY 2023-2024
was BDT 888.01 million being 62% of total revenue,
whereas it was BDT 726.1 million in FY 2022-23 being
54% of total revenue. Total comprehensive income
stood at BDT 144.30 million in FY 2023- 24 as against
that of BDT 258.56 million in the last FY. Earnings Per
Share (EPS) was BDT 2.23 in FY 2023-24 as compared
to EPS of BDT 4.00 in FY 2022-2023. Net Operating
Cash Flow Per Share increased BDT 5.15 in
2023-2024 from BDT 2.44 in 2022-23.

ADN Telecom has adopted the strategy of
diversifying its business with a view to steadying its
viability by acquiring controlling stakes in four
companies and varying extent of stakes in four other
companies. It may take some time before the benefits
of acquisition is visible. We earnestly hope that as
prudent shareholders, you will bear with us and allow
us adequate time to prove the justification of our
policy shift.

ADN Telecom’s current approach seeks to enhance
company value as well as to enhance the company
value over time. The core element of our vision is to
establish a sustainable company that is relevant to
the aspirations of its clients, generate handsome
returns for its shareholders, create opportunities for
its employees and generate long term value for its
shareholders. We will continue to refine and
repurpose our design and objective to retain our
dominant foothold in the industry.

Accounting Policies and estimation for
preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements of ADN Telecom Limited for
the fiscal year 2023-2024 has been prepared on a
going concern basis under the under historical cost
convention in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). The
disclosures of information and statutory data made in
the Report meet the requirements of Securities and
Exchange Rules, 2020 and the applicable guidelines
of BSEC regulations.

Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimate of
Financial Statements

ADN Telecom Limited has exercised consistency in
application of financial statements. However, as ADN
Telecom Limited has subsidiary companies, it also
complied with the IAS 27 and applicable provisions of
Companies Act, 1994, relating to consolidated and
separate financial statements.

The accounting policies and estimation of financial
statements are described in the notes 2.00 of the
financial statement of the company.

Comparative analysis of Financial Performance
The key operating and financial performances of the
company for the last 5 years are annexed on page
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no. 20 of this annual report.

Global Economy

Global GDP growth in 2023 was expected to be 3.3
percent with the Advanced Economies achieving GDP
growth rate of 1.7 percent. Emerging Market and
Developing Economies are likely to attain GDP growth
of 4.4 percent in 2023 with Emerging and Developing
Asia growing at 5.7 percent. Financial conditions
showed improvements. World trade merchandise
volume fell by 1.2 percent in 2023. The US dollar
value of world merchandise trade declined by 5 per
cent in 2023 to US$ 24.01 trillion. Headline inflation
globally was likely to drop to 7 per cent in 2023 from
8.7 per cent in 2022.

Contradicting apprehensions, the global economy
averted recession. Geopolitical stress, trade
fragmentation, persistence of higher interest rates
and adverse climatic conditions were the most
debated topics in the year.

Globally spending on overall IT,Data Center Systems,
Devices, Software, IT services, Communication
Services) is expected to be 5.26 trillion in 2024 as
compared to that of 4.90 trillion in 2023, an increase
of 7.5 percent. World-wide spending on IT services
alone is likely to increase from 1.50 trillion in 2023 to
1.61 trillion in 2024.

Bangladesh Economy

Bangladesh has continued to show resilience in
economic front. According to provisional estimate of
Bangladesh Bureau of Statistics ( BBS), GDP at
constant price is expected to increase by 5.82
percentin FY 2023-24 as against GDP growth of 5.78
percent at constant price in FY 2022-23. Per capita
GDP is estimated to be US $ 2675 in FY 2023-2024
as compared to per capita GDP of US$ 2643 in FY
2022-2023. Eruption of war in Ukraine in February,
2022 caused supply chain uncertainties for
foodgrains, fertiliser and energy which triggered
inflation in most countries of the world including
Bangladesh. The rate of inflation which hovered
around 6 percent for almost a decade escalated to
9.02 percent in FY 2022-23. Under the
circumstances, the Bangladesh Bank (BB) in its
Monetary Policy Statements, declared inflation
control as the prime concern and resorted to
contractionary monetary policy. BB raised the policy
rate, i.e. over -night Repo Rate from 7.75 percent to 8
percent in April, 2024 and from 8 percent to 8.50
percent in May, 2024. At the same time, BB pursued
prudence in liquidity management to rein in inflation.
Export earnings maintained affirmative trend.
Earnings from exports rose to US$ 43,554.78 million
in July-March ,2024 period by registering an increase
by 4.39 percent compared to same period of 2023.
Value of imports (C and F) in the July-March period,
2024 stood at US$ 49,217 million which was 15.54
percent less than the amount in the same period of
2023. The decline in value of imports can be ascribed
largely to various measures taken by government
and the Bangladesh Bank to curtail imports of
unproductive products. In July-March, 2024 period,
total remittances went up by 6.48 percent to reach
US$ 17,074.24 million.



(Ref: World Economic Outlook, July, 2024,
International Monetary Fund, Global Economic
Prospects, June, 2024, World Bank Group,

Gartner-July 16, 2024, Bangladesh Economic Review,
2024).

Risk and Concern

The risk factors and the management of these factors
are set out on the Note No. 41 to 44 of the Audited
Financial Statements of the company.

Comparison of financial performance with the peer industry scenario

Details ADNTEL AAMRANET AGNISYSL BDCOM

FY 2023 FY 2023 FY 2023 FY 2023

Net Revenue (BDT in Million) 1,344.26 1,274.17 570.17 713.42
Gross Profit (BDT in Million) 617.26 469.99 195.48 393.58
Net Profit Before Tax (BDT in Million) 322.80 234.96 89.41 103.77
Net Profit After Tax (BDT in Million) 258.56 225.67 81.80 74.55
Total Current Assets (BDT in Million) 1343,20 1,147.99 772.83 730.56
Total Assets (BDT in Million) 2,775.55 3,236.43 1,370.96 1,196.28
Total Equity (BDT in Million) 1,974.68 2,362.56 1,157.30 916.85
Total Current Liabilities (BDT in Million) 534.75 418.18 182.94 247.57
Net Operating Cash Flow (BDT in Million) 163.50 382.33 100.16 83.36
Net Asset Value (NAV) Per Share (BDT) 30.54 38.11 15.95 16.06
EPS (BDT) 4.00 3.64 1.13 1.31
NOCFPS (BDT) 2.53 6.17 1.38 1.46

*Financial information of peer companies is based on the data available on their website.

Future Plan

One of the central planks of ADN Telecom’s business
operations is its endeavour to preserve and bolster
its robust position in the ISP industry. Udoy, ADN
Telecom’s retail internet business, has made
commendable progress in a short span of time. Uday
has been able to capture niche in the market due to
its service quality and efficient customer care. As
stated earlier in this report, ADN Telecom has
embarked upon diversification, chiefly vertical
diversification, to implement a new business model
which is expected to benefit the shareholders and
other stakeholders in the future.

We have been allotted plot in Sylhet & Kaliakair
Hi-Tech Park where we plan to develop high tech
facility which, on the one hand will enable ADN to
manufacture tech products for the broad market and
on the other hand, deliver products for backward
linkage to support its existing businesses resulting in
value addition in the long haul. Keeping in view future
expansion opportunities, ADN Telecom has acquired
lands in Gazipur, near Dhaka, which is likely to render
infrastructural advantages for future business
enlargement.

Recognition and thanks

As an ISP company, the activities of ADN Telecom
Limited is principally customer-centric and has some
elements of sophistication which requires dedicated
and sophisticated output by our employees. The
employees of ADN Telecom are cognizant of this
critical aspect and always endeavour to deliver the
best performance and service to uphold the image of
ADN Telecom as one of the best ISP companies in
Bangladesh. ADN Telecom acknowledges the vital
and critical roles played by its officers and staff of all
shades in the robust business performance of the
company.

ADN Telecom readily put on record it's deep
appreciation of the unwavering support given by its
esteemed shareholders. ADN Telecom strongly
believes that shareholders’ backing has been
conducive to its business reputation. In this
perspective, we seize the opportunity to affirm that
we will be assiduous in our efforts to attain our
coveted goal of being the leader in ICT industry.

Sincerely

oy bty

Henry Hilton
Managing Director
ADN Telecom Limited
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From the left
Md. Moinul Islam, Asif Mahmood, Md. Mahfuz Ali Sohel




From the left
Henry Hilton, Wagar Ahmad Choudhury, Md. Maruf



Asif Mahmood

Chairman

Mr. Asif Mahmood, Founder and Chairman of ADN Group
Companies, is a forward-thinking tech leader,
accomplished  entrepreneur, and  visionary in
Bangladesh's IT and telecommunications sector. His
magnetic personality, leadership, and motivational skills
inspire the ADN Family to reach their full potential. Under
his guidance, ADN Telecom Limited, the flagship company
of ADN Group, has grown into one of Bangladesh's largest
IT and telecommunications service providers.

With a distinguished career spanning over 30 years, Asif
Mahmood has contributed significantly to the growth and
development of various industries, particularly
technology-based industries. As the founder and
Chairman of ADN Group, a conglomerate encompassing
business in telecom, IT, and ICT his entrepreneurial
prowess and commitment to innovation have enabled him
to build successful ventures and achieve global
recognition. His  forward-thinking approach and
entrepreneurial acumen have been pivotal in advancing
the ICT industry.

His relentless quest for creativity, path-breaking ideas,
and his urge for good governance cultivated a culture of
excellence within ADN Group.

Mr.  Mahmood's contributions to employment are
substantial, having created direct job opportunities for
more than a thousand people, positively impacting their
families. His magnetic personality and motivational skills
inspire his employees to embrace change and pursue
groundbreaking ideas.

Mr. Mahmood's pioneering efforts in transforming the
telecommunications sector have attracted global
technology giants such as Singtel, TATA, Orange, Cisco
Systems, Sun Microsystems, and Oracle Corporation to
invest in Bangladesh.

His persistent efforts for the technological modernization
of Bangladesh have positioned the country as a regional
hub for IT and telecommunications services. Because of
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his profound knowledge on, and involvement with, ICT and
Technological industries, Mr. Asif Mahmood’s opinion and
views contribute positively to the formulation of
pragmatic policies and strategies for the advancement of
the ICT and Technological sectors.

Mr. Mahmood's strategic acuity, business insights, and
ability to transform startups into market leaders
underscore his exceptional business acumen. Through
ADN Group, he has demonstrated versatility and an
unwavering commitment to continuous growth across the
telecom and IT sectors.

Mr. Asif Mahmood is the founder member of Wireless
Internet  Broadband Association (WIBA) and the
Bangladesh Association of Contact Center & Outsourcing
(BACCO). He also has a strong tie-up with the Dhaka
Chamber of Commerce & Industry (DCCI), Korea
Bangladesh Chamber of Commerce and Industry (KBCCI),
and the Indian Importers Chambers of Commerce &
Industry (IICCI). He is currently the Chairman of ADN
Telecom Limited, ADN Technologies Limited, Tech Valley
Networks Limited, InGen Technology Limited, Advance
Technology Computers Limited. ADN International
Gateway Limited, bdnews24 Publishing Limited, ADN
EduServices Limited, BASE Limited, ADN DigiNet Limited,
InGen Industries Limited, ADCOR International Limited,
SOS Developments Limited and ADN Media Limited. He is
also the Managing Director of My Tel Limited and SEAF
Ventures Management and the Director of Tech Valley
Computers Limited and Greenworld Solutions Limited.
Additionally, he is the proprietor of AMBA International. He
is a former Director of Eastern Bank Limited.

Mr. Asif Mahmood is deeply committed to philanthropic
endeavors and social welfare initiatives. He holds
prestigious positions in organization’s and is the Chairman
of the Board of Trustees of Goodheal Trust and Centre for
Media & Development Trust. He actively contributes to
improving healthcare services and fostering media
capacity building within Bangladesh.

Mr. Mahmood’s engagement with social development
services demonstrates his passion for humanitarian
causes. He is an enthusiastic member of Dhaka Club
Limited, Army Golf Club, Uttara Club Limited, Gulshan
North Club Limited, and Gregorian Alumni Club Limited.

Mr. Asif Mahmood has a rich educational background. He
earned his BSc in Engineering from the Mechanical
Department at the National Institute of Technology (NIT),
Durgapur, India. He actively follows global and national
technological advancements and industry trends,
constantly seeking knowledge and opportunities.
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Md. Moinul Islam

Director
Member- Audit Committee
Member- Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)

Mr. Md. Moinul Islam is the Founder Director of ADN
Telecom Limited and has over 32 years of experience in
the technology industry. Mr. Islam is currently the
Chairman of Tech Valley Distributions Ltd. and Tech Valley
Systems Ltd. He is the Managing Director of Tech Valley
Computers Ltd. and a Director of Advance Technology
Computers Ltd. Mr. Islam holds a M.Sc. in Applied Physics
& Electronics from Dhaka University. He was the key
person in achieving Zero TAX on ICT products among
Seven members BCS Delegation in 1998, as well as in
formulating the ICT Policy of Bangladesh from FBCCI- the
first ever policy work in the history of FBCCI. He is the
former Vice President of Bangladesh Computer Samity
and a current member of Dhaka Chamber of Commerce &
Industry (DCCI). He is a lifetime member of Ex-Adamjee
Cantonment Students Association and was a General
Body Member (Term 2012-2014) of The Federation of

Bangladesh Chambers of Commerce and Industry (FBCCI).

Md. Mahfuz Ali Sohel

Director
Member- Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)

Mr. Md. Mahfuz Ali Sohel is the Founder Director of ADN
Telecom Limited. Among other positions, he is currently
the Chairman of Tech Valley Solutions Limited, Tech Valley
Computers Limited and Unus Technology Limited, while
being the Managing Director of Valley Power Solutions
Limited and Nodi Agro Industries Limited. Presently, he is
also a Director in Advance Technology Computers
Limited. Besides this, he is the Board of Trustee of
University of Skill Enrichment and Technology. Mr. Ali has
an M.Sc. in Applied Physics & Electronics from Dhaka
University and has over 36 years of experience in
different fields. Due to his vast experience and knowledge
on various fields of business he is a Member of
Bangladesh Computer Samity (BCS), Dhaka Chamber of
Commerce & Industry (DCCI), Dhaka Army Golf Club,
Gulshan Society, Banani Society, Dhanmondi Society and
Dhanmondi Club Limited. He is Registered Graduate of
University of Dhaka. He is also life member of APECE-EEE
Alumni  Association and Dhaka University Alumni
Association. Presently, he is the President of APECE-EEE
Alumni Association, Dhaka University.
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Wagar Ahmad Choudhury

Director
Member- Audit Committee

Mr. Wagar Ahmad Choudhury is the Director and
Managing Director & CEO of ‘Vanguard Asset Management
Ltd’ and he is a Director of ‘ADN Telecom Limited’
(representing ‘Vanguard AML BD Finance Mutual Fund
Oone)).

Mr. Wagar Ahmad Choudhury was the stakeholder and
sponsor Director from 1996 to 2012 of Green Delta
Insurance Company Limited, one of the largest General
Insurance Companies in Bangladesh. During this period
Mr. Choudhury played a pivotal role making equity
investments in creating the following ventures:

» Delta BRAC Housing Limited (DBH), largest housing
finance company in Bangladesh.

» United Hospital Limited, one of the leading corporate
hospitals in Bangladesh.

+ Green Delta Securities Limited, having membership of
Dhaka Stock Exchange and Chittagong Stock
Exchange.

* Green Delta Capital Limited, one of the leading
Merchant Banks in Bangladesh.

Apart from the above investments he played a key role to
finalize the equity participation of IFC to Green Delta
Insurance Company. He was immediate past Managing
Director and CEO of Green Delta LR Holdings Limited with
30 years of experience in the field of investment banking
mainly in the capital market, insurance and trading
business.

Mr. Wagar is the Director of ‘Union Capital Ltd., ‘Nascom
(Pvt.) Ltd” ‘Rancom Trading (Pvt) Ltd” and ‘AFC Health
Ltd., a concern of Active Fine Chemicals Ltd. represents
as a Director of ‘Vanguard AML Rupali Bank Balanced
Fund’. He is also the Chairman of the Executive Committee
and the Member of the Audit Committee of Union Capital
Ltd.

He is widely reputed for crafting requisite strategic vision
to achieve business goals. Mr. Wagar holds the Bachelor
of Commerce in Finance and Banking from Adelphi
University in Long Island, NY, USA.
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Md. Maruf

Independent Director
Chairman- Audit Committee
Chairman- Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)

Md. Maruf is an experienced business professional who
has been appointed as an Independent Director of ADN
Telecom Limited in January 2023. He has 32 years of
business experience in various fields such as information
technology, power, and international trade. His leadership
style is strategic, collaborative, dynamic, and influential,
making him a trusted change agent in the demanding ICT
and Telecom environments.

Mr. Maruf has a family business background and has been
involved in family business entities such as Hedameen
Corporation Ltd, GRACE Garments Limited, S.M.
Construction, and Uttara Traders. He has been part of
many international business negotiations and operations
since the 1980s, even during his undergraduate studies.

Before his appointment as an Independent Director of
ADN Telecom Limited, Md. Maruf served as an Executive
Director of Tech Valley Computers Limited from 1991 to
2010 and was Director (Projects) of InGen Technology
Limited from 2011 to 2020. He completed his graduation
degree from Dhaka City College in 1988 and also
completed Independent Director's training courses by
Ethics India.
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Henry Hilton

Managing Director

Mr. Henry Hilton, the Managing Director of ADN Telecom
Limited, is an Ex-Officio Director, who has been a part of
the company for more than a decade. He is an efficient
business leader with more than 25 years of vast
experience in the relevant corporate sector.

While leading the overall local business endeavors
successfully, Mr. Hilton has been also playing a significant
strategic role in maintaining a strong relationship with
international  business  alliances like  Singapore
Telecommunications Ltd. (Singtel), TATA Communications
Ltd. (TCL), Orange Business Services (OBS) and other
international carriers of the telecommunication sector,
which helped the organizations expand their businesses,
especially in the international arena. His supervision has
visible impacts on the organization’s growth, operational
excellence and financial performance over the years,
which have made him an integral part of the overall
business endeavor of the company. As top personnel
handling the business affairs of the company, he has
touched the milestone of leading ADN Telecom through
the IPO procedures, which resulted in a successful
enlistment in the capital market and transformed it into a
public limited company.

Mr. Hilton is associated with trade bodies and associations
like Dhaka Chamber of Commerce and Industry (DCCI) and
Bangladesh Association of Software and Information
Services (BASIS). At the same time he has strong
attachment to Internet Service Provider Association of
Bangladesh (ISPAB) where he also plays a robust role in
taking strategic decisions.

Besides ADN Telecom Limited, he is currently holding the
position of Managing Director of ADN International Gateway
Limited, an IIG licensee and Director of ADN DigiNet
Limited, SOS Developments Limited and My Tel Limited.

Before joining ADN Telecom Limited, Mr. Hilton played vital
roles while working with renowned entities like Cosmos
Group, Heidelberg Cement Bangladesh Limited and Agni
Systems Limited.

Mr. Hilton pursued his MBA from the United States and has
attended countless seminars and professional workshops
home and abroad, where he had the opportunity to gain
and share experience and skills to represent ADN Telecom
and Bangladesh profoundly.

Shahriar Akbar Chowdhury

Adviser to the Board of Directors

Mr. Shahriar Akbar Chowdhury, a versatile corporate
professional, has been engaged as the Vice
Chairman of ADN Group since July 2020. Prior to
joining ADN Group, Mr. Chowdhury worked as an
Independent Consultant for HR and Organization
Development where his clientele included British
American Tobacco Bangladesh, Huawei Bangladesh,
Delta Brac Housing and several other local and
international organizations. His pursuit in corporate
sector comprises of serving as Head of HR
Development Department of the leading mobile
operator Grameenphone and as HR Manager of the
globally renowned MNC Unilever’s local operation.
At the onset of his career, he taught at North South
University, where he also served as the Proctor.

Mr. Chowdhury completed his SSC and HSC from
Faujdarhat Cadet College and Chittagong College
respectively. He earned a BS in Business
Administration degree and a MS in Industrial
Management degree from the University of Central
Missouri, USA.

ADNTEL
Annual Report 2024



Henry Hilton
Managing Director

Mohammad Fazlun Naim
Chief Operating Officer
International and SatCom Business

Md. Ziaul Haque
Chief Business Officer
National Business

Md. Abul Kashem
Head of Internal Audit and
Compliance

Mohammad Nazim Uddin
Chief Financial Officer

Md. Monir Hossain
Company Secretary

Md. Azharul Hug Chowdhury
Chief Operating Officer
Technology and Engineering

Mohammad Shaheed Siddique
Chief HR Officer

Md. Mozibur Rahman
Head of Architecture & Planning

Lt Col Md. Ziaul Haque Khaled (Retd)
Head of Government Affairs

Md. Shihab Uddin
Head of Administration

Shah Mohammad Reazuddin
Head of Supply Chain Management

Strategic Business Unit Leaders

YO,

Syed Sohael Reza A. M. Ehsan-ul Haque Tanver Joarder Muhammad Asaduzzaman Faisal ~ Md. Masud Ur Rahman Saykat Abu Toha Muhammad Karmauzzaman
Managing Director & CEO Cheif Executive Officer Chief Operating Officer Chief Business Officer Chief Operating Officer Chief Operating Officer
ADN DigiNet Ltd. ADN Technologies Ltd. ADN International Gateway Ltd. Regional Operations-UDOY SOS Developments Ltd. CEL Telecom Ltd.
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Dear Esteemed Shareholders

The Board of Directors of ADN Telecom is delighted
to present herewith the Directors Report together
with the audited financial statements of the company
for the year ended 30 June 2024. This report has
been prepared in accordance with section 184 of the
Companies Act, 1994 (amended upto 2020) and
Corporate Governance Code 2018 (amended upto
2023) of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission (BSEC).

Company and Business Profile

ADN Telecom is the leading Internet service
providers (ISP) & data connectivity service provider
in Bangladesh. It owns and operates a diverse and
wide network with wireless, fiber and satellite
infrastructure across Bangladesh. The Bangladesh
Telecommunications Regulatory Authority (BTRC) has
granted several licenses and permissions to ADN
Telecom. These include the following: Nationwide IP
Telephony Service Provider, Nationwide Internet
Service Provider, VSAT Provider with Hub, and
International MPLS Services. With the most extensive
network of touch points, ADNTEL offers top-notch
services supported by cutting-edge technologies.
Below are the three main pillars of the company
consistently focusing in its endeavor to continue
winning customers and markets:

Industry Penetration

The company’s core strength lies in its extensive
expertise across multiple industry sectors, allowing it
to leverage deep knowledge of client requirements
to deliver customized, high-quality solutions. Through
effective and tailored service delivery and quality
monitoring processes, ADNTEL has earned the
confidence of its clients and built a solid track record
of reliability and excellence.

Market Reach

ADN Telecom operates both nationally and
internationally, maintaining strategic partnerships
with several globally recognized companies. With a
presence across national, regional, and global
markets, ADNTEL benefits from geographical
diversification, which enhances its business stability
& sustainability.

Digital Divide

At ADN Telecom, digital equality is at the core of its
mission. Through its retail segment, ADNTEL actively
promotes inclusive development by delivering
affordable and secured internet services to
underserved rural areas. This commitment not only
empowers individuals but also ensures that
everyone, regardless of geographic location,
economic status and social standing, has access to
the digital tools necessary for education, business,
and social growth.
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ADNTEL’S
TOTAL REVENUE
STOOD AT
BDT 1430 MILLION

Pattern of shareholding

Shareholding pattern of the Company as on 30 June
2024 as required under condition no. 1(5) (xxiii) of
the Corporate Governance Code of Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission has been
shown in Annexure-ll on page no. 46 of this annual
report.

Credit Rating

Emerging Credit Rating Limited (ECRL) has affirmed
AA-(Pronounced as double A minus) long term credit
rating and ST-2 short term credit rating to ADN
Telecom Limited. The outlook on the rating is stable.

Membership of BAPLC

As a publicly listed company, ADN Telecom Limited is
a member of the Bangladesh Association of Publicly
listed Companies (BAPLC). A certificate of BAPLC
membership has been given in Annexure D on page
no. 65 to this annual report.

DEMONSTRATION OF COMPLIANCE

&

Corporate
governance Credit rating

Statutory
Auditors

compliance auditors

Report reflects Governance of Long Term AA

a clean the Company is Short-Term ST-2
Audit Outlook  Highly
Satisfactory

Industry Outlook

Bangladesh's ICT market is poised to grow at a
noticeable pace in the coming years on the back of
large investments, emphasis on infrastructure
development and focus on digitization. Convenient
and easily accessible digital services such as
E-commerce, edutech, online financial transactions
and entertainment platforms have paved the way for
expansion of the digital landscape. Rising confidence
in online transactions and the availability of reliable



digital payments platforms have also boosted the ICT
sector. An enormous number of young people who
are tech-savvy are driving Bangladesh's ICT industry.

According to a report by Bangladesh Bureau of
Statistics (BBS), internet connectivity in Bangladesh
has increased almost 8-fold in the last decade.
Broadband Internet has become very popular and
appealing with corporate entities, business houses
and many retail users because of its higher speed
and better networking capacity relative to mobile
internet. Broadband internet connectivity is more in
demand due to heightened emphasis on cyber
security and growing interest for dedicated ISP
domain for business and corporate entities seeking
to preserve business confidentiality. Various internet
packages catering to different income groups and
different need- based segments made available by
ISPs have also reinforced ISP business. According to
the above survey, the proportion of households with
internet access increased from 4.8% in 2013 to
38.1% in 2022.

According to a report, titled” Bangladesh Telecoms
Industry Research Report 2024- 2031, by RESEARCH
AND MARKETS, the world’s largest market research
platform, Bangladesh will add roughly 55 million
internet users by 2031 growing at an annual average
rate of 5.9% in the forecast period. Expanded
broadband use by households ,corporates and
business houses is likely to spur fixed broadband
subscription at an annual average rate of 12 per cent
in the period with 80.2% of the population connected
to internet by 2031. In Bangladesh, fixed broadband
penetration is likely to accelerate as investment in
full- fiber network gain momentum.

Appeal and usefulness of fixed broadband internet
will be more obvious as remote medical and
education consultation requires seamless data
transfer.

Bangladesh faced macro-economic challenges in
2023-2024 which impacted the ISP sector along with
other industries. The continuous decline of the forex
reserve and devaluation of local currency put
pressure on the economy, for which the government
took a conservative approach to imports.
Consequently, ISPs faced challenges in importing
network equipment in the 2023-2024. Nevertheless,
ISP and ICT remain at the core of the government’s
vision and the sector saw growth throughout the
year.

Growth of internet user
Number of internet users in Bangladesh in
2023-2024 is shown in the following table:

Broadband internet User in Bangladesh

Q2 -2023 12
Q3-2023 37
Q4 -2023 38
Q1-2024 39
Q2 -2024 40
Q3-2024 41

Source: BTRC website

The aforementioned table shows that ISP and PSTN
customer numbers have increased consistently in
2024, which bodes well for ADN Telecom Limited.

Number of ISP licenses of different categories as on
31 December 2023 is given in the following table:

Nationwide ISP 119
Divisional ISP 334
District ISP 150

Upazila/Thana 2,112

Source: BTRC website

List of IT companies listed in the stock exchanges in
Bangladesh:

A total of 11 IT companies are listed with the Dhaka
Stock Exchange and Chittagong Stock Exchange,
names of which are displayed below:

AAMRANET (aamra networks limited)

*  AAMRATECH (aamra technologies limited)
» ADNTEL (ADN Telecom Limited)

« AGNISYSL (Agni Systems Ltd.)

- BDCOM (BDCOM Online Ltd.)

« DAFODILCOM (Daffodil Computers Ltd.)

« EGEN (eGeneration PLC.)

*  GENEXIL (Genex Infosys PLC)

« INTECH (Intech Limited)

* ISNLTD (Information Services Network Ltd.)
e ITC (IT Consultants PLC.)

Business, Investment & Financial Overview
Despite industry challenges from structural
inefficiencies and high inflation, which impacted
disposable incomes across various segments, ADN
Telecom achieved a 6% growth in revenue over FY
2022-23. Revenue for FY 2023-24 rose to BDT
1,429.59 million, up from BDT 1,344.26 million in the
prior year. However, the company’s margin during the
year was affected by high inflation, increased interest
rate and substantial pre breakeven stage cost to
expand its retail business in the backdrop of stiff
business competition. Considering the post Ukraine
war developments in the global financial industry and
its impact on the national economy, the company
heavily focused on its financial health and improved
the net operating cash flow per share from BDT 2.44
to BDT 5.15.
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Cost of goods and services sold, gross profit margin
and net profit margin

ADN Telecom Limited’s cost of goods and services
sold, gross profit margin and net profit margin in
2023-24 and 2022-23 are shown below:

Amount in million BDT

Particulars 2024 2023
Net Revenue 1,430 1,344
Cost of Goods sold & services 888 727
Gross Profit 542 617
Operating Profit 231 323
Net Profit After Tax 144 259
Gross Profit 38% 46%
Operating Profit 16% 24%
Net Profit 10% 19%

The growth of the Retail Business segment, which is
still in a high-cost period as it grows up, is primarily
responsible for the increase in Cost of
goods(services) sold (COGS). Nonetheless, it is
anticipated that this segment's expansion would
boost revenue in the future. After scaleup, the related
expenses will stabilize, resulting in improved overall
COGS efficiency.

Operating expenses comprise salaries and personnel
expenses, operational and maintenance costs,
utilities, sales and marketing costs, revenue sharing,
licensing fees, depreciation and amortization, and
other expenses. In 2023-24, operating expenses
increased due to higher depreciation and
amortization, energy expenses, operation and
maintenance, and other operating expenses, partly
driven by the high-growth Retail Business segment
still in its high-cost phase. Operating profit for
2023-24 stood at BDT 231 million, with an operating
profit margin of 16%, compared to 24% in 2022-23.

Net profit after tax for 2023-24 amounted to BDT
144.30 million, with a net profit margin of 10%, down
from 19% in 2022-23. This reduction in net profit is
primarily due to the increase in COGS related to the
ongoing expansion of the Retail Business segment.
The elevated costs associated with this segment’s
growth phase have also impacted the Earnings Per
Share (EPS), which declined year-on-year, mirroring
the effects of higher operational expenses during
this period of expansion.

Significant Variance of Financial Statements

No significant variations have occurred between the
quarterly and final financial performances of the
company during the year 2023-24.

Significant Deviations from Last Year’s Operating
Result
i. As per consolidated financials, the company’s sales
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grew by BDT 160 million, 12% over the preceding
year. BDT 78 million, 6% sales growth came from its
subsidiaries and the rest of the sales growth was
driven by B2C. With the acquisition of an additional
40% shares in ADN International Gateway during the
year the total shareholding of ADN Telecom
increased to 80%, which enhanced consolidated
sales.

ii. ISP retail business (B2C) involved substantial costs
in the pre-break-even stage due to the economies of
scale along with extensive marketing push in the
backdrop of stiff competition in this segment. Also,
borrowing costs showed upward trend. The
company’s last year EPS was good due to, some
one-time sales (OTC) under different projects.
Alongside growing inflation, all these factors
impacted the variance in EPS.

iii. Net Operating Cash Flow Per Share (NOCFPS)
increased from BDT 2.57 to BDT 5.96 because of the
increase in collection of receivables from the
customers.

An explanation if the financial results deteriorate after
the company goes for Initial Public Offering (IPO),
Repeat Public Offering (RPO), Rights Share Offer,
Direct Listing, etc.

The financial results of the company did not
deteriorate after the company made an initial public
offering of shares up to 2023 -24.

Segment performance

Across the country, ADN Telecom Limited provides its
segments wise services/products to customers and
evaluates its service revenue performance. Relevant
disclosure is provided in the notes to the Financial
Statements.

Amount in million BDT

Name of Segments 2023-24 2022-23

It support & services 487 472
Local service
Internet service 378 283
IPTSP, Telehouse & Hosting 42 32
Projects 6 12
Export services 517 545
Grand Total 1,430 1,344

It is seen that the total revenue of ADN Telecom
Limited flowed through three main business
segments- Local services, IT support & services and
export services which fetches foreign currency.
Contribution of Local services segment increased
from 24% to 30%. However, all the three segments
bear almost equal levels of weightage, average 33%.



Property, Plant and Equipment

ADN Telecom invested BDT 384 million for acquiring
land and expanding its network in rural areas apart
from regular capital investment. It will ensure long
term sustainability of the company with a strong
foothold and wide range resilient infrastructure.
Details are disclosed under note 4 to the financial
statements on page number 123 of this annual
report.

Strategic Investments for vertical integration &
diversification

ADN Telecom took controlling interest in three more
businesses entities alongside its previous subsidiary,
SOS Development Limited. An overview of these
subsidiary companies is provided below.

i) SOS Development Limited

ADN Telecom Limited owns sixty (60) percent of SOS
Development Limited's paid up capital. In accordance
with the Companies Act of 1994, this subsidiary
company was established on August 3, 2021. In an
accident-prone nation like Bangladesh, the company
was founded to offer top-notch safety and security
products and solutions for the protection of people
and property. The technology-intensive goods and
services offered by SOS Development Limited
complement ADNTEL's core functional horizon.

i) My Tel Limited

ADN Telecom holds 95% of the share capital of This
subsidiary company. My Tel Limited was incorporated
on 5 December 2011. This company is a
telecommunications investment holding company
with investments in Bangla Tel Limited having IGW
license and Jibondhara Solutions Limited having ICX
licenses. This company strengthens ADN Telecom’s
foothold in the telecommunications connectivity
network.

iii) ADN International Gateway Limited

ADN Telecom Limited is the owner of 80% of the
share capital of this subsidiary company which was
Incorporated on 27 October 2011. This company
provides connectivity between various networks. This
company bolsters ADN Telecom’s overall business
capacity.

iv) ADN Eduservices Limited

89% of the share capital of this subsidiary company is
owned by ADN Telecom Limited. ADN Eduservices
Limited was incorporated on 23 February 2017 and
set up to undertake activities in the education sector
which holds good prospects.

In terms of section 186 of the Companies Act, 1994,
the audited financial statements incorporating
statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or
Loss and other Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Changes in Equity and Cash Flows and Auditors

Report thereon for the year ended 30 June 2024 of
the above four subsidiary companies are included in
this annual report.

Protection of Non-Controlling (Minority) Interest

ADN Telecom Limited treats, all shareholders fairly
and without discrimination, in line with the company’s
strong corporate governance philosophy that
emphasizes equal engagement with all shareholders.
The company has established effective procedures
to address grievances and resolve any issues faced
by non-controlling shareholders. Shareholders with
non-controlling interests may submit their legitimate
concerns or complaints to the Investor Relations
Department or seek assistance from the Company
Secretary’s office for resolution. ADN Telecom
Limited ensures compliance with Section 233 of the
Companies Act, 1994, which safeguards the interests
of non-controlling shareholders. The Board of
Directors periodically reviews the measures in place
to protect the interests of non-controlling
shareholders and provides guidance when
necessary. Additionally, all shareholders, including
those with non-controlling interests, have the
opportunity to raise their concerns at the Annual
General Meeting.

Management Discussion and Analysis

The management’s discussion and analysis have
been furnished in the managing director’s statement
and in the directors’ report.

Dividend

The Board of Directors of the company, in its meeting
held on 24 October 2024, recommended a cash
dividend of 10%, that is, BDT 1.00 per share of BDT 10
each to the shareholders whose names will appear in
the Depository Register as on the Record Date. The
Board of Directors confirms that no bonus share or
stock dividend has been declared as an interim
dividend.

Profit and Dividend payout BDT in million

259
162 166 168
144
97 97
I i i I i

2019-2020  2020-2021

300
250
200
150
10

5

o O

2021-2022  2022-2023 2023-2024

M Net Profit M Dividend Layout

Contribution to National Exchequer
ADN Telecom Limited paid an amount of BDT
119,835,323 (approximately) in 2023 -24, which
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accounts for 8 % of the annual net turnover of the
company. The last three years’ comparative data are
as follows:

Amount in BDT

FY FY FY
2023-2024 | 2022-2023 | 2021-2022

Particulars

Corporate Tax 51,957,387 | 55,350,535 | 48,843,781
VAT 57,006,793 | 40,490,468 | 35,406,531
License Fees &

Equipment Charge 10,871,143 8,926,805 | 6,828,147
Total 119,835,323 (104,767,808 | 91,078,459

Discussion on related party transactions

During the year the Company carried out a number of
transactions with related parties in the normal course
of business and on arm’s length basis. The name of
related parties, nature of transactions, their total
value and closing balances have been set out in
accordance with the provisions of IAS 24" related
Party Disclosure”.

Details of the company’s related party transaction in
2023-24, are given in the notes to financial
statements number 45 in page number 141 of this
annual report.

Discussion on the continuity of any extraordinary
activities and their implication (gain or loss)

The company did not undertake any extraordinary
activity in the year under review.

Utilization of proceeds raised through public issues,
rights issues and/ or any other instruments

The Company raised BDT 57 crore through its Initial
Public Offering (IPO). As outlined in the prospectus,
the proceeds were designated for BMRE (Balancing,
Modernization, Rehabilitation, and Expansion), data
center setup, loan repayment, and IPO expenses.
Later, with approval from the Bangladesh Securities
and Exchange Commission (BSEC), a portion of the
funds was reallocated for investments in the Hi-Tech
Park and land acquisition and development. The IPO
funds were fully utilized in accordance with the
conditions set by the commission's consent letter in
December 2023, ahead of the scheduled deadline.
Subsequently, the company submitted the full
utilization report to the relevant regulatory bodies.

The statement on the utilization of proceeds raised
through the initial public offering for December
2023, audited by Zoha Zaman Kabir Rashid & Co.,
Chartered Accountants, is provided below:
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Amount in million BDT

: Amount as per
Pil:lrﬂ?es gmgng&rﬁd Prospectus & | Utilized
P BSEC Directives

Elt\ell\fel:'lofg;'nlgrf]riastructure 227 227
Data Centre Setup 93 93
Loan Repayment 121 121
IPO Expenses (Estimated) 30 30
Fecheon e 50 50
Land & Land Development 50 50
Total 570 570

Environment, Health, Safety & Governance

Environmental Protection

To the best of the Boards knowledge, the Company
did not engaged in any activity which might prove
harmful to the environment. The Company adopted
sustainable practices in the service delivery process.
Company also focusing on improving energy
efficiency by introducing loT based smart monitoring
system, which could significantly reduce the carbon
footprint. By prioritizing environmental sustainability,
the Company fulfiled its corporate social
responsibility.

Human Resources

ADN Telecom Limited is always aware of the vital
roles played by human resources in its unceasing
success. Employees are regarded as the backbone of
its strong performance over the years. The Board of
Directors of the company and its management seek
to facilitate and establish a congenial and cozy
working environment in which employees are
encouraged to deliver their best to contribute to the
company’s prosperity. Employees are also given
ample scope to nurture their talent and skill which
ultimately benefit the country. The female employees
of the company work in a pleasant atmosphere, and
they render valuable services to the company. ADN
Telecom Limited places utmost emphasis on
individual and collective welfare of its employees as it
believes that employees who are comfortable and
responsive can contribute positively to the
company’s continuous progress. The right people are
placed at the right places to ensure optimum
productivity of the employees.

Health and Safety

Health and safety of the employees and other
stakeholders are always taken care of with highest
level of important and urgency. The company’s
human resources act as a custodian of the health and
safety policy and ensure its strict compliance.

Corporate Governance
ADN Telecom Limited is dedicated to upholding the
highest standards of corporate governance through



a culture of accountability, transparency, and
well-defined policies and procedures. In alignment
with this commitment, the Company has adhered to
the requirements outlined in the Corporate
Governance Code issued by BSEC. The certificate
required under the said code along with compliance
status of corporate governance code of BSEC have
been given in Annexure B and C respectively on page
no. 48 & 49 of this annual report.

Declaration of the Managing Director and CFO
Declaration by the Managing Director and CFO as
required under condition no. 1(5) (xxvi) of the
Corporate Governance Code of BSEC has been given
in Annexure A on page no. 47 of this annual report.

Appointment of Statutory Auditors

M/S Rahman Mustafa Alam and Co. Chartered
Accountants have completed their third consecutive
year as statutory auditors of the Company. In
accordance with the prevailing guidelines, they are
not eligible to be appointed as statutory auditors for
auditing the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 30 June 2025.

Following the evaluation process of the Expressions
of Interest (EOIs) received from several audit firms
and based on the recommendations of the audit
committee, the Board recommended M/S Ahsan
Manzur & Co. Chartered Accountants as the most
appropriate candidate. Accordingly, the Board of
Directors in its meeting held on 24 October 2024 has
proposed to appoint M/S Ahsan Manzur & Co,
Chartered Accountants, as statutory auditors of the
company for the year ended 30 June 2025, at a
remuneration of BDT 495,000 (Four Lac Ninety-five
Thousand) excluding VAT subject to approval by the
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.

The selected statutory auditors will have to comply
with the conditions as stipulated in condition No. 7 of
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/ 2006-158/ 207/
Admin/80 dated 03 June 2018.

Appointment of Auditor to provide the certificate on
Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance
code of BSEC

M/S Ahsan Manzur & Co., Chartered Accountants, was
appointed by the Shareholders in the 20th AGM to
provide the certificate on compliance with the
conditions of the Corporate Governance Code of the
BSEC for the year 2024.

As M/S Ahsan Manzur & Co. is now being considered
for appointment as statutory auditors, the Board, as
per the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has
proposed to appoint M/S Islam Quazi Shafique & Co.,
Chartered Accountants, to provide the certificate on
compliance of conditions of the Corporate
Governance Code of BSEC for the year 2025 with a
fee of BDT 40,000 (Forty Thousand) excluding VAT
subject to approval by the shareholders in the Annual
General Meeting.

Board of Directors

Directors Appointment, Re-appointments, Retirements,
Remunerations, Meetings and assessment of Risk and
concerns along with required declarations and
statutory disclosures are presented below:

Directors Retiring by Rotation

In accordance with the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 1994 and in terms of the Articles of
Association of the Company, Mr. Asif Mahmood and
Mr. Md. Moinul Islam retire by rotation at the ensuing
AGM and being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and Board recommended their
re-appointment.

Brief profiles of the said Directors are given in the
profile of the Board of Directors section of the Annual
Report. In addition, the following table shows the
names of Companies in which the above Directors
also hold directorship and membership of
committees of the Board.

Positions held with other entities

Asif Mahmood
Chairman

Chairman, BASE Limited

Chairman, ADN Technologies Limited

Chairman, Tech Valley Networks Limited

Chairman, InGen Technology Limited

Chairman, Advance Technology Computers Limited
Chairman, ADN International Gateway Limited
Chairman, bdnews24 publishing limited

Chairman, ADN Eduservices Limited

Chairman, ADN DigiNet Limited

Chairman, ADCOR International Limited
Chairman, InGen Industries Limited

Chairman, SOS Developments Limited
Chairman, ADN Media Limited

Managing Director, MyTel Limited

Managing Director, SEAF Ventures Management
Director, Tech Valley Computers Limited
Director, Greenworld Solutions Limited
Proprietor, AMBA International
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Positions held with other entities

Md. Moinul Islam
Director

Chairman, Tech Valley Distributions Limited
Chairman, Tech Valley Systems Limited

Managing Director, Tech Valley Computers Limited
Director, Advance Technology Computers Limited

Meeting of the Board of Directors and of the Board
Sub Committees

In 2023-2024, four (4) meetings of the Board of
Directors of the Company, four (4) meetings of the
Audit Committee and three (3) meetings of the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee were held.
The details of composition and attendance records of
the Directors as required under condition no. 1(5)
(xxii) of the Corporate Governance Code of
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission are
provided in Annexure-l on page no. 00 of this annual
report. The Directors who could not attend the
meetings were granted leave of absence.
Remuneration  paid to  Directors
Independent Directors

Information on Remuneration paid to directors
including independent directors are shown .....in the
note no. 29 in the audited financial statement on
page no. 00 of this annual report.

including

Directors’ Declaration on the Financial Statements:

In accordance with sound governance principles, the
Board is dedicated to ensure that the Company's
financial performance and position are accurately
and transparently presented. The Directors certify
that, to the best of their knowledge:

a. The company's management prepared the
financial statements, which fairly represent the
company's state of affairs, operating results,
cash flows, and equity changes.

b. The company has kept appropriate books of
accounts.

c. Appropriate accounting policies have been
consistently applied in the preparation of the
financial statements, with estimates based on
reasonable and prudent judgment.

d. The financial statements are prepared in
accordance  with  International  Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs), with any deviations
fully disclosed.

e. The internal control system is well-designed,
successfully implemented, and closely
monitored.

f.  There is no doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.
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Other statutory Disclosure

a. The key operating and financial data for the last
five years have been disclosed in this report on
page 20.

b. AsperIAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements,
no items of income and expenses are to be
presented as “extraordinary gain or loss” in the
financial statements. Accordingly, no
‘extraordinary gain or loss has been presented in
the Financial Statements.

Risk and concerns

Risk Management is embedded in ADN Telecom
Limited’s strategic and operational framework,
recognizing that resilience to risk is essential for
achieving strategic objectives and ensuring a
sustainable business environment. The Board of
Directors and Management are fully committed to
maintaining a robust risk management process to
protect the company’s assets and safeguard the
interests of shareholders and stakeholders.

ADN  Telecom Limited’s comprehensive risk
management framework addresses a wide range of
risks, including strategic, regulatory, financial,
operational, technological, and cybersecurity risks.
The company is also in the process of implementing a
modern ERP system, which will enhance risk

mitigation by improving financial transparency,
ensuring  regulatory  compliance,  enhancing
accountability, managing human resources

efficiently, and protecting sensitive data.

A structured risk management process is in place to
identify, assess, and prioritize risks affecting the
company in both the short term and foreseeable
future. This process includes defining mitigation

strategies to address these risks effectively,
promoting a secure and reliable business
environment.  Detailed information on  risk

management practices can be found in Notes 41 to
44 of the financial statements on pages 139-140
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the stakeholders including the shareholders have only strengthened the commitment of the company's Board
of Directors, it's management and employees to put in their best efforts for the robust and sound operational
financial achievement of the company.

The Board of Directors recognize with profound appreciation the crucial and vital cooperation received from
Bangladesh Telecommunications Regulatory Commission (BTRC), Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission (BSEC), Bangladesh Bank, Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and Firms, Dhaka Stock Exchange
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company’s bankers and other concerned authorities and institutions for their backing. We would also like to
thank our local and foreign customers for being with us in our stride.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of ADN Telecom Limited.

MWD TS

Asif Mahmood Henry Hilton
Chairman Managing Director
ADN Telecom Limited ADN Telecom Limited
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Annexure-|
The Board and Sub Committee Meetings and Attendance:

The composition of the Board of Directors and their attendance in the meetings for the year ended 30 June
2024 is shown below. The Director who could not attend in any meeting was granted leave of absence. The
Board of Directors did not take any meeting fee for their attendance.

Board of Directors Meeting

Sl. Name of the Directors Position Meetings Held Attended

1 | Asif Mahmood Chairman 4 4

2 | Md. Moinul Islam Director 4 4

3 | Md. Mahfuz Ali Sohel Director 4 4

4 | Wagar Ahmed Choudhury .
(Nominee of Vanguard AML BD Finance Director 4 4
Mutual Fund One)

5 | Md. Maruf Independent Director 4 4
Henry Hilton Managing Director

7 | Major General Golam Mohammad,
SUP, nwc, psc (Retd) Independent Director 4 N/A
(Appointed on 27 June 2024 & Resigned on 10 Nov 2024)

8 | Khondkar Atique-e-Rabbani, FCA
(2" term expired on 6 January 2024)

Independent Director 4 2

The composition of the Audit Committee and their attendance in the meetings for the year ended 30 June
2024 are shown below:

Audit Committee Meeting

Name of the Directors Position Meetings Held Attended

1 | Md. Maruf _
Independent Director Chairman 4 2
(Appointed as Chairman of Audit Committee on 7 January 2024)

2 | Khondkar Atique-e-Rabbani, FCA .
Independent Director Former Chairman 4 2
(27 term expired on 6 January 2024)

3 | Md. Moinul Islam

Director Member 4 4
4 | Waqgar Ahmad Choudhury
Director Member 4 4

Note:

1. Mr. Khondkar Atique-e-Rabbani, FCA has resigned from the Board and from the Audit committee due to the
expiry of his second term as Independent Director on 6 January 2024. Thereafter, the Board of Directors
reconstituted the Audit Committee. Presently, Mr. Md. Maruf, Independent Director is the Chairman of the Audit
Committee.

The composition of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and their attendance in the meetings for the
year ended 30 June 2024 are shown below:

Nomination & Remuneration
Committee Meeting

Name of the Directors Position Meetings Held Attended
Md. Maruf i
! Independent Director Chairman ’ ’
5 I\D/Iidr.etlltcgrnul Islam Member 3 3
3 Il\DAicrjé(l\:/l;?fuz Ali Sohel Member 3 3
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The Shareholding Pattern:

In pursue of the condition no. 1(5) (xxiii) of the Corporate Governance Code of Bangladesh Securities and

Annexure-ll

Exchange Commission, the shareholding pattern of the Company as on 30 June 2024 is stated below:

Name of the Shareholders

i. Parent/Subsidiary/Associated Companies and

Status

other related parties

Shares Held Percentage

ADN Technologies Limited

200,000

0.31%

ADN Telecom Ltd. Employees Provident Fund

200,000

0.31%

ii. Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company

Compliance and their spouses and minor children

Secretary, Chief Financial Office

r, Head of Internal Audit &

Asif Mahmood Chairman 12,900,000 19.95%

Md. Moinul Islam Director 6,510,000 10.07%

Md. Mahfuz Ali Sohel Director 6,510,000 10.07%

Vanguard AML BD Finance Mutual Fund One Director 1,333,334 2.06%
Nominated Director

Wagar Ahmad Choudhury (Vanguard AML BD Finance - -

Mutual Fund One)

Md. Maruf Independent Director - -

Major General Golam Mohammad, SUP, nwc, Independent Director ) )

psc (Retd)

(Appointed on 27 June 2024 & Resigned on 10 Nov 2024)

Khondkar Atique-e-Rabbani, FCA ; ) }

(2 term expired on 6 January 2024) Independent Director

Henry Hilton Managing Director 124,000 0.19%

Md. Monir Hossain, FCS

Company Secretary

Mohammed Nazim Uddin, FCA

Chief Financial Officer

Md. Abul Kashem

Head of Internal Audit &

Compliance

iii. Executive (as explained in the BSEC Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/ Admin/80 dated June

03, 2018)

Muhammad Asaduzzaman Faisal

Chief Business Officer
Regional Operations

Md. Azharul Hug Chowdhury

Chief Operating Officer

Md. Ziaul Haque

Chief Business Officer

Shahriar Akbar Chowdhury

Adviser

Md. Mozibur Rahman

Head of Architecture and Planning

iv. Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more voting interest

Asif Mahmood Chairman 12,900,000 19.95%
Md. Moinul Islam Director 6,510,000 10.07%
Md. Mahfuz Ali Sohel Director 6,510,000 10.07%
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Annexure-A

Declaration by the Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer
(As per the condition no. 1(5) (xxvi) of the Corporate Governance Code of BSEC)

Date: 24 October 2024

The Board of Directors,

ADN Telecom Limited

Registered Office:

Red Crescent Concord Tower (19" Floor)
17 Mohakhali C/A, Dhaka-1212.

Subject: Declaration on Financial Statements for the year ended on 30 June 2024.

Dear Sir(s),

Pursuant to the condition No.1(5)(xxvi) imposed vide the Commission’s Notification No.
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 Dated 3 June 2018 under section 2CC of the Securities and
Exchange Ordinance, 1969, we do hereby declare that:

1) The Financial Statements of ADN Telecom Limited for the year ended on 30 June 2024 have been prepared
in compliance with International Accounting Standards (IAS) or International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS), as applicable in Bangladesh and any departure therefrom has been adequately disclosed;

2) The estimates and judgments related to the financial statements were made on a prudent and reasonable
basis, in order for the financial statements to reveal a true and fair view;

3) The form and substance of transactions and the Company’s state of affairs have been reasonably and fairly
presented in its financial statements;

4) To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of internal control
and maintenance of accounting records;

5) Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the established
policies and procedures of the Company were consistently followed; and

6) The management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements is
appropriate and there exists no material uncertainty related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In this regard, we also certify that:

(i) We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on 30 June 2024 and that to the best of
our knowledge and belief:

(@) (a)these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading.

(b) these statements collectively present true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards and applicable laws.

(i) There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the
year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of conduct for the Company’s Board of
Directors or its members.

Sincerely yours,

U.,_-l Wy _,«43-{‘“

Henry Hilton Mohammad Nazim Uddin, FCA
Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
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Annexure-B

[Certificate as per Condition no. 1(5) (xxvii)]

Report to the Shareholders of
ADN Telecom Limited
On Compliance on the Corporate Governance Code

[Certificate as condition no.1(5) (XXViL), of BSEC Natification no, BSEC/CMRRCD/2006, -
158,207/ Adminf80 dated June 3, 2018]
We have examined the compliance status to the Corporate Governance Code by ADN Telecom
Limited for the year ended on June 30, 2024, This code relates to the natification Mo

BSEC/CMBRCD 2006 - 158/ 207 Admin/80 dated lune 3, 2018 of the Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission,

Such compllance with the Corporate Governance Code s the responsibdlity of the company, Our
exarmnation was limited to the procedures and implermentation thereol as adopt by the
Banagement in enduring compliance 1o the conditions of the Corporate Governante Cade.

This i a scruting and verification and an independent audit on compliance of the condition of the
Corporate Governance Code as well as the provisions of relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards
{B55) as adopled by Institute of Chartered Secretarial of Bangladesh [IC58] in so far as those
Standands are not inconsistent with any condition of this Corporate Governance Code.

We state that we have obtained all the information and explanations, which we have required, and
after due scruting and verification thereaf, we report that, in our Gpinkon:

a. The Company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code as
Stipulated in the above-mentioned Corporate Governance Code Issued by the
LCommistion;

b. The company has complied with the provision of the relevant Bangladesh Secretaral
Srandards |BSS) a8 adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (IC58]
a5 reguired by this Code;

¢. Proper Books and records have been kept by the company as requited wunderihe
Company Act, 1994, the securities laws and other relevant laws; and

d. The gowernance of the company Is satisfactory

Placo: Dhaka .Alﬁn Hm‘r: I:u,

Dated: OF November, 2024 Chartered Accountants
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Annexure-C

[As per condition No. 1(5)(xxvii)l

Compliance Status of Corporate Governance Code of BSEC

Simims of compliamce with the condilbon imposed by the Commishon's Nolificathon Moo BSECUMRRODH MMM
158207 Admin'80, dabed 03 Jupe 2008 issued ender seetion 200 of the Seowrities and Exchange Ondinasce, 1965%:

[Heport under Condition Mo, 9)

Comdition

Title

Complinnce Stalus
(Put ¥ in the

appropriate columsy

Compdied Hgltll j

Remarks
(il anyh

Board of Directars:

Size of the Board of [Mrecters:

The total mamber of members of & company’s Board of
Dhrectors shall not be less than 5 (five) and more than 20
i rwenly .

Independent Birectors:

[ F 1]

Ap least I qow) directors of one-filth 11/%) of the 1oeal |
mamber of Directors in the compamy*s Board, whichever is |
higher, shall be independen directors; amy Fraction shall be
corsidered B0 the next anleger of whole pumber for
caleulating number of independent directon s

Proaided that the Board skadl appoing o least 1(ong) female
independent director in the Board of Direciors of the
CORIPANY

Presently Ihere
are 2 {rwa)
Isdependent
male Direcicas in
the Bnard,
Independent
[emale Director
will be appointed
within the
stipulated time,

2K by

“independent direcior™ means 3 direcior—

Withomt contraventbon of any provision of asy other laws, for the purpose of this clamse, sn

2N bl

wwhso cither does not hold any share i the company or halds
bess than one pmmulmmnuurnnmwd-upsmu
ol the company

li2uhuing

who i wamnhhr-:mmuhm connectod |
with the company's amy sponsor or direcsor or nominaned
director of shaneholder af the comspany or any of s |
assOciales, siater conooms, swbsidiaries and parents or |
kolding emities who holds one percent (1% or more shanes |
of the total paid-up shares of the compasy on (ke basis of
family refationship and his or her family members also shall
mal kald shove mentioned shares in the compary';

sister, son-in-law and daughser-in-law shall be considered |
as family members

1 2Wha fiH)

awha has mol been an esecutive of the company im |

immediately preceding I {van) financial years:

N
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Comdition

t'l-[,'h:!ﬂ Sinfus
iPut % im the

appropriate column)

Ml

Complied hia

Hemarks
(6 any

lZMbEiv)

who does npot bune aiy other nelatiosship, whether
pecuniary ar otherwise, with the company or its subsideary
o asaccialod companies;

Ti2ubvh

who i not a member or TREC ( Trading Right Entitlkernent
Cerificase) holder, direcior or officer of amy siock
excharge;

liZibpni)

whao is not & sharchalder, director excepling independent
director or officer of any member or TREC halder of stock
exchange or an nlermediary of the capital marke;

12 Wb viilk

wha 4 nod a partner or an executive of was nol a partner or
an evedulive during the preceding 3 (three) vears of the
concerned compamy’s Malutory audit fiem or audit fkem
cngaged in imernal sudh serviced of sudit firm conducting
special awdit ar professional cenifying compliance of this
Ciode,;

N2 Wb wrii b

whi is not independent director in more than % | fivel Hsted
Companics:

W 2E bWy

whi has not been repofted as a defaulier in the latest Credil
Informatson Bureau (C18) report of Bangladesh Bank for
man-payeent of any loam or advance of obligation 1o a bank
or a financinl instivunion; and

ViZu bR}

whe s not boen convicted for a criminal offence involving
msaral pargicide;

liZHch

The independent direcion s ) shall be appoimted by the Basnd
and approved by the shareholders in the Annual General
Meeting [ AGM:

Provided that the Board skall appoint the imdependent
direcioe. swbject 1o prior consers of the Commission, sfier
due coesideration of recommendation of (ke Nomination
and Remumeration Commitee (NRC) of the company;

i Zud)

The post of independes directan(s) canmot remain vacas
T mos than M {ninety ) days; anid

o
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Camdition
M,

Title

Compliande Status
(Pt v im the
appropriate colamnp

Complied 1““ |

Remarks
(il sy

12Heh

The tenure of office of an independent director shalll be for
a pericd of 3 (keee) years, which may be extended for |
[z} bemre only,

Provided that a Former independent director may be
considered Bor neappointment for another lenure after a time
gap of onc fenure, e, three years from his or her
completion of anseculive twa lenures [Le. 4ix years]:

Provided funher that the independent divecior shall nos be

subject 1o retiremeont by rotation as per the Companies Act,
159L

-,

03

Cualification of Independent Mdrector:

R ET

e —

Indepemdent director shall be a knowledgeable individual
with iniegrity who is able o ennme compliance with
financial laws, regulalory requirements and corporaie laws
and cam make meaminglial contribution to the business;

L]

Independent director shall have following qualifications:

I 3ubxi)

Business Lesder who ks or was a promoter of directar of an
wnlisied company having minimus paid-up capitad of Tk,
10k 00 mmillion o any Fsbed company or @ mensher of amy
rational or imernational chamber of comments of nngisierod
business assaciatian: or

MiA

liF bl

Corporate Leader who & of was 8 wop level executive nodg

lvwer than Chief Executive Officer or Managing Director

or Deputy Manraging Director oe Chief Financial Officer or

Head of Finance or Accounts or Company Secretary or |
Head of Internal Audit and Compliance or Head of Legal

Service of a candidale with equivalesd position of an

anlisted company hasving minkmien paid-up capital of Tk,

1M1 00 mallion or of & lisied company; or

LLEL LI

Former or existing offlzisl of govemment or statulory o
autonomogs or regullatory body in the position not below
Hth Grade of the nabonal pay scale, who has ai least
educational backgrownd of bachelor™s degroe in economics
of gommeice or business or Law:

Provided thai in case of appointment of existing official as

independent  direcior, It roquines clearance from  the
crganization where he or she is in service; or

LERE LT 1

Unmiversity Teacher who bas educwiosal hﬁﬂ'ﬂfﬂﬂﬂ in
Ecomomdes of Commsroe or Business Studies or Law; or

HiA

ul

o
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Comdivion
o,

Tiike

Compliance Status
i(Pwr v im e
appropriate colummn)

: ol
Complied complied

Hemarks
(i amy)

[TETTEY

Professional who is or was an advocate practicing at beast in
the High Court Division of Bangladesh Supreme Court or a
| Chartered Accoantant or Codt and Management Accoustant
| of Chartered Fimancial Analyst or Chariered Cestified
| Accountami or Cerfified Public Accountamt or Chartered
Marmagement  Accowrlant of Chaered Seccrelary  of
equivalent qualification;

B

13xel

The independent director shall Bave at least 10 (1en) vears
of expersences in ary fleld mentiossd in clause (bl

1i3xdy

In speciad cases, the above qualifications or expersences

may be relaced subject to prior spproval of the
Commission.

NA

li4h

Druality af Chairpersen of the Board of Director: and Ma

maging Director or Chiel Executive Officer:-

lidNaj

Managing Director (MD) andior Chief Executive CHficer
(CED) of te compasy shall be Fflled by different
individunls.

UL LT

The Mapaging Direcior (MD) andor Chief Executive
Oficer (CEO) of a listed company shall not hold the same
pasiion in another Hsted company;

14 HEh

The Chairperson of the Board shall be elected from among
the nos-execidtive directors of the company:

Tid i

The Board shall chearly define respective roles amd
responsibilities of the Chairperson amd the Managing
Mircctor and o CThiel Executive (MTicer;

liduel

In the absence of the Chairperson of the Board, the
remaining members may elect one of themselves from pon-
excculive directors & Chainperson for that  particular
Board’s meeting: the reason of absence of the regular
Chairperson shall be duly recordead in the minutes.

MIA

3]

The Drectors” Hepaort to Shareholders:

I3 uih

An iedustry cutlook ard pessible future developments in
the indusery;

I3 HE)

i S Wiiii

| factors, threat to sustwinability and megative impact on

| enviranment. if any;

Risks and concerns including imtemal and extormal risk

IS Wiv)

A discussion on Cost of Goods sold, Gross Prodin Margin
and Net Profit Margim, where applicable;

1SR

A discussion on continuity of any extracedinary activitics

and their implications {gain or loss);

M/A

o
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omnilition

LN

Complianee Status
(Pt v e b
appropriate columms)

el
Complied chmpliil

Remarks
(il any

1 EWvil

A detailed discussion on relaled party tramsactions along
with a statement shawing amounl, nature of relsed party.,
nature of iransactions and basks of iransactices of sll relaicd
party Erasact s

115 W wiih

A statement of uliliration of proceeds raised through public
isaues. mights issues and'or ey other instruments:

14 5 W wiiah

An explanation if the financial resubts deteriomie after the
company goes for Indial Public Offering (IR0}, Repeal
Fublic (HTering  RPEH, Rights Share Offer, Direcs Listing.
Ele.L

TiSHixd

An explanation on any :i;nfm variance that ocosrs
between Quanierly Financial performances and Anmual
Financal Staemonis;

A

[ & 1]

A samemsem of remuneration paid 1o the direciors inclading

IETR1T]

Ammmm-ﬂmﬂmﬁmwm

muamzgement of the issuer compary presesi fairly its sate
of alTairs, the result of #s operations, cash Mows and

changes In equity;

liSHxH)

A statemmemt that proper books of account of the isseer
company have been maintained;

115 Wwiid

A sumemsent th appropriase sccoumting policies have boen
comsistentby applied In prepasation of the Ffnancial
stmiements and thai ihe accounting ¢stimases are hased on
reasomable and pradent judgment;

HEuxivh

A statement that [nigrmational Accounting Stamdards (1AS)
o Imtemnational Firancial Reporting Sandards (IFRS), as
applicable in Bangladesh, have hbeen followed im
preparation af 1he Gnancial statements and any depariure
there from has been adequatchy disclosnd,

(TR

A statensent that the sysiem of ingermal conteed |5 sousd
in design and has been eMectively implemented and
moniored;

REET

from shusive actions by, or in the interest of, congrolling
sharehalders scting either dercctly or indirectly and have
effective mears of redress;

11 5 W wviih

A stabement that there is no significant doubt upon the issuer
company s abdity o continug as a going concemn, if the
msuer company i nod considered 1o be a gaing comcern, the
fact along with reasoms theve of shall be disciosed;

15 wviidy

An explanation that significant deviations from the last
year's operating results of the {ssuer compamy shall be
highlighted and the reasons thereod shall be explained.

lidWxing

A seatement where key opersting and fimancial daia of ot
least preceding  {Five) years shall b summarized:

Mr.}
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country and the globs;

Compliance Status
{Put 4 in the Remarks
C'-"r:l'h' Title spproprisie colummsj [if amy )
| Compled | ompiiea
1) A explanation on s reasons il the issuer company has not WA
ke declared dividend (cash or spack ) for the vear, e
“jluﬂi Board"s statement o the effect that no bonus share or gock J
) Liwclrml has Been ar shall be declaned as interim dividend;
? &4 The toial umber of Board meetings held daring the year i
(TET LTI and ndance by each director: ]
1Sl A report on the pattern of shareholding disclosing (he apgregate nunber of thures (abong with name-
witne deinils where sinted below) held by:
NS Kl Parens or Swbsidiary or Assocised Companses and other J
K ; related partics (nanse-wike details
Direcioes, Chiefl Executive Officer, Compasy Scerclan,
HSWocEliND) Chief Financial Odficer, Head of Internal Audil and J
Compliands and their ypouses and minor children inames
wise detalks;
li¥uaxiiined | Executives: and ¥
NS sxiiind) f:‘.hum'hl::hnl-ﬁng K ptrmlu tﬁ:ﬂw maone volimg 4
R imieresd im the company | neme-wise detalls;
tisHanhy | IR of the appoiniment or reappointment of 2 director, a disclosure on the following infarmation
: fo the sharchodiders:
I Suaxivial | A brief resmme of the direcior, Y
|lﬁhuiifhbr mm of his or her expertie in specific Tunctional arcas. n
Mames of companies in which the person alse hobds the
Hi*uxxivic) | direciosship and 1he membership of committees of the | i
- Baoard;
A Management®s [Mscussion and Amalysis signed by CED or MID presenting detailed smabvsis of the
Ii3Hssv) | Compamy’s position and operations along with & briel discession of changes in ihe fnascial
statements, among oibers, focusing oa:
SN ovin) :::;T: pﬂ-lu‘.'l-tl e esiimation for preparaibon of d
changes in accounting policies and estimation. i any.
NSN xxwhb) clearly describlng the effieet on Anancial performance or o
results and financial position &8 well a3 cash fows in
absodule figure for such changes:
comparsive analvsis (mcluding efects of inflation) of
SKwHE) financial performance or results and finsscial position as 4
will @5 cash fMows Tor current financial year with immediace
preceding flve years explaining reasons thereof:
compare such financial pesformance or resubts and financial
liWxxvid) | posilcn as well a3 cash flows with the peer indusiry iy
seenario;
NSKREwNED briefly explam the financial and economic scenario of the J

o
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Condition
N

Tinle

Compliance Statas
{Pat % in the
appropriste colum)

Complied

M
complied

ii ll,m:l

liSHxswH I}

ﬁhuﬂmmmdﬂmﬁﬂ-ﬂumm

explaining such sk and concerns mitigation plam of the |

company; and

LRSI

fisiure plam or projection or forecast for company’s
operation, performance amd  fnencial  position,  wilh
Justification thereod, |.e., actasl position shall be explaised
tix the sharchalders in the nest AGM;

V5 Hanvih

D barmtion or cenification by the CEO asd the CFOr 8o the
Board & required wnder condition ™Mo, 33} shall be
dischosed as per Ansevune-A;

Y

1S W i

The report as well as oertificate regarding compliance of
conditions of this Code 4 requaned under condition Mo. @
shall be disclosed as per Annexure-E snd Annexure-{;

1455 xxviiih

The Drectors” sepon 1o the sharcholders does not require 1o
include the busimess strmlegy or technical specificmics
melargd B0 products of services, which have business
confidentiality.

1161

Mectings of the Board of Directors:

The company shall conduct itz Beard meetings and record
the minutes of the mectings as well as keep required books
and records im line with e provisions of the relevant
Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (B55) as sdopsed by the
Institme of Chasered Secretaries of Bangladesh {IC5B) in
20 fr as those standerds sfe mot icosdisient with any
comditson of this Code.

147

Code of Conduet for the Chairperson, other Board mem

Imers and Chiel Evecutive Offkcer:

1 THap

T Beprdl shall by down a code of conduct, based on the
recommendation of the Nomisation and Remuseraiion
Caommitier iNREC) at condition Mo 6, for the Chasrpersan,
octher board members and Chicl Executive Officer of the
company;

[

1§ Tk

' The code ol conduct as determined by the SRC shall be
posicd on the website of the company including. among

others. prudem conduact and  behavior; confidentiality;
confligt of imewss; compliance with lwws, nales and
regulations: prohibdiion of ssider trading: relationship with

environment. employees, customers and suppliers; and |

indepe A

Governance of Board of Direciars of Subsidiary Company:

Jiad

Prowisions relating to the composition of the Board of (e
haolding company shall be made applicable o ihe
somposition of the Board of the subsidiary company:

il

A least | (one) independent director om the Board of the
haldsng company shall be & direcior oa the Bassd of the
subsidinry compasy

In progess

o
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Compliance Satus
_ iPut i the Remarks
L8 ondition Title appropriste eolumn T

M,

Lt
Complied complied

| The minuses of the Hoard meceting af the subsidary
2k company shall b placed foe review at the following Boasd W
moeting of the holding compeny;

| The mimunes of the respective Brard meeting of the balding
idy company shall state that they bave reviewed the xffales of W
the subsidiary company also;

The Audit Commiittee of the holding comgany shall abso
He) review the (mancial stafemenls, i pariculs  the L
imvesiments made by the subsidisry company.
3 Managing Director (MD) or Chiel Executive Officer (CEO). Chief Financinl Officer (CFO), Head of
Intermal Awdit snd Complismes (HIAL) and Company Secretary ({5)

e Appaintment
Bosrd shall appoim a Managing Director (MD) or Chiel
Executive Offier (CED), a Company Secretary (051, a

HENE) | Chiel Fimancial Officer (CFO) and & Head of Insernal Audit |
and Conmpliance (HIAC);
The positsons of the Mamaging Diirector (MD) or Chael

1Nk Executive Cifllcer (CECH, Company Secretary {05, Chiel J

Fimancial Officer (CFO) and Head of Intermal Andit and
Complisnce | HIAC) shall be filed by dii¥orent individunals:
The MD or CEO, C5. CFO and HIAC of a lissed company
shall pol bold any executive position in any other compasy
ni the same time:
Provided that CFO or C5 of any listed company may be
appointed for the same position in any other listed o man-
Jibue listed compamy ander the same growp for reduction of cost Y
or for wechnical expertise, with prior approval of the
Commission;
Peovided Further that the remuneration and perguisites of
the sald CFO or €5 shall be shared by appointing
companies proponionately;
The Board shall chearly define respective  roles,
30 dh responsibilities and dulies of the CFO, the HIAT and the v
5

Thee D ar CEQ, C5, CFO-and HIAC shall not be remaved
fram their position withaut appreval of the Board as well as

HINS | iamadions - disscmiastion > the Comemision and sock | ¥
exchangois), |
Regquirement 1o attend Board of Directors Meetings:

The M0 or CEG, CF, CFO and HIAC of the company shall
M2 armend the meetings of the Board: Provided that the C5, CFO J

and‘or the HIAC shall not attend such part of o meeting of
the Board which involves considerntion of &n agenda item
relaling to their perseaal mamers,
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Compliance Status
Condition iPai + im the Remarks
u?:‘ Tiike appropriate colummng (i1 amy
Comrtet | comies |
N Duties of Managing Director (MDY or Chief Execwiive Officer (CFEO) and Chief Financial Officer
{CF
e T The M} or CEO and CFO shall centify ta the Board that they have reviewed financial statements for the
- woar and that 1o the best of their knowledge and belief:
these sttements do nod coniain amy maierially usrue
HiWakiy | sintemeni or omil any material fact or contain stmements N
that might be misleading: and
these statements togeiber present @ brue and Fair view of the
X 3Manily | company's affsirs and are in compliance with exissing )
acoounting stasdards and applicable laws;
| The MD or CEO and CFO shall also certify that there are, |
e the b of knowdedge and beliel, no transaciions entered
i Xabp imio by the company durmg the year which are fraudislent, L
illegal or in viclmbon of the code of conduct for the
company’s Board or its members;
HINe) The cenification of the MD cr CEQ snd CFO shall be N
: disclosed in the Amnual Report.
4 Baard of Directors® (sl tos:
Hil Audi Commiites; and ¥
Al Maomdnmpon ard Remuneration Commbiee N
5 | Audit Committee: )
Sihh Responsibility to the Board of Directors:
o The company shall have an Audit Commitiee as 8 sub- J
i wi‘lm of the Board;
 The Audit Committee shall assist the Board in ensuring thay
81l the: financisl siatements reflect true and faly view of the siaie i
: ol affairs of the company and in ensuring a good mondioeing ?
system within the business;
The Audii Commimes shall be responsibie 1o the Board: the
S lWeh diitics of the Audit Comminee skall be clearly set forth in )
writing,
Iy Constitution of the Amdit Commiites:
S 2Na) The Audit Committee shall be composed of at least 3 (hree) !
N2 i e Y
The Boasd shall appoint members of e Audi Commiliee
who shall be non-esecutive direciors of the company
S(2b} ﬂ:::-rpliu Chairperson of the Beard and shall include a2 i
least | {one) independent direcior: >

o
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Conditbon
LTS

Compliance Sintus
{Put ¥ im the
appropriate column)

Complied ,f“‘..l ,

Hemarks
{ifanyj

H2NcH

All memshers of the aadin committes should be “fimancially
liternie™ and at lesst | (ongh mensher shall have accounting
ar related financial masagement background asd 10 (smb
wears of suth experienoe;

5 2udy

When the term of service of any Commitiee membser cxpines
of there is any circumstance causing any Comimitos
enember ko be unable to Bald affice before expiration of the
teren ol serviee, thas making the namber of the Commines
members (o b lower than the preseribed number of 3
(three | persoms, the Board skall appaint the now Committes

| member to fill up the vacancy immediately o not laer than

G0 (sixtyh days from the date of vacancy in the Commiies
b ensure continuity of the performance of work olhe Audit
Commitlee:

WA

3(2xe)

 The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the
 Consmitice:

H2nh

The quorum of the Audit Commities meeting shall not
constitute without a1 leass | (one) independent direetir,

Chalrpersos of ithe Audit Committes:

S 3Wa)

The Board shall select | (ome) member of the Audie
Commitiee 1o be Chairperson of the Audil Commitlee, who
shall be an independent direcior;

LEY LY

Im the shsende of the Chairpersom of the Audit Cemmilseoe.
the remaining membors may clect one of themselves as
Chairperson for that paniculas mesting, in that case there
shall be no problem of constinaing & quorum as required
wnder condstion Mo, 5(4§bj and the reason of absence of the
reguler Chairpersos shall be duly recorded in the minutes.

A

RED T

Chairperson of the Audit Commitiee shall remain present in
the Anmaial General Mecting | AGM):

Provided that in absence of Chairpersom of the Audi
Commitiee, any other member rom the Audit Commines
shall be selected to be present in the ansual general meeting

(AGM) and reason for absence of the Chasrperson of the

Audit Comminee shall be recorded in the minuses of the
AGNL

=)

Meeting of the Awidit Committee:

SHANa)

The Audin Commince shall conduct sl lesst its four
meclings in a financinl vear:

Provided that any emergency mesting in addition o regulsr
meeting may be convened ab the request of amy one of the
members of the Commitlee;

o




Ahsan . Manzurs co.
Charered Accountants

CW.:II.IIIBE Simius
. - {Put < in the Remarks
- Tithe appropriate column) {if any)
.‘ . o
Complied complicd
The quossm of the mesting of the Audit Committe shall be
S4b) comstiiated in presence of either twa members or two-thind
: of the members of the Awdit Comeigiee, whichever is :
highsr, whsie presence of an independent director is o massi,
&) Raole of Audit Commbnies:
RV Oversee the financial repeming process: o
H5b) monilos choice of accouming poliches and principles; !
monior Intenal Asdic ssd Compliance process bo enswre
that il is adoquaicly resourced, including approval of the
HINEL | jssermad Awdit and Compliance Plan and review of the v
Intermal Audit amd Complinnee Repod:
Had) eversee hirimg and performance of exiernal auditons; W
hold mecting with the external or seatutcey asditors. For
5{5hel review of the anmial firancial slatements before submission W
to the: Board for approsal or adoption;
5K review along with the management, the smnual financial i
) statements befor: submission 1o the Board for spproval; b
review along with the maragement. the quarterly and falf
S5Hgh | yewdy fnancial statements before submission 1o the Board .:
- Euupp_mﬂl:
HEWhy | meview the adequacy of internal asdit functicn; 'l
— fewrew the Management's Discussion and Anabysis before \
y disclosing in the Annual Report; i
- mewiew statement of all related party transactions submined o
fry the management:; )
sgsyky | TEview Management Letters or Letter of Intermal Control "
o | weakness issued by stataory asditors;
cversen the determination of msdit fees based on scope and
S5 Kl magnitide, level of experiise deploved and time requined !
i for effective audit and evaluate the perfomuance of external "
Auditors; and
oversee whether the proceeds ratsed through Initial Public
Offering {IPO) or Repent Public Offering (RPO) or Rights
HS¥Mm) Share CHTer have Been ulilized as per ihe purposes stated in ¥
redevamt offer document or prospectus approved by (he
Cammission,
] Heporting of the Audit Commitiee:
HibWa) Reporting to the Bosrd of Directsrs:

Q‘HJ
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hsan.ManzursCo..

Comilalion
N,

Compliance Siatus
(Pt o i the
appropriate column )

Mo
Coavplied Bed

Hemarks
(if nmy )

SiGHakiy

The Awmdit Commiites shall report on its sctivities o the
Boand.

k|

W an iy

The Audit Committee shall immediately report (o the Board on the following findings, if any:

SUGMap i Hak

report on conflicts of intereses;

NA

T FTTLT

suspected or presumed frasd or regulasity of malerial
defect entified in the intermal sudit and complisnce
process o in the financksl stasements;

A

SENapifc)

| and

suspehed infringement af lnws, regulatory compliances
including securitics nilatod baws, nales and regulatsons;

M

SénMiind)

any other matter which the Audit Commiiee deers
necessary shall be disclosed 1o the Board immedinely:

M

b

Reporting to the Authoritie:

If the Awdis Committee has reporied io the Bosed abow
anything which has material impact on ke finamcial
condition and resules of operation and has discussed with
the Board and the managemem that sy rectification is
necessary and if the Andin Commines fids that ssch
rectification has Be¢m unreasonably igmored, the Awdit
Committes shall report sh fisding to the Commission,
upaa iporng of such matiers o ke Boasd Tor three times
ar completion of a period of & {six) monghs. from the date of
I reponting 1o the Board, whichever is carlier.

MA

T

Reporting (o the Sharcholders anid General lnvestors:
Report on sctivithes canied out by the Audii Commitice,
mncluding any repon made o the Board under condizion %o,
SibWaMii) above during the year, shall be signed by the
Chalrperson of the Audit Commitice and disclosed in the
annal report of the fsswer company.

Nomination and Remumeration Commiries {WR )

il

Responsibility vo the Baard of Directors

£ | Hap

The company shall have a Nomination and Remuneration
Commimes {NRC) a8 a sub-committee of the Bogd:

&1 bk

The SRC shall assist the Board in formulstion of 1he
raménalion criteria or policy for determining qualifications,
positive anribates, experiences amd  independence of
directors and top Bevel executive as well as & policy for
Formal process of conssdering remuneration of directors, 1op
lewel execulive;

Bl W)

The Terms of Reference | ToR) of the NRC shall be cleariy
el Forth in writing covering the areas stated af the condigion

Nou6e S b,

s
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Comditios
TN

Compliance Statas
Pl in ihe
appropriaie cobuma)

Complied _Ff,ﬁ'll |

Hemarks
(i amy)

20

Constiturion of the NRC:

i+ 2 Hab

The Commitiee shall compeise of m beast three members
inclusding s independent director;

& 2Kh)

Al beasy 02 (two) members of the Comminiee shall b non-
execubive direcions;

2N

Members of the Commince shall be nominsied and
appainged by the Board;

& 2

The Board shall have authority 80 remave and appoint sy
member of the Commitiee;

G 2Eel

In case of death, resignation, disqualtfication, or removal of
any member of the Comminee of in any other cases of
vagarscs, the board shall fill the vacancy within 180 {one
hundred clghty | days of oocurring such vacancy in the
Commitice;

M

2NN

The Chairperson of the Commitiee may appoint or co=ops
vy experrald expert and'or memberis) of fafl © the
Committee as advizor wha shall be pon-voting memiber, if
the Chaimerson feels that advice of suggestion from such
extermal expert and'or memberis) of staff shall be roquired
or valuahle for the Commitice:

2ug)

| The company secretary shall &1 as the secretary of the

Commies.

& Xuhp

The guorum of the NRC mecting shall poa constinaie
withowt attendance of 21 keast & independent director.

HAHl

M member of the MRC shall receive, either directly or
indirectly, any remuneration  for sy sdvisory  or
cansutancy role or ctherwise, other than Direcior"s fees or
hancaarism from the companmy,

B(3)

Chairperson of the NRC:

LERLETH

The Board shall select | jone) member of te NRC 1o be
Chairperson of the Commines, who shall be an indeperdent
director;

& 3u b

Inthe sbsence of the Chairperson of the MR, the remaining
mepnbers. may clect one of themselves as Chairperson for
that particulpr mecting, the reason of absence of the regular
Chasirperson shall be disly recorded inthe minutes:

MiA

B iNch

Th:cui:pmmnfhxucmnmu.mmm
meeting { AGM) 10 answer the gacrics of the shareholders:

Provided that in absesse of Chairperson of the NRC, any
other member from the MR shall be selected 1o be present
in the anmusl general meeting (AGM) Bor answering the
skarcholder’s querics amd reason for absence of the
Chairperson of the NRC shall be recordied in the minsses of
e AN,

ot
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hsan Manzursco.

Comidition
LTS

Camplisnce Siatas
iPut % in the
appropriate eolumn)

Complied

Noi
compplied

Hemarks
{if any}

B4}

Meetimg of the MR

Gid Hal

The NRO shall conduct 8 beast ane mesting in a financial
vear;

H4nh)

The Chairperson of the SAC may convene any cmergency
enoeting upen roquest by any member of the NRC;

A

AN Ch

The quorem of the meetsng of the NRC shall be constilated
in presence of either twe membbers of two third ol the
members of the Commiteee, whichever is higher, where
prezence of an independent director i must a8 reguined
ander condition Mo, & 28h);

B d)

The procecdings of cach meeting of the NRC shall duly be
recorded in the mimuies and such minutes shall be
confirmed in the next meeting of the NRC;

&5}

Hode of the NRC:

LR

MRC shall be independent and responsible or accountabsle
to the Board and 10 the shareholders;

W

B SHb)

Beoard:

S{EH LN

MR shall oversee, amang cihers, the Folbowing matters and make report with recommendation to the

| enieutive, considering the following:

lhf-dulhi the eriteria for debermining quiﬂullnn. positive atiributes and independence of a
director and recommeend & palicy 1o (ke Board, relating to the remuneration of ihe directors, tap kevel

B dEbainn)

b level and composition of remuneragion is reasonable and
sufficien 1o afiract, retain and motivate suitable directorsna
run the compasy ssceeishally:

6 S bwinh

the relaticnship of remumeration 1o performance fs clear and

B S ubRiNch

nernuneralion o direciors, top level execulive imvolves a
halance berwesn fined and incentive pay reflecting shon
and long-aerm performance ohjectives appropriste 1o the
warking of the company and its gosls;

LU LT

devising & policy on Boards diversity itaking inbo

corsideration  age.  gender, caperince,  eitbmicity,

& 2 B i

identifying persons who are qualified 1o become directons
and wha may be sppednied in top level executive position
their sppoiniment and removal to the Board,

SR

imdependent direciors and the Board;

formmlating, ihe criterin for evalustion of performance of |

G 5w v

identifying the company™s needs for employess =t different
levels and delermine their selection, transfer or replacement
and promaotion criteria; and

o



m\sun AManzurs Co..
Charered Accountanis

E‘m-pll!?u Status
. 7 (| Put v im the Hemarks
¢ ll;:ilﬂ Thke sppropriate column) il any}
lied Ml
v cimiplicd
SSNBNEN doveloping. recommending and reviewing amnually the d '
3 company”s human resources and training poficies:
The company  shall disclose the nominabion and
&5kKe) remaneration policy and ibe evaleation criteria and d
o foth activitics of WRC during the year af a glance in its anmual
FEHMT
7 External or Statwtory Auditors:
A The issuer company shall nat engage its external or statmtory seditors to perform the following
% services of the company, mamely:
TLIHiG jipﬁﬁﬂ]mxﬁmhmmﬂmwﬁjmnphlm k|
MKk financial isformation syslems design and implementaion b
+ Vi | book-keeping or other scrvices elabed to the accouniing r
L records or financial siatemenis
T Wivi broker=denler serviogs L
TiHv) menuarial servioes )
Tl Intermal audil services or special audit services o
TilNvii} | amy service that the Audis Comminee determines. W
T EN il wadit or certification services on gompliasce of corporate 4
governance as required under condition Mo 9015 and
TilWini | amy other service that crestes conflicl of interest ¥
o parirer or employees of the exiernal audit firms shall
posatss any share of the comrpany they audin at least during
| the tenure of their sudit assignment of that compary: his o
Wy | ber family members also shall nol hold any shares in ibe )
W) | wasd company: o
sister, son-in-lavw and daughter-in-law shall be conshdened
as family members.
Represeniative of external or statutory asdibors shall resmain
A1 present in the Shacholders’ Meeting (Amnual General
Meeting or Extraordinary General Meeting) to answer the X
queries of the sharchobders.
M:.hu!n-lunmﬁu by the Company:
1) The comparty shall have an official website linked with the |
website of the stock exchange. ¥
2 The company shall keep the website flunctional from the |
- date of listing. h
The company skall make available the detalled disclotunes
B3 an ity website as requined under the listing regulations of the ¥
concerned stock exchanges sk

o
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Compliance Status
i | Pult © im 1le Renesrks
Candition Title appropriate column) (il amy

M, ot
Complied Hed

¥ Reporting and Compliance of Corporate Governance:

| The company <hall obtsin a cenificaie from a practicing
Professsonal  Accoustant  of  Secrctary  (Chanered
Agcommiant of Cost and Massgensest  Adcosmant o
Chariered Secreiary) other than its statuiory sudiors or )
aadit firm on yearly basis megarding compliamce of
conditions  of Corporse  Govermance Code of 1he
Crosmmedssion and shall such certificane shall be disclosed in
the Annusl Repor,

Sl

The professionl who will provide the certificate on
compliance of this Corporate Governance Code shall be i
appointed by the shareholders in the ansmad genernl
meeding.

R

The directors of the company shall state, in sccordance with
Wiy the Annevare-C attached, in the directors’ report whether ¥
the company has complicd with these conditions or not
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Corporate
Governance in
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Corporate governance is an ethically driven business
process that is committed to values aimed at
enhancing an organization’s capacity to create
wealth. This is ensured by taking ethical business
decisions and conducting business with a firm
commitment to values, while meeting stakeholders’
expectations. At ADN Telecom Limited, it is
imperative that our Company affairs are managed in
a fair and transparent manner. This is vital to gain and
retain the trust of our stakeholders.

ADN Telecom Limited (ADNTEL) is committed to
maintaining good corporate governance to improve
accountability and transparency, and safeguard
shareholders’ interests. The Company has complied
with the applicable conditions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code issued by the
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
(BSEC). The Company has also obtained the auditor’s
certificate regarding compliance with the condition
of the Corporate Governance Code for the year
2024, which is provided in this Annual Report.

The Company believes in the highest standards of
good and ethical corporate governance practices.
Good corporate governance practices stem from the
culture and mindset of the organization. It is also
believed that corporate governance is not only about
enacting regulations and procedures but also
maintaining and establishing an environment of trust
and confidence among various stakeholders.
Corporate governance is a journey for constantly
improving sustainable value creation and is an
upward-moving target.

The Company also believes that it not only has legal,
contractual and social responsibilities, but also has
obligations towards all its stakeholders. ADNTEL
strives to provide all its stakeholders with access to
clear, adequate and factual information relating to
the Company.

To provide factual information to the stakeholders,
the Company has been maintaining its official website
(www.adntel.com.bd) linked with the website of the
Stock Exchanges, in which the information pursuant
to the regulatory requirements are uploaded
regularly.

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board of Directors serves as stewards of the
Company’s interests, aiming to optimize long-term
value by offering management guidance and
strategic direction. Their mandate encompasses
several crucial tasks, including overseeing the
Company’s strategic trajectory, evaluating corporate
performance, upholding the highest ethical
standards  of  governance, assessing the
effectiveness of risk management and mitigation
measures, reviewing internal financial controls,
authorizing and monitoring strategic investments,

overseeing board and senior management
succession planning, and ensuring compliance with
regulatory, environmental, and corporate social
responsibility obligations.

Furthermore, the board is entrusted with ensuring
transparency in all dealings with stakeholders,
evaluating the performance of key executives, and
aligning the Company’s remuneration policy with the
long-term interests of both the Company and its
stakeholders.

Directors are expected to actively participate in all
board and committee meetings, which are scheduled
well in advance. The Company provides the
necessary assistance to facilitate directors’
attendance at meetings, whether in person or
through audiovisual means.

Finally, all board members are committed to ensuring
that their engagements in other capacities do not
compromise their fiduciary responsibilities as
directors of the Corporation.

Change in Board Composition
As of the date of this report, the board composition
has undergone the following changes:

Mr. Khondkar Atique-e-Rabbani, one of the
Independent Directors of the Company, has resigned
from the Board upon completing his second term
with effect from 6 January 2024. The board
acknowledges and expresses its sincere appreciation
for his invaluable guidance and significant
contributions to the Company throughout her tenure.

1. BOARD INDEPENDENCE AND GOVERNANCE

In keeping with the BSEC condition of Corporate
Governance Code, the Board of Directors of ADNTEL
are upholding the highest standards of governance.
The Board ensures the integrity of financial reporting
system, financial and internal control, risk
management and compliance with the applicable
laws. The Board also oversees the functioning of the
Company and of its management and ensures that
every decision taken is in the best interest of the
stakeholders of the Company. The Board, while
performing its fiduciary duties, recognizes its
responsibilities towards the shareholders and other
stakeholders, upholds the highest standards in all
matters and ensures proper delegation of
appropriate authority to the senior officials of the
Company for effective management of operations.

The Board of Directors of ADNTEL considers that its
constitution shall comprise of Directors with a mix of
skill, experience and personal attributes, that will
allow the Directors individually and the Board
collectively to discharge their responsibilities and
duties efficiently and effectively to understand the

ADNTEL
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business of the Company as well as assess the
performance of the management.

The composition of the Board embraces diversity.
The Directors possess a wide range of experience,
expertise and specialized skills to assist in
decision-making and leading the Company for the
benefit of its shareholders. The Company’s policy on
Board's diversity as required under the Corporate
Governance Code of BSEC has been disclosed in this
annual report and is also available on our website, at
www.adntel.com.bd.

(a) Chairman

The Chairman of the Board is elected by the
directors. He is a non-executive Director. The Board
considers that the Chairman works independently.

The Chairman serves as the primary link between the
Board and the Management and works with the
Managing Director and Company Secretary to set the
agenda of the Board Meeting. He provides leadership
to the Board and ensures that the Board works
effectively and discharges its responsibilities
efficiently.

Responsibilities of the Chairman

The Chairman of the Board shall be responsible for
the management, development and effective
performance of the Board of Directors. The Chairman
is responsible for leadership of the Board and in
particular, he will:

« Ensure effective operations of the Board and its
committees in conformance with the highest
standards of corporate governance;

- Ensure effective communication with
shareholders, regulators, governments entities,
Chamber bodies and other relevant stakeholders
to ensure that the views of these groups are
understood by the Board,;

- Set the agenda, style and tone of the Board
discussions to promote constructive debate and
effective decision-making;

« Ensure that all the Board committees are properly
established, composed, and operational;

- Support the Managing Director in strategy
formulation and more broadly, provide support
and give advice;

. Ensure an effective relationship among the
Directors, acting as the principal conduit for
communication and issues relating to business
strategy, planned acquisitions and corporate
governance;

I ADNTEL
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. Establish a harmonious and open relationship with
the Managing Director;

Ensure that Board committees are properly
. structured and all corporate governance matters
are fully addressed; and

» Encourage active engagement by all members of
the Board.

(b) Chairman and Managing Director of the
Company are different persons

Chairman of the Board and Managing Director of the
Company are different persons with different roles
and responsibilities, defined by the Board and
thereby preventing unregulated powers of decision
making single handedly. The Chairman is a
non-executive Director while the Managing Director
is an executive, ex-officio Director.

Role of the Managing Director

The Managing Director is responsible for running the
business of the Company. He is also responsible for
formulating as well as implementing Board strategy
and policy. The Managing Director is responsible for
establishing and executing the Company’s operating
plan, which is necessary to achieve the Company’s
objectives. He has overall control of the Company’s
day-to-day affairs and is accountable to the Board for
the financial and operational performance of the
Company.

(c) Criteria for Appointment of Independent
Directors

As per the Corporate Governance Code-2018 of
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
(BSEC), at least two directors or one-fifth of the total
number of Directors in the company’s Board,
whichever is higher, shall be Independent Directors.

Thus, in compliance with the code, during the
financial year 2023-2024, two (2) Directors out of the
total seven (7) Directors are independent, having no
share or interest in ADNTEL. Independence of the
respective Independent Directors is confirmed
during selection and appointment, and they remain
committed to continuing with such independence
throughout their tenure.

Role of Independent Directors

Independent Directors play a key role in the
decision-making process of the Board as they involve
in the overall strategy of the Company and oversee
the performance of management. The Independent
Directors are committed to acting in what they
believe is in the best interest of the Company and its
stakeholders.



The Independent Directors bring a wide range of
experience, knowledge and judgment through their
varied proficiency in business, economics, finance,
management, law and public policy. This wide
knowledge of both, their field of expertise and
boardroom practices, helps foster varied, unbiased,
independent and experienced perspectives. The
Company benefits immensely from their inputs in
achieving its strategic direction.

(d) Induction of Directors of the Board

In relation to the selection and appointment of new
Director, the existing Board of Directors possesses
the following duties and responsibilities:

- Review the size and composition of the Board and
the mix of expertise, skills, experience and
perspectives that may be desirable to permit the
Board to execute its functions;

« Identify competencies not adequately
represented and agree to the process necessary
to be assured that a candidate nominated by the
shareholders, if any, with those competencies is
selected;

» The Directors are appointed/re-appointed by the
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting
(AGM). Casual vacancies, if any, are filled in by the
Board in accordance with the stipulations of the
Companies Act, 1994, and the Articles of ADNTEL;

- The Managing Director is appointed by the Board
subject to the confirmation by the shareholders in
the Annual General Meeting;

* Any change in the members of the Board is
intimated to Registrar of Joint Stock Companies
and Firms (RJSC), Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission (BSEC) and the Stock
Exchanges.

(e) Composition and Category

The Composition of the Company's Board of
Directors complied with condition nos. 1.1 & 1.2 of
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission's
Corporate Governance Code in the financial year
ended on 30 June 2024. The Board has a
combination of Executive, Non-Executive and
Independent Directors. During the financial year
2023-2024, the Board comprises a total of seven (7)
Directors, out of which one (1) is Executive Director
(Managing Director), four (4) are Non-executive
Directors and two (2) are Independent Directors.

(f) Board’s Effectiveness
The Board has a fiduciary role, responsible for setting

the strategic direction and long- term goals of the
company. As elected representatives of the
shareholders, the Board is expected to use its
integrity and capability in vetting corporate
strategies, policies, plans and major decisions, and to
oversee and monitor the management in the
interests of the Stakeholders of ADNTEL. Key to good
governance in ADNTEL is an informed and
well-functioning Board of Directors.

Broadly, the responsibilities of the Board include the
followings:

. Reviewing and approving overall business
strategy, as well as organization structure,
developed and recommended by management;

- Ensuring that decisions and investments are
consistent with long-term strategic goals;

« Ensuring that ADNTEL is operated to preserve its
financial integrity and in accordance with policies
approved by the Board,;

* Overseeing, through the Audit Committee, the
quality and integrity of the accounting and
financial reporting systems, disclosure, controls &
procedures and internal controls;

« Providing oversight in ensuring that ADNTEL's risk
appetite and activities are consistent with the
strategic intent, operating environment, effective
internal  controls, capital sufficiency and
regulatory standards;

« Overseeing, the establishment and operation of
an independent risk management system for
managing risks on an enterprise-wide basis, the
adequacy of the risk management function
(including ensuring that it is sufficiently resourced
to monitor risk by the various risk categories and
that it has appropriate independent reporting
lines) and the quality of the risk management
processes and systems;

- Reviewing transactions for the acquisition or
disposal of material assets.

« Ensuring that the necessary human resources are
in place to meet its objectives, as well as
appointing and removing executive officers, as
deemed necessary;

- Reviewing management performance and
ensuring that management formulates policies
and processes to promote fair practices and high
standards of business conduct by staff members;
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. Establishing corporate values and standards,
emphasizing integrity, honesty and proper
conduct at all times with respect to internal
dealings and external transactions, including
situations where there are potential conflicts of
interest;

« Providing a balanced and understandable
assessment of ADNTEL’s performance, position
and prospects, and this extends to interim and
other price-sensitive public reports, and reports
to regulators;

. Ensuring that obligations to shareholders and
others are understood and met.

(g) Continuing Development Program of Directors
& Appraisal of the Board’s Performance

Each and every Director is expected to make
important  contributions based on industry
knowledge and understanding of the Business model
of the company.

The Chairman ensures that all Directors receive a
comprehensive and tailored induction on joining the
Board, facilitated by the senior management and
comprising of;

« A formal corporate induction, including an
introduction to the Board, and a detailed overview of
ADNTEL, its strategy, operational structures and
business activities;

» Directors to attend various workshops when
necessary.

Evaluations of Board Performance

Appraising the Board’s performance can clarify the
individual and collective roles and responsibilities of
its directors, and better knowledge of what is
expected from them can help the Board become
more effective. The Board appraisals may also
improve the working relationship between the
company’s Board and its management.

Any discussion of performance appraisals
necessarily covers two broad areas - the what and
the how. In the case of a Board, what should be
appraised is its ability first to define its
responsibilities and establish annual objectives in the
context of those general responsibilities, and then its
record in achieving those objectives.

An appraisal shall also look at the resources and
capabilities the board needs and are available to
perform its job. The how of the Board appraisal is, of
course, the process the Board uses to evaluate its
own performance.

ADNTEL
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The following criteria are considered for the

evaluation:
Board Membership
Management accountability
relations and governance

Legal

Plannin
g responsibilities

Financial
overview

Board
Operations

The Company’s Guideline on Board Evaluation as
required under the Corporate Governance Code of
BSEC has been disclosed in this annual report and is
also available on our website, at www.adntel.com.bd.

(h) Directors Report on Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements and
Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors assumes the responsibility for
the preparation of the financial statements (as well as
the quarterly financial statements), maintaining
adequate records for safeguarding the assets of the
Company, preventing and detecting fraud and/or
other irregularities, selecting suitable accounting
policies and applying those policies consistently and
making reasonable and prudent judgments and
estimates where necessary.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for the
implementation of the best and the most suitable
corporate governance practices.

(i) Evaluation of Managing Director by the Board

The Board of Directors evaluates the Managing
Director’s performance based on the goals set for
him, considering the company’s vision and mission.
The annual financial budget and other job objectives
are discussed, reviewed and finalized by the Board.
The Board considers financial and non-financial goals
during the appraisal of MD’s performance.

(j) Board of Directors’ election and appointment
process

The Board, as a whole, decides on the appointment of
any Board member and composition of the Board and
its committees.

The Composition of the Company's Board of
Directors complied with condition nos. 1.1 & 1.2 of
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission's



Corporate Governance Code in the financial year
ended on 30 June 2024. The Board has a
combination of Executive, Non-Executive and
Independent Directors. During the financial year
2023-2024, the Board comprises a total of seven (7)
Directors, out of which one (1) is Executive Director
(Managing Director), four (4) are Non-executive
Directors and two (2) are Independent Directors.

As per ADNTEL'’s Articles of Association, one-third of
the Directors are required to retire from the Board
every year, comprising those who have been in office
the longest since their last election. A retiring
Director shall be eligible for re-election.

Appointment by the Board

Existing Director-
subject to rotation

Newly appointed

Director

Retires at the
AGM but is eligible
for re-appointment

Casual Vacancies
are filled
by the Board

Approval by
Shareholders at the AGM

Appointment of new
director and existing
directors by Rotation

Approval of
appointment of
Independent Director

Board composition Chart

Director
57.5%

I Independent

I Non-Executive

Director
28%

Executive
Director
14.5%

2. BOARD SYSTEMS AND PROCEDURES

(a) Board Meetings

The Board meets at least four (4) times a year, once in
every 3 (three) months, inter-alia, to discuss and
review the financial results, business policies,
strategies etc. The maximum interval between two

Board meetings is not more than 3 months. Additional
Board Meetings are held by the Company as and
when required. However, in case of business
exigency or an urgent matter, approval of the Board
is sought through resolution by circulation, which is
noted in the subsequent Board Meeting.

The Company circulates the Board/Committee
Meeting agenda and related notes/documents well in
advance, which provides for quick and easy
accessibility. As a practice, the Company Secretary
reports to the Board of Directors as and when
required.

Meetings of the board are conducted and minutes of
the meetings are recorded in line with the relevant
provisions of the Bangladesh Secretarial Standards
(BSS) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries of Bangladesh (ISCB) and also are
consistent with the conditions of the BSEC Code.

All significant  decisions  taken by the
Board/Committee Members is communicated to the
functional heads of the concerned departments. The
Board/Committee Members are apprised of the
action taken or proposed to be taken by the
Company on the observations/directions given in the
previous meeting.

(b) Written Code of Conduct for the Chairperson,
other Board members and CEO

The Board in its 111th Meeting held on March 20,
2019, laid down and adopted a Code of Conduct for
the Chairperson, other Board Members and
Managing Director/CEO of the Company in
accordance with the Condition No. 1 (7) of the
Corporate Governance Code 2018. This Code is
intended to provide guidance to the Chairperson,
other Board members and Chief Executive Officer to
manage the affairs of the Company in an ethical
manner.

The complete Code of Conducts, as required under
the Corporate Governance Code of BSEC, has been
disclosed in this annual report and is also available on
our website, at www.adntel.com.bd.

Ethics and Compliance

The Board is also committed to establishing the
highest levels of ethics and compliance in the
company.

As a result, ADNTEL remains committed to upholding
the highest standards of ethics and compliance by its
employees. This commitment is reflected in its
Employee Code of Conduct which covers, among
other issues, the following areas:
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(i) Their relationship with and responsibilities to ADNTEL;
(i) Their relationship with and responsibilities to customers;

(iii) Compliance with laws and regulations;

(iv) Acting in a professional and ethical manner;
(v) Protection of company assets;

(vi) Disclosure of conflicts of interest;

(vii) Prohibition of any conduct involving dishonesty, fraud, deceit or misrepresentation including insider

trading.

(c) Attendance in the Board of Directors and Committee Meetings

During the financial year under-reporting, a total four (4) Board Meetings, four (4) Audit Committee Meetings
and three (3) Nomination & Remuneration Committee Meetings were held and the attendance of the Directors

are noted below:

Nomination and

Board Audit Committee : .
Names of Directors Attendance Remuneration Committee
at 20" AGM  Total Meetings Total Meetings Total Meetings
Meetings  Attended Meetings Attended Meetings Attended
Asif Mahmood
Chairman v 4 4 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Md. Moinul Islam J 4 4 4 4 3 3
Director
Md. Mahfuz Ali Sohel J 4 4 N/A N/A 3 3
Director
Director
Md. Maruf
Independent Director v 4 4 4 2 3 3
Major General Golam
Mohammad,
SUP, nwc, psc (Retd)
Independent Director N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
(Appointed on 27 June 2024 &
Resigned on 10 Nov 2024)
Khondkar Atique-e-
Rabbani, FCA
Independent Director J 4 2 4 2 N/A N/A
(2" term expired on 6 January 2024)
Henry Hilton

(d) Whistle Blowing

Our whistle blowing practices serve as a channel for
early detection of corporate fraud or risk by ensuring
that employees reporting legitimate concerns on
potential wrongdoings occurring within  the
organization are guaranteed complete
confidentiality. Such complaints are investigated and
addressed through a formalized procedure.

(e) Independence of the Chairman of all Board
Committee

The Chairmen of the Committees are selected by the
Board. The Board establishes that the Chairmen of
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both the committees are independent.

(f) Board contains members with Expert
Knowledge, Responsible for Informing Board on
Corporate Regulatory Rules, Responsibilities and
Implications

The Board of ADNTEL consists of members who
possess a variety of knowledge and experience in
finance, economics, management,  business
administration, accounting, marketing and law. This
ensures that together they formulate the right policy
for the development of the business while having the
specialized skills and ability to foresee developments



specialized skills and ability to foresee developments
across a larger perspective and enough
independence to audit the management in a
balanced manner.

Respective qualifications of the Directors are
appended in Directors’ profile on page nos. 30-33 of
this annual report.

(9) Information Applied to the Board

ADNTEL has incorporated its Governance Framework
pursuant to the guidelines prescribed in the Code of
Best Practices on Corporate Governance issued by
the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
(BSECQ).

Related major Acts, Regulations and Guidelines are:
Sl. Particulars

1 | The Companies Act, 1994;

Securities and Exchange Ordinance-1969 and
Securities and Exchange Rules- 2020;

Corporate Governance Code- 2018 issued
3 | by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission (BSEC);

2

4 | Policies, Procedures, Directives of BSEC;

5 | Listing Regulations 2015 of Stock Exchanges.

Related internal guidelines:

Sl Particulars

1 | Articles of Association;

Code of Conduct for the employees & the
Board;

3 | Board and Board Sub Committee Charters;

Different Manual like; (i) HR Manual, (ii)

4 | Procurement Policy, (iii) SOP for Agreement
Execution and (iv) Delegation of Financial
Authority etc.

(h) Disclosure of Board Committees

The Board of Directors has constituted two
committees, namely Audit Committee and
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, which
enable the Board to deal with specific areas/activities
that need a closer review and have an appropriate
structure to assist in the discharge of their duties and
responsibilities.

The Committees of the Board meet at regular
intervals and members of the committees have the
requisite knowledge and expertise to handle and
resolve matters expediently. The Company Secretary
acts as a secretary to all the Committees of the
Board.

Detailed composition, meetings and other
information of all the Committees of the Board are
mentioned herein below:

Audit Committee

The primary role of the Audit Committee is to assist
the board in ensuring that the financial statements of
the company reflect true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company as well as in overseeing the
financial reporting process and disclosure of financial
information. The audit committee review the financial
statements before submission to the Board, review
the adequacy of internal control systems and
examine the findings of internal investigations. The
audit committee also recommend appointment/
removal of statutory auditors and fixing their
remuneration.

The Audit Committee of the Board was constituted in
compliance with condition 4 and 5 (2) of the
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission’s
(BSEC) Corporate Governance Code-2018. All the
Members of the Audit Committee have the required
qualifications and expertise to be a member of the
Committee and possess the relevant knowledge of
accounting and financial management.

A separate report on the activities of the Audit
Committee has been presented on page no. 96 of this
annual report.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Board established the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee in keeping with Condition 4
and 6(2) and determined its terms of reference in
compliance with Condition No. 4 and 6 (5)(b) of the
Corporate Governance Code. The NRC assists the
board in formulation of the nomination criteria or
policy for fixing the qualifications, positive attributes,
experiences and independence of directors and top
-level executives of the company. The primary duties
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
include, among others, (a) reviewing the structure,
size and composition of Board; (b) identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become members of
Board; and (c) making recommendations for
appointment of top-level executive.

A separate report on the activities of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee has been presented
on page no. 97 of this annual report.

(i) Role of Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal
Audit & Compliance and Company Secretary

Chief Financial Officer

The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the
finance, accounts and treasury functions of the
Company. Besides, he attends all Board and
committee meetings and presents financial
statements and business results. He is to certify to the
Board regarding financial statements and financial
transactions of the Company according to the
Corporate Governance Code as issued by Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC).
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Head of Internal Audit & Compliance
The Head of Internal Audit and Compliance is
responsible for reporting to the Board/Audit
Committee regarding any deviation from accounting
and internal control, compliance and risk
management systems of the Company.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring
proper information flow among the Board, its
committees, senior management and the Directors.

He ensures that Board procedures are complied with.

3. BOARD SYSTEMS AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

(a) Financial Expert in the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Board was constituted in
the year 2017. All the Members of the Audit
Committee have the required qualifications and
expertise for appointment in the Committee and
possess the requisite knowledge of business,
accounting and financial management.

(b) Reporting of Internal Auditor to the Audit
Committee

The Head of Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC)
supervises and coordinates the internal control
system and procedures.

The Company’s internal control system is
commensurate with its size and business nature. The
system minimizes operational risks through effective
control, systemic review and ongoing audit. The
internal auditors undertook an audit of all functional
areas and operations, their findings were referred to
the Audit Committee of the Board.

The Company internalized its legal and technical
appraisal functions to ensure optimum control. The
Company’s multi-level authorization  structure
ensures that higher exposure levels were duly
authorized by personnel and committees with
requisite  experience and authority. Training
programs and guidelines helped to implement
linkage between goals and operations.

The Board has ultimate responsibility for establishing
an effective system of internal control. The internal
control system encompasses all business risks,
including financial, operational and strategic risks. To
mitigate all the risks as well as to establish a
controlled environment, the Board holds its meeting
with the requisite agenda dealing with all major
aspects of the business. There is internal control and
compliance department directly reporting to the
Board Audit Committee which looks after compliance
with the organizational policies by different
departments.

ADNTEL made relevant mandatory disclosure in its
financial statements under the regulatory framework,
including compliance with the provisions of
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs),
as adopted in Bangladesh, the Companies Act, 1994
and Securities and Exchange Rules, 2020. Besides
that, it submits all the reports/statements regularly,
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which are required to be submitted to the regulators
as well as to the other stakeholders of the Company.

(c) Proportion of Independent Directors in the
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of ADNTEL has been formed
pursuant to the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission’s Corporate Governance code- 2018
dated June 3, 2018.

Status in the

Name Committee
Md. Maruf Cha
Independent Director alrman
Md. Moinul Islam S
Director
Wagar Ahmed Choudhury Member
Director

Mr. Md. Monir Hossain, FCS, Company Secretary is
also the Secretary of the Audit Committee. The Head
of Internal Audit and Compliance concurrently
reports to the Managing Director as well as to the
Audit Committee.

(d) Report by the Audit Committee to the Board
about the matters related to Conflict of Interest
The Audit Committee reports directly to the Board of
Directors and under certain circumstances, can also
report to the BSEC.

The Audit Committee shall immediately report to the
Board of Directors in the following cases:

* On conflict of interest;

» Suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or
material defect in the internal control system;

+ Suspected infringement of laws, including
securities-related laws, rules and regulations;

» Any other matter which should be disclosed to the
Board of Directors immediately.

No such issues arose at ADNTEL during the year
ended on 30 June 2024.

(e) Presence of the Chairman of the Audit
Committee at the AGM

The Chairman of the Audit Committee is an
Independent Director and was present at the last
(20th) Annual General Meeting of the Company.

4. TRANSPARENCY & DISCLOSURE COMPLIANCES
(@) Particulars of purchase/sales of goods/
materials/or services by the Company for/to
Directors and/or their relatives etc.

No such issues arose at ADNTEL during the year
ended 30 June 2024.



(b) Disclosure in the Annual Report about Related
Party Transaction

Transactions with related parties have been made on
arm’s length basis and are in the ordinary course of
business. Detailed transactions with related parties
have been described in notes 45 of the Financial

Statements on the page no. 141 of this annual report.

(c) Disclosure regarding Compliance of IFRSs
The Members of the Board, in accordance with the
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission’s
Corporate Governance Code 2018, confirmed
compliance with the financial reporting framework by
the International Accounting Standards
(IAS)/International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs), as applicable in Bangladesh for preparation
of the financial statements and any departure there
from has been adequately disclosed.

(d) Disclosure regarding Compliance of ICSB
Secretarial Standards

The Company has complied with the applicable
Bangladesh Secretarial Standards adopted by the
‘Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh
(ICSBY.

(e) Adverse Remarks in the Auditors’ Report

The audit report for the year ended on 30 June 2024
provided no adverse observation on the activities by
the Statutory Auditors’ of the Company.

(f) Certification of Annual Financial Statements by
the MD & CFO

The Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer
provide a certification on annual basis to the Board of
Directors under Condition No.3 (3) (c) of the
Corporate Governance Code- 2018 of BSEC.

(g) Presentation of Financial Statements on the
Website

The Company’s financial results and official news
releases have been displayed on the company’s
website and also on the websites of the Dhaka Stock
Exchange and Chittagong Stock Exchange.

(h) Information relating to BSEC’s Corporate
Governance Code Compliance Certificate

M/S. Ahsan Manzur & Co., Chartered Accountants,
have certified that the Company has complied with
the conditions of Corporate Governance as
stipulated under BSEC’s Corporate Governance
Code-2018. The said certificate forms part of this
Annual Report as an annexure to the Report of the
Board of Directors.

(i) Disclosure made to the prospective investors
ADNTEL made relevant mandatory disclosure in its
financial statements and all price sensitive
information under the regulatory framework,
including compliance with the provisions of
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as
adopted in Bangladesh. In addition, it submits all the
reports/statements regularly, which are required to
be submitted to the regulators as well as the other
stakeholders of the Company and also displayed on
the company’s website and on the websites of the

Dhaka Stock Exchange and Chittagong Stock
Exchange for the investors.

(j) Disclosure of Remuneration of the Directors of
Board

The members of the Board of Directors of the
Company did not receive any fees for attending the
meeting of the Board and its committees. The Board
Members also did not receive any remuneration. Only
Managing Director of the Company is getting salary
since he is an Ex-officio member of the Board.

However, the details of attendance of Directors in the
meeting of the Board and its committees have been
presented in Annexure-l on the page no. 45 of this
annual report. The amount of remuneration paid to
the Managing Directors is also disclosed as
Managerial Salary in note no. 29 of the audited
financial statements for the year ended on 30 June
2024 on page no. 135 of this annual report.

The Company’s Policy on Remuneration of Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management of
the Company, as required under Corporate
Governance Code of BSEC, has been disclosed in this
annual report and is also available on our website, at
www.adntel.com.bd.

5. TRANSPARENCY AND
FUNCTIONS

INTERNAL AUDIT

(a) Establishment of Internal Audit Department in
the Company

The Company’s internal control system was
commensurate with its size and business nature. The
system is minimizing operational risks through
effective control, systemic review and on-going audit.
There is an internal control and compliance
department directly reporting to the Board Audit
Committee, which looks after compliance with the
organizational policies by different departments.

The internal auditors undertook audit of all functional
areas and operations, their findings referred to the
Audit Committee of the Board.

(b) Written Role and Responsibility of the Head of
Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC)

The Head of Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC) is
the key person who is responsible for ensuring the
appropriate level of assurance in relation to the
operation of internal controls, risk management and
governance. Hence, appropriate governance
arrangements would include the HIAC having direct,
unrestricted access to the accountable officer; a
service level agreement (or similar) in place; and a
strong audit committee in operation. The duties and
responsibilities will also include overseeing the
following functions:

(1) Financial reporting including disclosures

(2) Internal control

(3) Internal audit

(4) Compliance with relevant ethical requirements, in
particular independence and objectivity

(5) The statutory audit or external audit

(6) Remedial actions
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(c) Directors’ Responsibility to Establish
Appropriate System on Internal Controls

The Company has taken proper steps and sufficient
care in building a system of internal control, which is
reviewed, evaluated and updated regularly. The
internal audit department of the Company conducts
periodic audit to provide reasonable assurance that
the established policies and procedures of the
Company were consistently followed.

(d) Review of the Adequacy of Internal Control
System

ADNTEL has adequate system of internal controls for
business processes and financial transactions, with
regard to operations, financial reporting, fraud
detection, compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, etc. These internal controls and systems
are devised as a part of the principles of good
governance and are accordingly implemented within
the framework of proper check and balances.

The Company ensures that a reasonably effective
internal control framework operates throughout the
organization, which provides assurance with regard
to safeguarding the assets, reliability of financial and
operational information, compliance with applicable
statutes, execution of the transactions as per the
authorization and compliance with the internal
policies of the Company.

The internal audit adopts a risk-based audit approach
and conducts regular audits in the Company and
evaluates on a continuous basis, the adequacy and
effectiveness of the internal control mechanism,
adherence to the policies and procedures of the
Company as well as the regulatory and legal
requirements. The internal audit department places
its findings before the Audit Committee of the Board
of Directors at regular intervals. The Audit Committee
of the Board of Directors actively reviews the
adequacy and effectiveness of internal control
systems and suggests improvement  for
strengthening the control systems according to the
changing business needs from time to time.

(e) Report of the Internal Audit to the Audit
Committee

The internal auditors undertook audit of all functional
areas and operations, their findings/report referred
to the Audit Committee of the Board for appropriate
actions/review.

6. SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION

Pattern of shareholdings as on 30 June 2024 are
given below:

On the basis of Shareholders types:
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No. of

No. of Percent
Group Name Share o
holders Shares (%)

Sponsors/Directors 627,682,334 4281
General Public 4,078| 23,698,870 36.66
Financial
Institutions & 225| 11,984,630 18.54
other Companies
Foreign Investor 1 1,285,832 1.99
Total 4,312| 64,651,666 100.00

(@) Number of Shareholding (Parent/Subsidiary/
Associated Companies and Other Related Parties)
Shareholding  position  of  Parent/Subsidiary/
Associated Companies and other Related Parties of
the Company has been presented in Annexure-ll of
the Directors’ Report.

(b) Shares held by Directors/Executives and
Relatives of Directors/Executives

Shares held by the Directors/Executives and relatives
of Directors/Executives of the Company has been
shown in Annexure-Il of the Directors’ Report.

(c) Shares held by Ten Percent (10%) or more
Voting Interests in the Company

The shareholding position of ten percent (10%) or
more voting interests in the Company has been
shown in Annexure-Il of the Directors’ Report.

(d) Redressal of Shareholders Complaints
Company Secretariat Department of ADNTEL is
engaged to redress the complaints of the
Shareholders related to their shares, non-receipt of
annual reports, dividends and other share related
matters.

The department also prepare the monthly status of
the number of shareholding by various categories
like Sponsors/Director, Government, Institute,
Foreign and General Public etc.

(e) Growth/Net Worth of the Company during the
last 5 years

Key operating and financial data of preceding 5 (five)
years have been shown under the heading of
Financial Highlights on page no. 20 of this annual
report.

(f) Cash/Stock Dividend Paid in the last 5 years

The Company started its journey in the year 2003
and prior to listing in the stock exchanges in 2019,
ADNTEL paid dividend to its shareholders in some
financial years ie. 2010-2011(55% B), 2014-2015
(100% B), 2015-2016 (5% C), 2017-2018 (6% C) and
thereafter, post- listing, in 2019-2020 (15% O),
2020-2021 (10% C), 2021-2022 (10% C) and
2022-2023 (15% C). ADNTEL follows a policy of
paying rational rate of dividend to its shareholders



taking into account its financial results and other
important factors.

(g) EPS of the Company for the last 5 years
The Earnings per Share (EPS) for the year 2024 stood
at Tk. 2.23 compared to Tk. 4.00 in the previous year.

The preceding 5 (five) years EPS has been shown
under the heading of Financial Highlights on page no.
20 of this annual report.

(h) Periodic Reminders to Shareholding who have
not encashed their dividend

In case of unpaid/unclaimed dividend, we serve our
shareholders from our share department throughout
the year on working days. We also try to
communicate them at addresses available to send
the dividend properly.
@ Means of Communication with the
Shareholders

As the owners of ADNTEL, our shareholders are our
main stakeholders. In order to accommodate
shareholders’ information, we regularly communicate
with them across various channels-Stock Exchanges,
face to face meetings, website, print media etc.

7. STAKEHOLDERS’ VALUE ENHANCEMENT

Judicious  assessment of the investment
consideration of our shareholders is the key to
understanding their expectations from the Company
and as such, helps pave the pathway towards
delivering value and fulfilling those expectations.
While shareholders, customers, suppliers, employees
and the government are the prime stakeholders; the
regulators, local community, and the environmentally
interested groups complete the stakeholder circle of
ADNTEL.

(@) Encourage Employee Engagement

Employees are considered ADNTEL’s most valuable
asset and key to Company’s continued success.
Employees are deemed key stakeholders as they
drive ADNTEL'’s business forward. They wish to grow
with the Company and develop their careers which
they aspire hand-in-hand, whilst the Company
progresses.

The employees are the main participants in the
management decision and they are guided by the
principle of individual opportunity, responsibility and
reward based on merit.

(b) Payment to Vendors on time

ADNTEL strives to pay its vendors on time and the
procurement policy is to maintain a good business
relationship with all its service providers and material
suppliers.

(c) Payment of Taxes to the Govt./Authorities on
time

ADNTEL contributes to the national exchequer in the
form of Corporate Tax, VAT, License Fees &
Equipment charges etc. regularly and in a timely

manner. ADNTEL always upholds its responsibilities to
the development of society and the country as a
whole. Company’s contribution to the national
exchequer has been given on page no 39 of this
annual report.

(d) Supply Chain Management

ADNTEL rigorously follows up its internal
procurement policy and upgrades the policy
regularly to ensure strong control and fair treatment
of suppliers.

8. RESPONSIBILITY TOWARDS SOCIETY

As a responsible business entity with global
affiliations, ADNTEL tends to meet the social causes,
hence performs different types of social
responsibilities with a view to engage the
organization in to direct and indirect social welfare.

While exploring any business scopes, ADNTEL also
tries to ensure that the clients and suppliers do not
encourage child labor or any other exploitation.

ADNTEL also tries to ensure zero tolerance in
corruption, use green energy and low carbon
emission etc, while being committed to achieving the
UN’s Sustainable Development Goals (SDGS).

9. CORPORATE OBJECTIVES

(a) Vision and Mission Statement of the Company
in the Annual Report

The Vision and Mission statement of the Company
have been given in page no. 14 of this annual report.

(b) Overall Strength
The overall strength and opportunity of the Company
have been given in page no. 15 of this annual report.

(c) Core Values & Code of Conduct
The core values of the company have been given in
page no. 14 of this annual report.

In line with that, there are two sets of code of
conducts - one for the Chairperson, Board Members
and CEO in accordance with BSEC Corporate
Governance Code 2018 and another for ADNTEL
employees.

(d) Directors’ Profiles and their Representation on
the Board of other Companies & Organization
The brief resume of the Directors as well as their
representation on Board of other Companies and
organizations have been included on page nos. 30 to
33 of this Annual Report.

10. TIMELINESS IN ISSUING
STATEMENTS AND HOLDING AGMs

FINANCIAL

The Company holds General Meeting its of members
once a year and the meeting is being held within 6
(six) months of completion of the respective financial
year, as per the guidelines of BSEC as well as the
permitted time limit of the Companies Act, 1994. The
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Company ensures effective interaction with the
members at the Annual General Meeting. The
Directors pay special attention in answering the
various queries raised by the members at the Annual
General Meeting.

As required under “Bangladesh Secretarial Standard
2" issued by ICSB, particulars of the last three Annual
General Meetings are disclosed hereunder:

20t Annual General Meeting:

Date & Time: December 4, 2023 at 11:00 AM

Venue: The AGM was held virtually by using digital
platform

Participants: 202 Shareholders, which represent
45,685,548 shares, being 70.66% of paid-up shares
of the Company.

Resolutions passed by the shareholders are the
following:

(A) Ordinary Business:

(i) Consideration and adoption of the financial
statements of the company for the year ended
June 30, 2023, together with Auditors’ Report
and the Directors’ Report thereon;

(ii) Approval of 15% cash Dividend;

(iii) Election of Directors in place of those who shall
retire by rotation in accordance with the
provisions of Articles of Association of the
Company;

(iv) Approval of the re-appointment of the
Independent Director of the Company;

(v) Appointment of Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co.,
Chartered Accountants, as statutory auditors for
the year 2023-24 and fix their remuneration;

(vi) Re-appointment of M/S. Ahsan Manzur & Co.
Chartered Accountants as professional to provide
the certificate on compliance on the BSEC’s
Corporate Governance Code 2018 for the year
2023-24 and fix their remuneration.

(B) Special Business:
(i) Approval of the purchase of land from the

associate company/related party of the Company
namely, Tech Valley Networks Limited.

20" AGM E-VOTING SCHEDULE

Record Date Thursday,
October 26, 2023
Voting Start Date | Sunday,

December 3, 2023 (11:00 am)

Voting End Date | Monday,

December 4, 2023 (11:30 am)

All the agenda are approved
by around 99.99% votes.

Voting Result
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19t Annual General Meeting:

Date & Time: December 7, 2022 at 11:00 AM

Venue: The AGM was held virtually by using digital
platform

Participants: 241 Shareholders, which represent
54,553,211shares, being 84.38% of paid-up shares of
the Company.

Resolutions passed by the shareholders are the
following:

(A) Ordinary Business:

(i) Consideration and adoption of the financial
statements of the company for the year ended
June 30, 2022, together with Auditors’ Report
and the Directors’ Report thereon;

(ii) Approval of 10% cash Dividend;

(iii) Election of Directors in place of those who shall
retire by rotation in accordance with the
provisions of Articles of Association of the
Company;

(iv) Approval of the re-appointment of the Managing
Director of the Company;

(v) Appointment of Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co.,
Chartered Accountants, as statutory auditors for
the year 2022-23 and fix their remuneration;

(vi) Re-appointment of M/S. Ahsan Manzur & Co.
Chartered Accountants as professional to provide
the certificate on compliance on the BSEC’s
Corporate Governance Code 2018 for the year
2022-23 and fix their remuneration.

(B) Special Business:
@) (i) Consider and approve the revision and time

extension for the unitarization of the IPO
proceeds.

19* AGM E-VOTING SCHEDULE

Record Date Thursday,
October 13, 2022
Voting Start Date | Tuesday,

December 6, 2022 (11:00 am)

Voting End Date | Wednesday,

December 7, 2022 (11:30 am)

Voting Result All the agenda are approved

by around 99.99% votes.

18" Annual General Meeting:

Date & Time: December 14, 2021 at 11:00 AM
Venue: The AGM was held virtually by using digital
platform

Participants: 184 Shareholders, which represent
45,771,226 shares, being 70.80% of paid-up shares
of the Company.

Resolutions passed by the shareholders are the
following:



(i) Consideration and adoption of the financial
statements of the company for the year ended
June 30, 2021, together with Auditors’ Report and
the Directors’ Report thereon;

(ii) Approval of 10% cash Dividend;

(iii) Election of Directors in place of those who shall
retire by rotation in accordance with the
provisions of Articles of Association of the
Company;

(iv) Approval of the re-appointment of the
Independent Director of the Company;

(v) Appointment of Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co.,
Chartered Accountants, as statutory auditors for
the year 2021-22 and fix their remuneration;

(vi) Re-appointment of M/S. Ahsan Manzur & Co.
Chartered Accountants as professional to provide
the certificate on compliance on the BSEC’s
Corporate Governance Code 2018 for the year
2021-22 and fix their remuneration.

18" AGM E-VOTING SCHEDULE

Record Date Thursday,

November 17, 2021
Voting Start Date | Monday,

December 13, 2021 (11:00 am)
Voting End Date | Tuesday,

December 14, 2021 (11:30 am)

All the agenda are approved
by around 99.99% votes.

Voting Result

11. DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY

There is a clearly spelt out delegation of authority
with specific task authority relationship. The board
has empowered responsible persons to implement its
broad policies and guidelines and has set up
adequate review processes.

12. AUDITORS CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with all mandatory
requirements of Corporate Governance Guidelines as
enumerated in the Corporate Governance Code 2018
issued by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission. M/S. Ahsan Manzur & Co., Chartered
Accountants, have certified that the Company
complied with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated under the Corporate
Governance Guidelines, which has been annexed on
page no. 48 of this annual report.

13. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company always concentrates on delivering high
value to its stakeholders through appropriate
tradeoffs between risk and return. A well-structured
and proactive risk management system is in place
within the Company to address the risks relating to
credit, market, liquidity and operations. Details of the
Risk Management have been described at notes
41-44 of the Audited Financial Statements on page
no.139-140 of this annual report.

14. GOING CONCERN
The board is satisfied that the Company has adequate
resources to continue its business sustainably for the

foreseeable future and consequently considers it
appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the financial statements.

15. DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY

Pursuant to the Directive on dividend distribution and
management of unpaid/unclaimed dividends by
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
(BSEC) No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2021-386/03/ dated
January 14, 2021, the Board of Directors has
approved the dividend distribution policy of the
Company. Moreover, ADNTEL also ensures timely
adoption of any directives and circulars prescribed
by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission related to dividend distribution and
management from time to time.

The objective of the above-mentioned policy is to lay
down the criteria to be considered by the Board of
Directors of the Company before recommending
dividends to its shareholders for a financial year. The
detailed dividend distribution policy of the Company
has been disclosed in this annual report and is also
available on our website, at www.adntel.com.bd.

16. SUMMARY OF UNPAID OR UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND
ADNTEL always strives to complete the dividend
distribution process within the time schedule. At first,
we distribute all the dividends through BEFTN within
3 to 4 working days, then we receive the returned
BEFTN report from the respective banks. Then we
sort out the data and issue dividend warrants and
request the shareholders through DSE & CSE and
newspapers to collect the physical dividend warrants
within a specified time.

Thereafter, for those who fail to collect their dividend
physically, we send the warrants to their respective
addresses through courier. But finally, some of the
warrants return as the shareholders do not correctly
mention their addresses in the BO set up. As a result,
a portion of dividends remains undistributed.

Summary of the unpaid or unclaimed cash dividends
including bank interest and others are mentioned
below:

Aging analysis of unpaid/unclaimed cash dividend
(As of June 2024)

Amount in BDT
281,231
175,168
233,149
689,549

ADNTEL has no undistributed stock dividend so far to
be distributed among the shareholders.

LML) O
Md. Monir'Hossain, FCS

Asif Mahmood
Company Secretary

Chairman
ADN Telecom Limited ADN Telecom Limited

Up to 1 year

Over 1 year but less than 2 years
Over 2 years but less than 3 years
Total
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Source: Sustainable Development Report 2024

ANNCITE Sustainability

ADN Telecom's sustainability framework highlights six key focus areas for creating shared value for the
company and its stakeholders.

1. A Transparent, Ethical, and Accountable Company 4. Innovation and Digital Reach
» Corporate governance and business ethics » Network quality, reliability, and availability

. . * Innovation and transformation
2. Sustainable Economic Growth

» Economic Performance 5. Our People
« Sustainable supply chain * Training and development of human capital
« Diversity and equal opportunity

3. Customer Relations « Health and safety

« Privacy and personal data protection
« Customer relationships 6. Community Development
* Responsible use of products and services + Corporate Social Responsibility

ADNTEL
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Our Contribution to the SDGs

The Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs), adopted by all UN member states in 2015, serve as a universal call
to action to end poverty, protect the planet, and ensure peace and prosperity for all by 2030. These 17
interlinked goals highlight that progress in one area influences outcomes in others.

We recognize our responsibility in contributing to a more sustainable future and understand the
interconnected nature of the SDGs, where a single action can lead to multiple positive outcomes. As part of
our commitment, we align our business practices with these goals and strive to operate in ways that support
and advance them. Our sustainability framework is directly linked to our contributions to the UN SDGs.

arwonno | 6 P e A Transparent, Ethigal, and Accountable Company : :

sl As one of the country’s leading publicly traded companies, ADN Telecom is dedicated

0 to transparency, openness, and accountability. We have established a strong

i— governance framework that upholds the highest standards of corporate governance,

aligned with our core values. Our goal is to safeguard the rights of our shareholders
and stakeholders.

DECENT WORK AND 11 SUSTAINABLE CITIES 12 RESPONSIBLE Sustainable Economic Growth
mImeTm | s We strive to sustain financial growth and attract investment by diversifying
our revenue streams while maintaining low costs and high operational
ﬁ éﬁ m efficiency. Our supply chain is sustainable, and we conduct our
procurement processes responsibly, with a strong emphasis on

supporting and strengthening the local economy.

19 oo Responsible Customer Relations
S Our customers are at the heart of everything we do. We deeply value their loyalty and are
m committed to their satisfaction. We work diligently to meet their needs for seamless
communication while encouraging the responsible use of technology. To protect their personal

data, we have implemented robust safeguards and controls.

T Innovation and Digital Reach
LS We empower digital lives by offering fast, secure, and reliable connectivity. We believe that
innovation and technology can create new opportunities to meet the evolving needs of society.
Our commitment remains steadfast in advancing technology, building robust networks, and
delivering high-quality services to our customers.

GOOD HEALTH QUALITY GENDER 1 REDUCED Our People . _ .
ANDNELEBEING EDUCATION s '"‘i“”“‘s ADN Telecom provides a unique and outstanding employee
.' i PETY experience, prioritizing the continuous growth of our human

A4 Ul - capital. We are committed to developing our people by
equipping them with cutting-edge training resources and tools

to prepare them as leaders in the digital age. Our goal is to attract and retain top talent while increasing the

national workforce. We ensure a safe and inclusive work environment for all employees and actively combat
all forms of discrimination across the organization.

GOODHEALTH QALY 11 Ssmacones Community Development . : :
ANDWELESENG EDUCATION (LS We recognize our significant role in the community and are committed to

.' 1 serving it through socially responsible initiatives designed to create a
A4 l ﬁ éﬁ positive impact. We continually build and strengthen partnerships with
other organizations to enhance our contribution to the community.
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Nomination

OBJECTIVE:
In keeping with the Corporate Governance Code
issued by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange

Commission through its notification No.
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated 3
June 2018, and based on the recommendation of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board
of Directors of ADN Telecom Limited adopted this
Policy on Nomination of Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management of the Company.

DEFINITIONS:

“Act” means the Companies Act, 1994 as amended
from time to time.

“Code” means the Corporate Governance Code
issued by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission through its Notification No.
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated 3
June 2018 as amended from time to time.

“Board” means Board of Directors of the Company.
“Company” means ADN Telecom Limited.

“Employee” means employee of the Company.

“Key Managerial Personnel” (KMP) refers to key
managerial personnel including

(i) Managing Director (MD), or Chief Executive Officer
(CEO);

(i) Head of Internal Audit & Compliance (HIAC);

(iii) Chief Financial Officer (CFO); and

(iv) Company Secretary (CS).

“Listing Regulations” means DSE and CSE Listing
Regulations 2015 as amended from time to time.
“Nomination and Remuneration Committee” (NRC)
means Nomination and Remuneration Committee of
Board of Directors of the Company.

“Senior Management” or “Senior Management
Personnel” means employees of the company who are
one level below the MD/CEO, and shall include but not
limited to, Head of Internal Audit & Compliance,
Company Secretary, and Chief Financial Officer.

1) GENERAL APPOINTMENT CRITERIA:

a) The NRC shall consider the ethical standards of
integrity & probity, qualification, positive attributes,
expertise, experience and independence of the
person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior
Management level and accordingly recommend to the
Board his/her appointment.

b) The Company should ensure that the person so
appointed as Director and Independent Director do
not stand disqualified under the Companies Act, 1994,
Listing Regulations and Corporate Governance Code
of BSEC or any other enactment for the time being in
force.

¢) The Director and Independent Director shall be
appointed as per the procedure laid down under the
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1994,
Listing Regulations and Corporate Governance Code
of BSEC or any other enactment for the time being in
force.

II) OTHER APPOINTMENT CRITERIA:

Enhancing the competency of the Board and
attracting as well as retaining talented employees for
role of KMP/Senior Management Personnel shall be
the basis for the NRC to select a candidate for his/her
appointment. When recommending a candidate for
appointment, the Committee shall be:

a) Assessing the appointee against a range of criteria
which includes but not limited to qualifications, skills,
regional and industry experience, background and
other qualities required to operate successfully in the
position, with due regard for the benefits in
diversifying the Board;

b) The extent to which the appointee is likely to
contribute to the overall effectiveness of the Board,
work constructively with the existing
Directors/KMP/Senior Management Personnel and
enhance the efficiency of the Company;

¢) The qualification, skills and experience that the
appointee brings to the designated role and how an
appointee will enhance the skill sets and experience
of the Board/Company as a whole;

d) The nature of existing positions held by the
appointee  including directorships or  other
relationships and the impact they may have on the
appointee’s ability to exercise independent judgment;
e) The appointment of Independent Directors shall be
subject to compliance of provisions of the Condition
No.1(2) and (3) of the Code.

Ill) TERM/TENURE OF APPOINTMENT OF MANAGING
DIRECTOR AND INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR:

a) Managing Director:

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person
as its Managing Director for a term not exceeding five
years at a time.

b) Independent Director:

i) An Independent Director shall hold office for a
period of 3 (three) years, which may be extended for
1 (one) tenure only.

i) A former independent director may be considered
for re-appointment for another tenure after a time gap
of one tenure, ie., three years from his/her
completion of consecutive two tenures [i.e., six years].
i) At the time of appointment of Independent
Director, it is to be ensured that, s/he is not serving in
more than 4 (four) listed companies as Independent
Director.

1V) REMOVAL:

Due to any disqualification mentioned in the
Companies Act, 1994, Listing Regulations and
Corporate Governance Code of BSEC or under any
other applicable Act, rules, and regulations
thereunder, the Committee may recommend to the
Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a
Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel
subject to the provisions and compliance of the said
Act, rules and regulations. The removal shall also be
based on principles of natural justice.

AMENDMENT AND DISCLOSURES:

Subject to the approval of the Board, the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee reserves its right to
review and recommend amending this policy, as and
when required, to ascertain its appropriateness as per
the needs of the Company.

A summary of this policy will be included annually in
the annual report. This policy will also be available on
the company's website.
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OBJECTIVE:

In keeping with the Corporate Governance Code
issued by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission  through its notification No.
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated 3
June 2018, and based on the recommendation of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board
of Directors of ADN Telecom Limited adopted this
Policy on Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management of the Company.

DEFINITIONS:

“Act” means the Companies Act, 1994 as amended
from time to time.

“Code” means the Corporate Governance Code
issued by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission  through its Notification No.
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated 3
June 2018 as amended from time to time.

“Board” means Board of Directors of the Company.
“Company” means ADN Telecom Limited.

“Employee” means employee of the Company.

“Key Managerial Personnel” (KMP) refers to key
managerial personnel includes

(i) Managing Director (MD), or Chief Executive Officer
(CEO);

(i) Head of Internal Audit & Compliance (HIAC);

(iii) Chief Financial Officer (CFO); and

(iv) Company Secretary (CS).

“Listing Regulations” means DSE and CSE Listing
Regulations 2015 as amended from time to time.
“Nomination and Remuneration Committee” (NRC)
means Nomination and Remuneration Committee of
Board of Directors of the Company.

“Senior Management” or “Senior Management
Personnel” means employees of the company, who
are one level below the MD/CEO, and shall include
Head of Internal Audit & Compliance, Company
Secretary, and Chief Financial Officer.

1) REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS, KMP AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT:

The gquiding principle is that the level and
composition of remuneration shall be reasonable and
sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors,

E& ADNTEL
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KMP and Senior Management.

The Directors, KMP and other Senior Management'’s
salary shall be based and determined on the
individual responsibilities, performance, experience,
leadership abilities, initiative taking abilities and
knowledge base and also in accordance with the
limits as prescribed statutorily, if any.

The remuneration to Directors assigned for any
executive role, KMP and other Senior Management
will be reviewed by the NRC and recommended to the
Board for approval in line with the balance between
fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and
long-term performance objectives appropriate to the
working of the company and its goals.

While recommending the remuneration, the NRC shall
take into account the relevant factors such as market,
business performance and practices in comparable
companies, financial and commercial health of the
Company as well as prevailing laws and
government/other guidelines.

1) REMUNERATION TO
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR:
The Non-Executive/Independent Director may
receive remuneration by way of fees for attending
meetings of the Board or Committee thereof.

NON-EXECUTIVE /

AMENDMENT AND DISCLOSURES:

Subject to the approval of the Board, the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee reserves its right to
review and recommend for amending this policy, as
and when required, to ascertain its appropriateness
as per the needs of the Company.

A summary of this policy will be included annually in
the annual report. This policy will also be available on
the company's website.



OBJECTIVE:
In keeping with the Corporate Governance Code
issued by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange

Commission  through its notification No.
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated 3
June 2018, and based on the recommendation of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board
of Directors of ADN Telecom Limited adopted this
Policy on the Board’s Diversity.

DEFINITIONS:

“Act” means the Companies Act 1994 as amended
from time to time.

“Code” means the Corporate Governance Code
issued by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission  through its Notification No.
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated 3
June 2018 as amended from time to time.

“Board” means Board of Directors of the Company.
“Company” means ADN Telecom Limited.

“Employee” means employee of the Company.

“Key Managerial Personnel” (KMP) refers to key
managerial personnel includes

(i) Managing Director (MD), or Chief Executive Officer
(CEO);

(ii) Head of Internal Audit & Compliance (HIAC);

(iii) Chief Financial Officer (CFO); and

(iv) Company Secretary (CS).

“Listing Regulations” means DSE and CSE Listing
Regulations 2015 as amended from time to time.
“Nomination and Remuneration Committee” (NRC)
means Nomination and Remuneration Committee of
Board of Directors of the Company.

“Senior Management” or “Senior Management
Personnel” means employees of the company, who
are one level below the MD/CEOQ, and shall include
Head of Internal Audit & Compliance, Company
Secretary, and Chief Financial Officer.

The Company believes that the Company’s Board
shall consist of people from diverse backgrounds
possessing different skillsets, perspectives, and
industry experience to achieve its strategic and

20lIcy 0N

Board’s Diversity

commercial objectives without any discrimination to
gender, age, race, religion, or ethnicity. Given the
nature of the Company’s business, it should also have
adequate representation of persons having exposure
to international business trends and best practices.
The Board composition should be such that the
members complement the knowledge, experience,
expertise, and diverse skill sets so that the Board
collectively functions to achieve the aforesaid
objective.

NRC, while making its recommendation for board
appointments, shall be guided by the aforesaid
objectives and accord due weightage to multiple
factors such as general understanding of the
business, education, professional background,
international exposure, and personal achievements.
The NRC shall ensure that the candidates for board
membership should be persons of high ethical
standards and integrity.

NRC shall ensure that in making its recommendation
it shall not discriminate, directly or indirectly, on
grounds of religion, ethnicity, cultural background,
country of origin, nationality, marital status, gender,
age, or disability which does not hinder a person’s
ability to function as a Board member.

NRC shall also ensure that composition of Board
meets the requirements of the code, and other Rules
and Regulations.

AMENDMENT AND DISCLOSURES:

Subject to the approval of the Board, the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee reserves its right to
review and recommend for amending this policy, as
and when required, to ascertain its appropriateness
as per the needs of the Company.

A summary of this policy will be included annually in
the annual report. This policy will also be available on
the company's website.
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OBJECTIVE:

In keeping with the Corporate Governance Code
issued by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission  through its  notification No.
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated 3
June 2018, and based on the recommendation of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board
of Directors of ADN Telecom Limited adopted this
Guideline on Board Evaluation.

DEFINITIONS:

“Act” means the Companies Act 1994 as amended
from time to time.

“Code” means the Corporate Governance Code
issued by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission  through its  Notification  No.
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated 3
June 2018 as amended from time to time.

“Board” means Board of Directors of the Company.
“Company” means ADN Telecom Limited.
“Chairman/Chairperson” means the
Chairman/Chairperson of the Board of Directors of
the Company.

“Independent Directors” means the Independent
Directors of the Company.

“Listing Regulations” means DSE and CSE Listing
Regulations 2015 as amended from time to time.
“Nomination and Remuneration Committee” (NRC)
means Nomination and Remuneration Committee of
Board of Directors of the Company.

This Guideline aims to:

(i) Ensure compliance of the applicable provisions of
the Code relating to formulating the criteria for
evaluation of performance of independent directors
and the Board.

(ii) Adopt best practices to manage the affairs of the
Company in seamless manner.

ADNTEL
Annual Report 2024

(iii) Achieve good corporate governance as well as
sustained long-term value creation for stakeholders.

EVALUATION FACTORS:

The Chairman/Chairperson of the Board shall carry
out the evaluation of performance of independent
directors and the Board. Evaluation performance
shall be carried out at least once in a year. While
evaluating the performance, it has to be always
considered the appropriate benchmarks as per
industry standards and the performance of the
Company.

Appraisal shall be carried out based on the criteria as
mentioned herein below.

Rating Scale

CPartiulars | iRating |

*If the decimal number of any average rating is more
than half, shall be rounded to the nearest whole
number.




The Company has chosen the following criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and
the Board:

Remarks/

SI. Assessment Criteria Rating Comments

1 | The Board of Directors of the Company is effective in decision making.

2 | The Board of Directors is effective in developing a corporate governance
structure that allows and encourages the Board to fulfill its
responsibilities.

3 | The Company’s systems of control are effective for identifying material
risks and reporting material violations of policies and law.

4 | The Board reviews the company’s financial performance on a regular
basis.

5 | The Board of Directors is effective in providing necessary advice and
suggestions to the Company’s management.

6 | Is the Board as a whole up to date with latest developments in the
regulatory environment and the market?

7 | The information provided to Directors prior to Board Meetings meets
expectations in terms of level of details.

8 | Board meetings are conducted in a manner that encourages open
communication, meaningful participation, and timely resolution of issues.

9 | The Board Chairman/Chairperson effectively and appropriately leads and
facilitates the Board meetings and the policy and governance work of the
Board.

10/ The Board appropriately considers internal audit reports,
recommendations, management’s  responses, steps towards
improvement and risk mitigation plan.

11| The Board oversees the role of the Independent Auditor from selection to
termination and has an effective process to evaluate the Independent
Auditor’s qualifications and performance.

12| The Board considers the Internal Audit plan and provides
recommendation.

Additional Criteria for Independent Directors

Attendance and participations in the meetings

Raising of concerns to the Board

Safeguard of confidential information

Rendering independent, unbiased opinion and resolution of issues at meetings
Initiative in terms of new ideas and planning for the Company
Safeguarding interest of whistle-blowers under vigil mechanism

O N~ WIN—=

AMENDMENT AND DISCLOSURES

Subject to the approval of the Board, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee reserves its right to review
and recommend amending this guideline, as and when required, to ascertain its appropriateness as per the
needs of the Company.

A summary of this guideline will be included annually in the annual report. This guideline will also be available
on the company's website.
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OBJECTIVE:

The objective of this policy is to lay down the criteria
to be considered by the Board of Directors of the
Company before recommending dividends to its
shareholders for a financial year. The policy is framed
in compliance with the Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission’s Directive dated January 14,
2021.

CRITERIA°. TO BE CONSIDERED
RECOMMENDING DIVIDEND:

The Board will consider the following factors before
recommending dividend:

BEFORE

Statutory and Regulatory Compliance:

* The Company shall declare dividend only after
ensuring compliance with the regulatory
guidelines on dividend declaration e.g., in line with
the directives of the Finance Act, as amended from
time to time and or by fulfilling other restrictions, if
there is any, from the regulators like; Bangladesh
Securities Exchange Commission (BSEC).

Financial Criteria:

 Financial performance of the Company for the year
for which dividend is recommended;

- Internal capital planning framework / policy;

- Dividend payout trends (the dividend payout ratio
will be calculated as a percentage of dividend
(including dividend tax) recommended for the year
to the net profit for that year);

« Tax implications, if any,
dividends;

. Cost of raising funds from alternate sources of
capital;

on distribution of

- Corporate actions including mergers/demergers,
acquisitions and additional investments including
expansion plans and investment in
subsidiaries/associates of the Company;

« Such other factors and/or material events which
the Company’s Board may consider.

IEIN ADNTEL
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Policy

» Shareholder expectations
shareholders
» Macro-economic environment

including individual

CIRCUMSTANCES UNDER WHICH SHAREHOLDERS
MAY OR MAY NOT EXPECT DIVIDEND:a

» The Board of the Company may not recommend
any dividend if the eligibility criteria for the
recommendation of dividend has not been met by
the Company, including any regulatory restriction
placed on the Company on the declaration of
dividend or if the Board strongly believes the need
to conserve capital for growth or other exigencies
which will be spelt.

Dividend Distribution:

« Company shall pay off the dividend (cash/stock) to
the shareholders within 30 days of declaration or
approval or record date as the case may be.

» Company shall pay off the cash dividend to the
bank account of the entitled shareholder as
available in the BO account maintained with the
depository participant (DP), or the bank account as
provided by the shareholder in paper form,
through Bangladesh Electronic Funds Transfer
Network (BEFTN) or through bank transfer or any
electronic payment system as recognized by the
Bangladesh Bank, if not possible through BEFTN.

» Dividend of the margin client of stockbroker or
merchant banker shall pay off to the Consolidated
Customer’s Bank Account (CCBA) of the
stockbroker or to the separate bank account of the
merchant banker or portfolio manager through
BEFTN.

* In case of non-availability of bank account
information or not possible to distribute cash
dividend through BEFTN or any electronic payment
system, shall issue cash dividend warrant and shall
send it by post to the shareholder.



- Company shall credit the stock dividend to the BO
account of the entitled shareholder.

- Company shall follow the directives/circulars in
force of the securities regulator, related to
dividend distribution from time to time.

UTILISATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS:

The Company would utilize the retained earnings of
the Company in a manner which is beneficial to the
interest of the Company and its stakeholders,
including, but not limited to, ensuring maintenance of
a healthy level of minimum capital adequacy ratios,
meeting the  Company’s  future business
growth/expansion and strategic plans or such other
purpose the Board may deem fit from time to time in
the interest of the Company and its stakeholders.

PARAMETERS FOR VARIOUS CLASSES OF SHARES:

Currently the Company does not have any other class
of shares (including shares with differential voting
rights/preference shares) other than equity shares. In
the absence of any other class of shares and/or
shares with differential voting rights, the entire
distributable profit for the purpose of declaration of
dividend is considered for the equity shareholders.

CONFLICT IN POLICY:
In the event of a conflict between this policy and the
extant regulations, the regulations shall prevail.

AMENDMENTS / MODIFICATIONS:

To the extent any change/amendment is required in
terms of any applicable law or change in regulations,
the regulations would prevail over the policy and the
provisions in the policy would be modified in due
course to make it consistent with law. Such amended
policy shall be placed before the Board for noting and
necessary ratification.

REVIEW OF POLICY:

The Board of Directors of the Company may review
the policy, if the Board proposes to declare dividend
on the basis of criteria in addition to those specified
in the policy, or proposes to modify the criteria, it
shall disclose such changes along with the rationale
for the same on the Company’s website and in the
annual report.

DISCLOSURE OF POLICY:

The policy will be available on the Company’s website
and will also be disclosed in the Company’s annual
report.
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RESPONSIBILITY GOACHING INNOVATION

CODE OF CONDUCT

GROWTH TEAMWORK TRUST QUALITY

i il » ©

FOR THE CHAIRPERSON, OTHER BOARD MEMBERS AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER




1.00 OVERVIEW

PREFACE:

This Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, other
Board members and Chief Executive Officer
(hereinafter referred to as “the Code”) has been
framed and adopted by ADN Telecom Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “the Company or ADNTel”)
in compliance with the requirements of the Condition
1 (7) of Corporate Governance Code Notification
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 Dated: 3
June 2018 of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission.

This Code is intended to provide guidance to the
Chairperson, other Board members and Chief
Executive Officer to manage the affairs of the
Company in an ethical manner. The purpose of this
code is to recognize and emphasize upon the ethical
behavior and to develop a culture of honesty and
accountability.

This Code of Conduct attempts to set forth the
guiding principles on which the Chairperson, other
Board members and Chief Executive Officer shall
operate and conduct themselves with the
stakeholders, government and regulatory agencies,
employees, customers and suppliers and anyone
else with whom it is connected.

APPLICABILITY:

This Code shall be applicable and bound on the
Chairperson, other Board members and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.

The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief
Executive Officer shall continue to comply with other
applicable/to be applicable policies, rules and
procedures of the Company.

2.00 DEFINITIONS & INTERPRETATION

Unless repugnant to the meaning or context thereof,
the following expressions, wherever used in this
code, shall have the meaning assigned to them
below:

“Chairperson” shall mean the Chairman of the Board
of Directors of the Company.

“Board” shall mean the Board of Directors of the
Company.

“Directors” shall mean directors on the Board.
“Company” shall mean ADN Telecom Limited.

3.00 PRINCIPLES OF THE CODE:
The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief

Executive Officer of the Company shall act within the
authority conferred upon them, in the best interests

of the Company and observe the following:

PRUDENT CONDUCT AND BEHAVIOR:

The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief
Executive Officer shall act honestly, ethically, in good
faith and in the best interest of the Company.

Whilst carrying out the duties, the Chairperson, other
Board members and Chief Executive Officer shall

ensure that it is executed in terms of the
authorizations granted and within the limits
prescribed under the relevant policies, codes,

guidelines and other directives issued by the Board
of Directors of the Company from time to time.

The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief
Executive Officer shall refrain from indulging in any
discriminatory practice or behavior based on race,
color, sex, age, religion, ethnic or national origin,
disability or any other unlawful basis. The ethical

conduct, performance and skills shall be the
qualifying indicatives  for an employee’s
performance.

The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief
Executive Officer shall conduct themselves in a
professional, courteous and respectful manner and
shall not take any improper advantage of their
position.

The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief
Executive Officer shall use the Company’s assets,
property, proprietary information and intellectual
rights for business purposes of the Company and not
for any personal benefits or gains.

CONFIDENTIALITY:

The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief
Executive Officer should conduct themselves so as to
meet the expectations of operational transparency of
the stakeholders while at the same time maintaining
confidentiality of information in order to foster a
culture conducive to good decision making.
“Confidential information” includes, amongst others,
all information of the Company not authorized by the
management of the Company for public
dissemination.

All confidential information must be held in
confidence, unless authorized by the Board or
otherwise permissible in accordance with this code;
or the same is part of the public domain at the time of
disclosure; or is required to be disclosed in
accordance with applicable laws.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST:
The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief
Executive Officer shall not enter into any transaction
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which is or may likely to have a conflict with the
interest of the Company.

The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief
Executive Officer should disclose to the board
whether they directly, indirectly or on behalf of third
parties have a material interest in any transaction or
matter directly affecting the Company.

All transactions having conflict of interest should be
carried out in accordance with law and be fully
disclosed to the Board of Directors.

COMPLIANCE
REGULATIONS:
The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief
Executive Officer shall ensure compliance with the
various legal/regulatory requirements as applicable
to the business of the Company and endeavor that
before any directions are given or decisions taken,
relevant legal/regulatory requirements are taken into
account.

WITH LAWS, RULES AND

PROHIBITION OF INSIDER TRADING:

The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief
Executive Officer shall comply with all laws, rules, and
regulations governing trading in the shares of the
Company and the Company’s Code of Conduct for
Prohibition of Insider Trading in dealing with the
securities of the Company which, inter-alia, prohibits
buying or selling of the Company’s securities on the
basis of any unpublished price sensitive information
and prohibits disclosure of such information to any
other person (including relatives) where such
information may be used by such person for his or
her personal benefit or gain.

The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief
Executive Officer should comply with the provision of
the Companies Act, 1994 and applicable rules and
regulations issued by the Bangladesh Securities
Exchange Commission, Dhaka Stock Exchange and
Chittagong Stock Exchange, insofar as they relate to
prohibitions on insider trading.

RELATIONSHIP WITH ENVIRONMENT:

The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief
Executive Officer should cause the Company to strive
to provide a safe and healthy working environment
and comply, in the conduct of the business affairs of
the Company, with all regulations regarding the
preservation of the environment of the industry it
operates in.

The Company should be committed to prevent the
wasteful use of natural resources and minimize any
hazardous impact of the development, production,
use and disposal of any of its products and services
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on the ecological environment in accordance with
the applicable laws.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES:

The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief
Executive Officer should strive for causing the
Company to maintain cordial employee relations.

The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief
Executive Officer should cause the Company to build
competency based human resource systems and
maintain human resource policies that have been
directed at managing the growth of the organization
efficiently.

The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief
Executive Officer should assist the Company in
further aligning its human resource policies,
processes and initiatives to meet its business needs.

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS:

The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief
Executive Officer should ensure that the Company is
committed to supply products and services of the
highest quality standards backed by efficient
after-sales service consistent with the requirements
of the customers to ensure their total satisfaction.

The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief
Executive Officer should ensure that Company will
properly engage in product advertising, publicity,
and sales promotion activities to avoid misleading
the customers.

The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief
Executive Officer should ensure that the Company
will engage in free and open competition with
competitors to maintain its stance as a company
trusted by customers and society.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS:

This code contains general requirements applicable
to all suppliers to Company. Particular supplier
contracts may contain more specific provisions
addressing some of these same issues. Nothing in
this code is meant to supersede any specific
provision in a particular contract, and to the extent
there is any inconsistency between this Code and any
other provision of a particular contract, the other
provision will prevail.

The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief
Executive Officer should act in the best interest of
the Company. Accordingly, the Chairperson, other
Board members and Chief Executive Officer should
have no relationship, financial or otherwise, with any
supplier that might conflict, or appear to conflict, with
the Chairperson, other Board members and Chief



Executive Officer's obligation to act in the best
interest of Company.

INDEPENDENCY:
The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief
Executive Officer should remain independent in all
material respects.

The Chairperson, other Board members and Chief
Executive Officer should act impartial to the
Employees, Customers, Suppliers, Shareholders and
other Stakeholders.

4.00 COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE:
This Code has not specifically addressed every

potential form of unacceptable conduct and it is
expected that the Chairperson, other Board

members and Chief Executive Officer will exercise
good judgment in compliance with the principles set
out in this code. The Chairperson, other Board
members and Chief Executive Officer have a duty to
avoid any circumstances that would violate the letter
or spirit of the code.

5.00 AMENDMENT TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT:

The provisions of this code can be amended/
modified by the Board of Directors, based on the
recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (NRC), from time to time
and all such amendments/modifications shall take
effect from the date stated therein. The Chairperson,
other Board members and Chief Executive Officer
shall be duly informed of such amendments and
modifications.

6.00 PUBLICATION OF THE CODE OF CONDUCT:

Pursuant to Condition 01(7)(b) of Corporate
Governance Code, Notification No.
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 Dated: 3
June 2018 of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission, this Code of Conduct and any
amendments thereto shall be published/posted on
the website of the Company i.e., www.adntel.com.bd.
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Report of the Audit Committee
for the year ended on 30 June 2024
As per the requirements of the Corporate Governance Code of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange

Commission (BSEC) the Board of Directors of ADN Telecom Limited constituted an Audit Committee as a
sub-committee of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Composition of the Committee:
The Audit Committee consists of three Directors including one Independent Director. The Independent
Director is the Chairman of the Committee. The Committee members are:

Md. Maruf |
Independent Director
Md. Moinul Islam

Wagar Ahmad Choudhury Member
Director

The audit committee acts as per the terms and conditions of the Corporate Governance Code of BSEC. All
members of the Committee are 'financially literate' and can analyze and interpret financial statements to
discharge their duties and responsibilities as members of the Committee. As per the code, the Company
Secretary of ADN Telecom Limited acts as the Secretary of the Committee.

Major Role and Responsibilities:
The purpose, authority, composition, duties and responsibilities of the audit committee are delineated by the

Board as per the Corporate Governance Code of BSEC. Among others, the major responsibilities of the
Audit Committee are:

Oversee the financial reporting process.

Oversee the hiring and performance of external auditors.

Monitor the integrity of the financial statements of the company and any formal announcements relating
to the company’s performance, reviewing significant financial reporting judgments before their
submission to the Board of Directors for approval.

Review the effectiveness of the accounting policies, internal control and business risk management
systems of the company.

Monitor and review the effectiveness of the company’s internal audit function.

Consider and discuss with the external auditors of the company the scope of their audit prior to its
commencement and, subsequently the results, and review the effectiveness of the process, taking into
consideration relevant professional and regulatory requirements.

Other matters as per terms of reference of the Audit Committee as per notification of the BSEC.

Major activities of the Audit Committee during the reporting period:

During the year under review, four (4) meetings of the committee were held. The details of attendance of
the members have been shown in Annexure- | of the Directors' Report. The Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
and the Head of Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC) attended the meetings by invitation.

Reviewed the quarterly and half yearly financial statements of the Company before submission to the
Board for approval.

Reviewed the effectiveness of internal control.

Met with the members of the external auditors and discussed on the audit of the financial statements of
the Company.

Reviewed the annual financial statements of the Company before submission to the Board for approval.
Reviewed the Management Letter issued by the external auditors in their presence.

Reviewed the statements of related party transactions submitted by the Management.

Reviewing the Management Discussion and Analysis Report before disclosing in the Annual Report.
Recommended for the appointment of External Auditors and fixation of their remuneration.

Reviewed IPO Proceeds Utilization Report.

On behalf of the Committee,
L.

by

Md. Maruf

Chairman

Audit Committee
Dated: 24 October 2024
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Report of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee
for the year ended on 30 June 2024

As per the requirements of the Corporate Governance Code of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission (BSEC) the Board of Directors of ADN Telecom Limited has constituted a Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (NRC) as a sub-committee of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Composition of the Committee:
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) consists of three Directors including one Independent
Director. The Independent Director is the Chairman of the Committee. The Committee members are:

Md. Maruf
Independent Director

Chairman
Md. Moinul Islam
Director

Md. Mahfuz Ali Sohel
Director

Member

Member

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) acts as per the terms and conditions of the Corporate
Governance Code of BSEC. All the members of the Committee possess adequate knowledge and have
business expertise in their own arena. As per the code, the Company Secretary of ADN Telecom Limited acts
as the Secretary of the Committee.

Major Role and Responsibilities:

The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) have been determined by the
Board as per the Corporate Governance Code of BSEC. Among others, the major responsibilities of the Audit
Committee are:

i. To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director
and recommend a policy to the Board, relating to the remuneration of the directors, top-level executive,
considering the following:

a) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate
suitable directors to run the company successfully;

b) the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks; and

¢) remuneration to directors, top level executive involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay
reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company and
its goals;

i. To devise a policy on Board’s diversity taking into consideration age, gender, experience, ethnicity,
educational background and nationality;

iii. To identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in top-level executive
position in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend their appointment and removal to the
Board;

iv. To formulate the criteria for evaluation of the performance of independent directors and the Board;

v. To identify the company’s needs for employees at different levels and determine their selection, transfer or
replacement and promotion criteria; and

vi. To develop, recommend and review annually the company’s human resources and training policies.

Major activities of the NRC during the reporting period:

+ During the year under review, three (3) meetings of the committee were held. The details of attendance of
the members have been shown in the Annexure-I of the Directors' Report. The Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
and the Head of HR attended the meetings by invitation.

» The Committee made recommendation to the Board for approval of the appointment of Directors.

+ The Committee reviewed the management proposals for the appointments of top-level executives and
senior management of the Company and also made observations on the company's needs for employees at
different levels and determine their selection considering the business strategy of the company.

On behalf of the Committee,

.

Md. Maruf

Chairman

Nomination & Remuneration Committee
Dated: 24 October 2024
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The Auditor’s Report and
The Audited Financial Statements

(Consolidated and Standalone)
for the year ended on 30 June 2024

- ADN Telecom Limited —




Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co.
Chartered Accountants

INPACT
a1

Sohtion... Bagins .

Independent Auditor's Report
To the Shareholders of ADN Telecom Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financlal Statements

O pinion

We have audited the Consolidated financial statements of ADN Telecom Limited and its
subsidiaries (the "Group’) as well as the separate financial statements of ADN Telecom Limited
(the “Company”), which comprise the consolidated and separate statements of financial position as
al June 30, 2024, and the consoiidated and separate statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated and separale slalements of changes in equity and
consolidated and separate sfatements of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consoiidated and separate financial stalements, including summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information disclosed in notes 1 to 49 & Annexure-A to E.

In owr opinion, the accompanying consolidated and separate financial statements give true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the group and the separate financial position of the
company as at June 30, 2024, and of its consolidated and separate cash flows for the yvear then
ended in accordance with Internalional Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), the Companies Act
1884 (amended uplo 2020), the Securites and Exchange rules 2020 and cther applicable laws and
reguiations.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilifies under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibidibes for
the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements section of our repad. We are
indapandant of the Group and the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Frofessional Accountants {IESBA Code). and we have
fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESEA Code. We balieve thal the audit
evidence we have cbtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matiers are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our awdit of the consclidaled and separate financial statements of the current year. These matters
were addressed in the comtext of our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements as
a whaole, and in forming ouwr opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
maters

Risk | Ourresponse to the risk

Revenue

As at June 30, 2024, the company had total | Our procedure includes:
revenue amounting Tk 1429585594 | '

. Reviewing the director's assessment of |
reported in the financial stalemants which ; : .
: 5 gelecting Ihe major customer, ensuring the
are Local Services, IT Support & Service e

weracity of the data presented and assessing |

X
Peincipal Offics - Parwraound Heightn T8 Fad- D03 57 B Do) Fioad, Porard Paltae. sk W0 Tl - o B e AT1ENGN. Wioy | (14, JRATDA. DTG0 YTSTE, vl mitfjrmatc oon, rradhadaiigrasl com
Branch {#fice [Dhaks] - High Towas [Tih Pl & lobamihad 48 Dbaka-1200 Tl - o5 0 4314917, Mob - I1914 284704, 00320 B19ET, Emad indodemalsd com. snachakaforrad som
Beancii Cfficn {Chumogram| | A-bladea Toes, [ S, BAES, Agratad G4 Chaliegrun4 100 Tl : <B2 02 J1II2500 Mok - DR T, MEADZRENN. Bl ifocigifrmabel o, sracsyfigrmad cor
Wb : www. rmabd com
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Risk

Our response to the risk

and Export Services amounted to Tk
425882193, Th 487926357 & Tk
516,767,044 respeciively.

The Company has mulbiple revenue units
incl iding Inbarmet Sarvices, Data
Connectivity-IPVPN,  Internet  Protocol,
Telephony Services, Telehouse & Hosting,
Project Sales. MPLS and IPLC.

This matter is considered a key matter due o
the level of judgment required to determine
the timing of revenue recognition and
measurement

management's consideration of this procass;

2. Assessing compleleness and accuracy of the
data used for recognition of revenue;

3. Considering the adeguacy of the financial
statement digclosures contained in relation with
revenue during the year,

4, Evaluating the appropriateness of the notes
related 1o the company’s révenue; and

5. Examining the long term contracis with major
customers, long-lerm coniracts make i more
difficult for customers fo switch vendors
suddenly.

Refer note no. 21 to the Statement of profit or I;:hu and other comprehensive income.

Acquisition of Property, Plant & Equipment

At the end of the year the company recorded
idal  Property, Plant & Equipment Tk
1,627,089,581 (Camying Amound). The
compary made a number of significant
acquisitions for Tk. 384 320,328 during this
year

There is a risk that the assets bDeing
overvalued, either by inflating cost or
valuation

Owr procedure includes:

1. Testing relevant confrols wilhin the purchase
and measurament process of the non-curment
assels;

2.  Recalculaling the depreciation and
amortization of the non-curment assets;

3. Evaluating the basgis for the rale of charging
amortizaton and depreciation and determination
of useful life;

4. ldentifying if there is any impairment indicator;
and

5. Assessing the justification of the valuation.

Refer note no. 4 1o the Statemant of financial pasition

Loans and Borrowings

Total Loans of Th. 426,181 646 were faken
from IDLC Finance PLC, Industrial and
Infrastructure Development Finance
Company PLC., WRBC Commercial Bank
PLC, City Bank PLC, Eastern Bank PLC,
Community Bank PLC, and Dhaka Bank
PLC.

1. Testing the efectiveness of the company's
control around the recording of loan, interest,
and repayments;

£ Obtaining supporing documents of loan
taken, ulilization of loan, bank statements, and
transaction recorded eiher side of the year and
credit notes issued afler the yearend fto
determine whathar the amount recordsd n the
corract period;

3. Test interest rates application, cabculation,
and repayments for camying amount and current
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Risk a Our response to the risk
and non-current distinguish;

Refer note no, 14 and 15 to the S‘I;al-&m'nt_uf finrancial position.

Measurement and Recognition Deferred Tax Liability
" s ~ | Our procedure includes:

The Company reported net deferred fax
liability total TK. 149,419,203 as at June 30, | 1. Evaluating the design and lested the
2024, operational effectiveness of the Company’s key
controls over the recognition and measurement
Significant judgment is required in relation to | of Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities and the
deferred tax liability as their adjustability is assumptions used in estimating the future
dependent on forecasts of future. taxable expense of the company;

2. Assessing the completeness and accuracy
| of the data used for the estimations of fulure
taxable expensefincome;

3. Evaluating the reasonableness of key
assumplions, timing of reversal of temporary
differences and explration of fax loss carry
forwards, recognition and measurement of
Defierred Tax Liability;

4. Testing the tax implications, the
reasonableness of estimales and calculations
determined by management; and

5. Finally assessed the approprialeness and
presentation of disclosures against IAS 12
Income Tax.

Refer note ne. 19.02 to the Statement of Financial Position.
Provision for Current Income Tax

Provision for the income tax requires the Our procedure includes:
cansideration of income from Local Sales, IT | 1. Reviewing the tax calculation work flows and
Support & Services and Export Sales also related details. To be specific, our substantive
consider the previous year's shortfall testing procedures included the following;
oty 2. Gurrent tax has been calculated on the basis
of add and back some inadmissible and
admissible axpenses respectively as per ITA
2023; and
3. Tax on income from export was derived
| propery;
Refer note no. 27.00 to the Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

)
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Other Information

Manrgement is responsible for the other information. The other infermation comprises all of the
information in the Annual reportbut does not include the financial statements and our auditors’
report theraon.

Our opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thareon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, our réspansibility
iz 1o read the other information and, in doing so, considar whather the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated and separate financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
e audit, or otharwise appears o be materially misstated.

If. based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatermnent of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to repost in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements

Management is responsibde for the preparation and fair presentation of the consclidated and
separate financial statemenis in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs), the Companias Act 1994 (amended upto 2020), the Securities and Exchange Rules 2020
and other applicable laws and regulations and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that are
free fram material misstatement, whether due (o fraud or error,

In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Group's and the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concarn and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management aither intends 1o lquidate the Group and the Company or to ceéase operations, or has
no realistic atternative but 1o &0 S0,

These charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's and the Company's
financial reporting process,

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

Cwur objectives are o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate
financial statements as a whole are free from material messtatement, whether due to fraud or emrar,
and fo issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 8 high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or emor and are
considered material i, indiidually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected fo
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consclidated and separate
financial statements.
L)
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As part of an auddt in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the awdit. We also:

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statemants, whethar
due to fraud or emor, design and perform audd procadures responsive (o those risks, and
abfain audit evidence that is sufficent and appropriate to provide a basis for our opdnion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for ane
resulting from emor, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional OIMASSIONE,
misrepresantations, or the override of internal control,

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but net for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's the Company's internal control,

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to evenis or condiions that may cast significand doubt on the Group's and the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. i we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required 1o draw attention in our auditors’ report o the related disclosures in
the consclidated and separate financial staterments or, if such disclosures are inadeqguate, 1o
modify cur opinien, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence oblained up lo the
date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and
the Company 1o cease to continue a5 a going concern,

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidaled and separate
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in @ manner that
achieves fair presentation.

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Growp to express an opinicn on the consolidated
and separate financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supenision and
parformance of the Group and Company audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
OpATan.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
gcope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal controd that we identify during our audit

We w50 provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
refationships and other matters that may reascnably be thought to bear on our independance. and
where applicable, related safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matiers
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matier or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in owr
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected 1o outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication. a9
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Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Companies Act 1984 (amended upto 2020) and the Securities and
Exchange Rules 2020 and relevant notifications issues by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission, we also repart that:

a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof,

b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts, as records and other statutory books as required
hrluwhawI:-Hnmmhyﬂmﬁmwmmmmwaaraﬁﬂmﬁmmﬂw
pxamination of these books;

¢ The statements of the consolidated and separate financial position and statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income dealt with by the report are in agreement with the
books of accounts; and

d)} The expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the Group’s and Company's business.

Firm's Nameg : Rahman Mastafa Alam & Co., Chartered Accountanis
Signature

n’}_&;};‘h# LéLet
Auditors’ Mame : Md. Mustafizur Rahman FCA, Managing Partner/Enr Mo.: 0218
Date = 07HOV HU
Place : Dhaka
ove " A4L[0F02 [RAS2GCCYHTS
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ADN Telecom Limited
Corpolidated fatemant of Financisl Position
Ag ut Juna 30, P02
ASSETE
Mof-EuiTant EiLets
Propeity, pliag and equigment A [a]
Right-of e of 255815 % [a)
Intangible assets & [a}
Gl
Eigpaby-adaonfid ifreiribings T [a)
Trasie and gther mecerables & [}
Advance, depeiit and prepaymenis Wi
Other fimancial assets flal]
Irretsraiy 10l
Cash and cash equivalents 1]
Tenad Adssts
ECANTY AND LIABILETIES
Capital B RBesersis
Shase capital 1200
Shaw' & premidinm
Rtdnid edriongh 13{a)
Aniriteetpble 10 the framerns of panent
Hon-controiing Inenest
Teas Eguiry
LISBILITIES
Waon-perrent Rabditees
Lease Babalities 144a)
Loans and borrosdngs 15,00
Empiloase DEnalins 1700
Doterred 1o Rabiboes kS (B
Current fakilities 63335153 429,057,317
Lo Radilitie L4 ) 42,583,536 35,627 SES
Loar arcd biirirarings 15 faj 178,048,672 109,579,403
Praretiiom 16 (o 84,909 445 T23LL360
Trade and other prvables 18 fa) A 06505 1TLER0. 2 W
Current 10 Labiktaes 19 {a} 39,645 007 Rk L ER ]
Unclaimed diadend .00 689549 | 774,915
Fotal uabitaies __Limsmasy _ ymasEn
Total tquity and Lissilairs IR T RTIIneT
Mt dsaet Valse (MAV] Per Share 31 [a} 3 g& ﬂ

Th s pobes Bom 115 49 and Anteraune-A 8o E feem an inbegral parpol these fnancial

[ b
Tigrad in tirms of Sur separats reper of cees date.
Firmn Wama : Rabwran Mogstsks flsm & Co. Chastered Atcousniisty

Speabann 5

‘gf’ﬂﬁ?ff-ﬂtﬂpr
Auditse's Mame - Wd. Moitafzur Aasvean FOL, Mansging PartasrfEnr Mo.: 02 LB
Pace + Dihaka
Date 07ROV 200
o F 241107021243 20047
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ADN Telecom Limited

Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co.
@~ Charisned ACooLmsnts

Consolidated Statemaent of Profit or loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended on June 30, 2024

Juby 01, 2023 July 01, 2022
Particulars Motes o ‘ 11+
5 Juna 320, 2024 Junie 30, 2023
Eévenue 211al Lﬂ?mﬂ.ﬁﬁj'J 1,346,576,812
Cast of services and goods soid 22ia) (827,267,671 (728,065 004)
Gross Profit 579,791,598 618,507 808
Administrative expenses 23 {a) [210,514,831) [182,101,045)]
Distribution and marketing expenses 2aia) 122,017,233 (106,617,278
Total aperating expenies =11 gmrma:
Oiporating Profit 24T, 259,934 329,789 485
Finance (expense)income 25 {a) 125,542,088) (4,012,534
Fereign exchange (losslfgaln 26 (a) 12,051,052 11,618 560
Profit befare contribution to WPPF ¥33,768, 598 337,395,506
thase of profit/[loss] of associates (3,140,472]| B77.084
Contribution 1o WEPF (10,566, 748] | | [lhﬁ.ﬂl_l!l
Profit before Tax 220,061,678 322,176,579
Current Tax 27 [a) (57,272,763 (58,122 243)
Deferred Tax [Income]/expenses 28 (a) {11,978, 085 S tﬁ,l!ﬂ.;ﬁ-lh
Total Provislon for Tax (69,250,852] (64,256,107}
Nat Profit After Tax 150,810,836 257920472
Prafit attributable ta: = e
Equity holders of Parent 149,467,050 158,174,327
Mon-contralling Intenest 1,343,736 [253,855)
150,810,836 257930472
Basic Earnings Per Share [EPS) 30 [a) 2.31 .00

The annexed notes from 1 to 49 and Annexure-A ta E form an irntegral part of these financlal statements,

lltn Miltan pAd. hoinal lslam
HI‘IHM Director DHrecior
Flace - Dhaka
Dt - 2dth October 2024

Signed in terms of our separate report of even date,

Firms" Name : Rahiman Mostafa Alam & Co. Chartered Accountants
Signature

Parrhumact
Auditor's Mame : Md. Mustafizus Rehenan FCA, Managing Partner/Enr No.:
Plage 1 Dhakca
Oste 0 78OV 1004
Dv

RHIloFo2 [@AS2ceY 72

0218
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Rahman Mostafa flam & Co.
Crariarsd Arccaminris

ADM Telecom Limited
Consolidated Statement of cash flows
For the year ended on June 30, 2024

duby 01, 2023 Juby 01, 2022
Particulars Motes to i

Jung 30,2024 ||  June 30, 2023
Cash flow from oporating activities
Callection from customers and others 34 (a] 1,405 405 586 1,255 038,477
Payments to supplers and others 35 |a) {673, 70r3,534) (B38,335.664)
Fayments for operating expenses 36 {a) {355,610,271) (392,056,887
Cash gengrated from oporating activities - 366,085,681 234,645,926
Interest paid 38 (5] [25.54.2,088) 119,471,134)
Income fax Fakd 39 1a) [55.510,565) {48, 854 009]
Nt Cash Flow From Operating Activitles 385,033,024 166,280,783
Cash Flew From Investing Activities
Property, plant and equipment (401,425, 775) (158,064, 780]
Right-cf-use of assets [69,225,046) (25,304, 731)
Fropd deposit receipts (27,205,024} {37,525 855)
Equity-accounted investres 101,082,041 110,000, D00
Mt Cash Flows from flused) for Inveiting Activities 558,937 886 (240895, 370
Cash flow from financing activities
Loans and borrowing recoived /{paid] 230, 163 419 | 24 679,254
Lease Liabilitis received,{paid) 19,952,293 (14,820,123}
Dividond Padd (97,062, B6Y) & 488,078)
Mt cash News from)f [used) for financing activities 153,151 243 54,628.901)
Met Increwse bn cash and cash equivalents 753,00 129,243
Dipening cash and cash equivalents 156,645,763 285 E8E, 751
Chasing Cash and Cash Equivalents 95,852,244 155,645,263
Net Operating Cash Flow per shase 3z (a) 596 2.57

The aanened notes fram 1 1o 49 and Annexure-A 1o E forem an integral part of these fnancial statements.

L Asif Makhmcod
Managing Directar Director Chairman

OBl ADNTEL
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9 Rahman Mestafs Alam & Co.
Charmping Arcourienty

ADN Telecom Limited
Statement of finandial position
A at Jume 30, 2024
Fasticulars Notes Jurse 30, 2024 Juna 30, 2023
At
Mon-Eurrent asiets 1917, F 143
Property, plamt and equipment 4.00 1,627 069 550 1,335 TES 066
Right-ad-use of ssets 5,00 70,151,899 61,385,272
Intangile assets £.00 4,806,975 404,098
Enquity-accourned inmesees 7.00 215,609,629 | _ 83,004,707
Cusrrant assets 1,265,512,415
Trade ard other recelvabiles B.00 811,005 235 795,050,916
Advance, depoiits and prepayments 9,00 137,644,209 213,224.128
Other financial a5581s 10.00 128,015,386 100,810, 362
Cash and cash equivalents 11.00 93,042 937 156,527,009
Tatal Assets —3OSTAISSAS 2746311558
EQLITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital & Resarves 2 et 1,
Share capital 12.00 646,516,560 646,516,560
Share premium 413,704 559 413,704 559 |
Betaired earrirgs 13,00 361 TH1 562 914 457 987 |
LIABSLITIES
Hon-current liabilities 7, 3508 ‘
Lgss linbilities 1400 37,542,618 38,670,179
Loans and boerowings 15.00 162,758,541 93,966,391
Deferred tax liabilites 15.02 149,418,200 137,483,173
Erm, bayes Benelits 17.00 99,707,404 84,768,827
Currert llabiiities 51 77 420,643,682
Lease lishilties 14.01 41,128,844 36,627,585
Lewers and barrowings 15.00 159,121,587 102,579,403
Provisions 16.00 79425 442 72,312,361
Trace and other payabies 18.00 201,298,114 170,466,601
Current tax Kabilities 19.00 34,329,631 37,882,813
Unetaimed dividend 20.00 £59 540 774,919
Total Liabilities 1,065,423 064 771532352
Total Equity and Liabilities N LY L —— LR
Net Asset Value [NAV] Per Share 31.00 s 30.58

The arneed aortes irgm 110 &8 and Annexune-A 10 E foem an integral pen of these fingncial stsbements.

1 24th Detaber 2024
Sigred in terma of cur separate repart of even date.
Firms' Name : Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co. Chartered Accountants

Signature :

Auditor's Mame  :Md 224 “'ua‘t: i
1 AL Mustalicur Rahman FCA, Managing PartnerfEnr No.: 0218

Place 1 Dhalka

Date + D7HOY N

o¥e

241 [oF02 (2 AS20CY372

ADNTEL [EE]
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ADN Telecom Limited

@ Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co.
Craimaned AoDOninms

Staterment of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

far the year ended on June 30, 2024

suly 01, 2023 July 01, 2022
Particulars Motes L1 to

Juma 30, 2024 June 30, 2023
Beverue 21.00 | 1,429,585 594 1,344 756,212
Cost of services and goods sobd 22.00 [B88,015452 (726,164.094)|
Grods prodit 541,570,142 618,092,118
OpEErating eRpEnses l?!ﬂ,ﬁi,igl‘ (287 581,518)
Administrative expenses 23,00 (153,137,063} (181,064, 640)
Dtribution and marketing espenses 24,00 [117 B5Y BSE) 1106,617,278)
Operating profit X30,575 223 330,410,200
Finance [expenie] finoome X500 (20,724, 564) (4,012,5349)
Forelgn exchange (loss)fgasin 2600 12,051,052 11,618,560
Prodit before contribution to WPPF 221,901,711 338,016,221
Share of profit of equity accounted investesd (3,140,472 BIT.084
Contribution to WPPF (10,566, T48) {16,096.001)
Profit befose tax 208,154,491 377 797,104
Income tax Expenies
Current tax experses 27,00 {51,957 3ET) |58,108,319)
Deferred 133 [expensesfincome 27.00 111,536,030} 16,132.854)

(63,853 417) {6, 242, 153)

Profit/[loss) after tax 144,301,074 258,555,111
Other comprehendive income + = =
Total comprehensive income % IEH 254 585,111
Basic Eamings par share (EPS) 30.00 1.3 4,00

The annexed notes from 1 bo 43 and Annexure-A ba E Barm an irqegral pan of these financial stalementi.

A

BT

A

Henry Hiltan #Ad. Modnul 15lam Asi Mahmood
Managing Director Dirgctor Chairman
Date i d4th October 2024
Signed in torms of our separate report of even date,
Firms' Mame : Rahman Mostafs Alam & Co. Chartered Accountants
Slgnature i
Auditar's Mame =M. Mustafinr %rﬁan FCA, Managing PartnerfEne Ma.: 0218
Piate 1 Dhaka
SR

DV 1 . : >l

241070212 AS2¢cC 477 E\ai

[ '—".:1".'



| .—a. 1

)|
h - L i

tbaviens

=

UBWLIEYD
poowIyEy HSY

L RETT]
weps [RUIo PN

Jopradg fuBeusiy
uayiH Aduay

“tei]

ADNTEL

Annual Report 2024

‘SJUSFUALELS [BjJUBWY 353y Jo wed |rafaiu ue wugy 3 0 w-aunaiuuy pui G o) T WOl S310U paxauue ay)

B0EGLIPLET | LBGLSPPI6 | 650 FOLELE | 099915389 “E20Z 'O auny 1= se aoueey
TT1'565 852 ITT'S55'852 Jeak ayy 10y (350))/ipoug aasuayaidwod (g3o)
{atz'g10'1) [atz"ata't) JUSUIERIPE Ik 10alg
(999159 ) [ag9 159"a) . . TTOL 40§ pUIPIAP [Bulj
LOO'PRLTELT BELELGITL R0 PO ETE i o TTOT “T0 AAF e S8 aouepeg
sBuiuies ‘ : eyjdes
anpaasd au T j
o pauIElaY g7 e adeys Meupag ek
‘ 705 TEL'T96 659 POLETY 099°'915 99 YIOZ 'OE 3UN{ IE 5T aueieq
rLOTOE PR FLO TOE T Jwid dap) 10y [SS00)/14004 BMSUBYEIOUE0D [B10L
I66v"L26'96) lle6v' L26'96) . . ETOT 405 PUAPIAG [BUI
GOEGLO' PG LEB'ESEF'RTE | BSOPOLE T 098" TS Gt ETOZ “TO AN 12 52 20| Eg
supurs : jeides
! wsaad as o
(=T I L) Eyg aseys Aseuipso Rl LR

SJURILNON DU LT

©D § W)Y BRSO URYFY

FEOT ‘O BUN[ Lo papua Jeak 3yl Jo4
Aunba u) safueyd Jo Juawalels
Paywn wooaja) NOY



ADNTEL
Annual Report 2024

@ Rakman Mostafa Alam & Co.
Chaneg] Aocosnianis

ADN Telecom Limited
Statement of cash fAows
For the year ended on June 30, 2024
July 01, 2023 July 04, 2022
Particulars Motes o o
Jume 30, 2024 June 30, 2023
Cash flow from operating activities
Collpction from customers and others 34,00 507094 897 1,247 345 166
Paymeents to suppliers and others 35.00 (810.230,207) (627.651.910)
Paymeents for operating expenses 36,00 (274.508,743) (393,688 441)
Cash generated from operating activities 432,255,942 225,994,515
Interest paid 3700 (33,617 625) {19,465, 680
Income fax pakd 39,00 EEE% j A8 854,000 )
Mot cazh flow from oporating activities 333,137,748 2 157.634.126
Cash Flew froen Ireesting activities
Fraparty, plant and equipment A000 (327.173.649) [156, 905 000)
Raght-af-use of assets 155,048,113} (2% .304,731]
Fimed depesil receiply 10.00 {27,205,024) (37,525,858
Interes] received 38.00 12,853,061 7311711
Equity-aceounted inveslees 7,00 [135,725,354]
Net cash flaws from f{used) for investing activities (532,259,115}
Cash flow from financing activities
Laans amd Barrowang receiveds|paid) 225 335 444 24 579 Fan
Lewde Liabilitis receioed | paid) 71.373.715 [14,820,032)
Dividend paid 26256 |54, 488,078)
Net cash flows from// (used) for financing activties 135,647,294 {54,628,901)
Het increase/|decrease) in cash and cash equivalents. {63,484,077) [129,361,743)
Opening cash and cash equivalents 156,527 600 205 Bas el
Cash and cash equivalents at reporting date 53,042 532 156,527,009
Met oporating cash flow per share 5,15 244

The anneed notes from L to 49 and Annexure-A to E foem an ntegral pam of these financial statements,

M. (\n l-

Compary

Managing irector




ADH Telecom Limited
Motes to the Consolidated and Separate Fimancial Statements
Far the year ended Jume 30, 2024

100 Company and s scthafies

1.1 Company Profile:
ADN Telecom Limited [farmerly Advanced Data Metworks System Limited) was incorporated on 22 September, 2003
Vide registration 8 C-50557 [RS2)/200% as a Private Limited Company ursder the Companies Act, 1994, The compary
wad Gorearbid inba & pubile Beied compady on 15 July, 2002 The company Bsfed with both the Dhake S2och Exchuangs
#nd Chittagong Stock Eschanges on December 2009,
Asdress of Registered Office of Reporting Entities and Subsidiary:
The regisherad offics of the compiry i logated at Red Crescent Concord Tower, {19th Floor), 17 Mohakhal C8, Diaks-
1212, Bangladesh.

1.2 Naturs of Busingss:
" ing Entit
ADN Telecom Ltd. I the prime sevvice provider for domaestic and international connectivity senvices and solutions. daly
watherized By the Bangladesh Telecommunication Begulatory Commissien (BTRC). The principal acthties of the
compary are providing seacmbas, secured data B inbermsl connectivity to warious grades of customers using Fiksr,
sateline and wireless solutions since 2003,
ADN Telecom is a first tier Telecom service provider as well as an T Enabler Service prowider. it's range of products

allow 1 to delver serdce bo medtly corporate, BB, gevernmaed, financial instfutions, etc. The compary has made
commendsble progrest in it's vesy first yesr of Bunching B2 products and senvices under the brand “uidn™.

Daseription of subsidiarkes:

1.2.1 505 Develapment Limited.
5065 Development Limied. has established to carry out all the business of IT Comdahing, IT Professionad, IT Trading, IRS
for &l kingd of sadery otc. ISP Data processing, Systemn Designing, Software Deweloping, Software and Hardware
Maintenance, Graghics design, Cloud computing and in House Dats Sesage and Management System. Digital archiving,
Digital survey, Data anahpis Business Process (htscuscieg, Software and Hardware Instalation/ and other Business
Process Cutsourtig, Softwars and Hardware Instalation) ard other services related to Computer, Security Device &t

122 My Tel Limited
My Tel Limited was imcorporsted as & peivate Limited by Shaees dated 5th December 2011 in Bangladeh vide
registratian na-C-87513/11 under the Companies Act, 1954 with the Registrar of baint Seack Companias and Firms.
To establish, maintain, operste and provide ICT [Ilormaticn Communication Technology] and Telecommunication
Services, Both locally and intemationally, Induding: Gatewasy Senvices, such as, B0W (International Gateway] and 11G
{Intermational bnberned Gatewary.

123 ADN Edimendoes Limited
ADN Eduserdces Limibed was incarporated i Bangladeih CIIBIEII017 on February 25, 2007 under the Companies
Ary, 1994 a3 Private Limited Company. B commenced [t commsvcial aperation on 2007
To cary cn the butingss of human resource development and employment facilation, To eitablih, operats, conduct
#red wetup 1T training centers in grder b promets and produce 1T professional skiled menpowes, To make avallable
waluabbe resources on different professional skils by conducting regular operations.

124 ADN Intermathonal Gateway Limited
ADN Internaticral Gatewsy Limited & a privabe company fimited by shares sndwas incanporation on 27th Ooloker,
2011 under the Companies Act, 1994 Vide Registration Na, C-08805/11.
ADM Inbernational Gateway Limited & the prime wbnvice provider for domestic and inbemational connectiity sendoes
and solutions duly authorized by the Bangldeil Telscommurication Regulatory Commiision [BTRC). The peincipal
sctiities o the company ane providing seamliess, secuned data & internet conneckivity b various greses of customens
using fiber, aateline and wireless solutions since H11.

ADNTEL
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O Charised Accourtanty

€] Ligal Compliande;
The frpncipl patemsmms haove been prepaned and the discowsres of indormation mede in sondentd with the
requiremants of The Comparied At 1994, intermational Accounting Standards (WS and Enbercational Finencial

Reporting Standards {IERS).
d] Compifance i T
A5 Tigla Bemarks
w5l Presentation ol Financial SEmaments Campliad
(LU Saatemant of Cash Flows Complied
WS E Mocoaunting Palicies, Changes in Accourting Estisnates and Errors Compdied
45 10 Eweris after the Repceting Pericd Comphied
U512 |income Tanes Complied |
A5 16 Property, Flant and Equipment Complied
a5 19 Employves Daredits Camphed
A5 30 Aecouniieg for Government Grasis and Dischosure of Government Asidtance MR
521 The Effects of Chenget im Foreign Eschjegs Rates Complied
L5 33 Berrpwing Costs Complied
A5 24 Related Party Diclosures Complied
145 26 Acgoianting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans M/A
LS X7 Conzolidated and Separate Financial Staternents Complied
A5 28 Irvestmenty in Associates s Joind Vienlunes Camplied
A% 51 Interests i Joing Verhsres MJA
145 32 Firarcis! rtnements: Presentation Complied
1533 |Earrings per Share Complied
S Interim Firarcial Reporting Complied
A5 36 impairmant of Ases Complied
IAS3T  |Previsien, Comtingent Liabilties and Comingent Assets Camplied
145 58 Intangitle Assets Compdied
145 33 Firarcis! rstrements: Recagnilicn and Maasurement Complied
A5 &0 Investment Property LIS
(LU Agricuiture M
1851 First Time Adoption MU
IFRS 2 Shpre Based Payreapnt M
IFBS 3 Busiress Combinations MR
IFRS 4 Insurance Conkrects Camplied
IFRS 5 Ron-Current Assets Heid for Sale and Discontinued Operations M/A
IFRS 6 Explosation for and Evalestion of Minenal Resources /A
IFRS 7 Hrarcis irstnenénts ; Disclosued Compiied
IFRS B Dperaling Segmenii MR
IFES 10 |Consolidated Financial Statements Complied
IFRS 11 It Arracgenents MR
iF&S 12 | asclossre of Interests in Ontber Entities Complied
IFRS 13 |Fair Value Measuromant Complied
IFRS 14 |Regulatory Defemal Accownts B
IFRS 15 Revenue from eontracts wilk customars Complied
IFRS 16 Leases Complied
IFRS 17 Insusrance Contracts Lomplied
I-W i e of Prisparation

The accounting policied 421 0ut below, which comply with IFRSS, have been appfed consistently 1o all periods presented

EZ3 ADNTEL
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Rahiman Wastals Aam & To
P i A

200 StatesnEn ol Complance:
These financial statements of ADN Telecom Limited have been prepared on & going condei Bailh wnder hitorical eost

convenkion in scoondance with IFRS. The disloieres of infasmation ane smad in sccordencs with the requremens of
e Companigs Aot 1994, the Securicss and Exchaage Rulss, 2030 and the finsncial ststements Fave been prepared in
socordance with LAS-1 usleg the socrusl basis of sccountieg. dn the preparstion of thewe Firancisd statermants,
marapement uied pallable information fo rake fedgments, estimate and assumption that affect the sgclication of
sooounting pobcies and the reported amounty of sty snd labilities, incoma and expanses. Actual resubts ray dfler
Trasin thde stimates.

2,00 Going Concrn;
Thae Compieny hart adeguaste mapunces to oontinye aperation for faredeasbia Tutune and hince, the financial Aatements
hiwe Bewn prepaied on going concers badis, Ad i management assessment there are no material uncerainties
telated 50 wwlnis oF comaiions which mary cast signilicam doubt upon the Company's ability to continue as a going
congere It B wonh mentoeing that the Company mas been repuiatory getiing ks Brenas rerewed by BT8R dnoe 2003
BTRL Fas pheen boense renewed Tor 159, VSAT, and IPTSP bo ADN, The Company B oonfident that BTRC will cantinue 1o
renes ADN boenae in contideration of ADWS perfarmance,

.03 Functional and Presentation Curmency;
Bems inchuded n these Bnanciad statements s measured wiing the curréndy ol the primany &2onomic erdionment in
wihich the commpany aperates (the functional turrency’], Thede financial Latemests ane presentad in Bangladeshi Taka
(Taka,/ T /BOT] which i sl the fanctionsl cemency of 18 company, Tha amounts in these linancial statements have
beran rownded off to the nesrest Taks

1.04 Beporiing Feriod;
Thise fisgncial statements cover one year 1arting fram Juby 01, 2023 o jurs 30, 2024,

Emwu:hllnhunulhnhummlnmﬂdﬁumrhﬂlwmﬂﬂﬁwhmhﬂ
sEMements ahd alo the rarrative and descriptive information where it s relevant foe undenitisding of the Oafrent
yiar's Pmancial statemmenes. Figures for prior year have been re-armanged, wherewer ooridened neceiuiry, b efriurs

Th! mnﬂuﬂdﬁunﬂﬂmmhmﬂmﬂrﬂhlmnﬂuiﬂ mangemen 10 make padgments, eitimates
snd assumptions that atfect the applicatde of accounting polickes snd the reported sseants of sdets, Babilities, incora
and gxpenses, and disclosune fequinements for contingent assets and labilties during aned 25 the date of the financial
sEstnments, Actudl riiul ey diller from thids sstvmates. Estimates and undevlying sssumptions are meviewed oo oan
cngoing badli, Revigions of accounting estimabes e recognized in the period in wiich the extimate is revived in ary
future years affeched ax requined by 1A5 B: "Accounting Polickes, Changes in Acoounting Estimates. and Errors.”
1.07 paterisfity and Aggregatics:

Each material iterm comidened by managemant ad signilicant has Been presented separatefy in financlal statements. Mo
amount bas been set off unless the A0N Telecom Lid, hes & legal A to st o8 chie sevdsanis and intends o wetile on
rat Basi Income amd expenses ane presented on a ref basis only when permitbed by the rebivant sccounting
standands
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.08 Conjiitency:
In accondance with RS framework for the presentation of fnancial statements together with 1A5-1 and 145-5, ADN

Telesom Limited dacloses ity infarmation conslstently Fram cre pancd Eo the next, Whils selecting and spplying new
wnwmwruﬂhmuumwmdmmmmmmmmmm
dischoned retrospectively in acoordance with the reguirement of 1AS-8. Howeer, for changes In the acoounting
estimates the refated smount s recogrized prospectively in the oerent period and im the next period or periods.
2,089 POPEgn Lunneily TIardailins ard 1 ndiat o
2] Foregn curmendy trarastion:
TrarsactionsDay End Balamoes in foreign currencies ane cosvrerted into respective functioral carencies at the rate of
exchange ruling at the date of transactions as per &S 21 “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Bates'. Dffects of
Excharge rate differences (rabes at which transactions were initially recorded and the rate prvalling an the reporting
dite/date of jertlements) applied on the monetary 43515 of Babilinies of the company are recorded in the Statement
of Profa or Liss and Onhar Compreeadiag INCome.
&) Foreign cumency iranstations:
Aatets and liabilties have been presented into Taks fwivich s functionsl curmency of the Company] using year end spot
rate of pechange far the Company and incoenes and expenses are transiabed wsing spot rate of eachange. The fareign
currency trarslstion difference is a net result of escherge dilference of year-end standard mid-rate and monthiy
weerage of Wtandard mid rate arsing from trasslation of functional oomency to presentation curency,
.10 Stagament of Cash Flows:
% 1 requires that 8 complete e of financial natement requires preparation of statement of cash flows. The
statement of cash flows b prepared a4 it provides infarmation abeut cash Thows of the enterprise which s useful in
preniding users of financial statements with the information abost akdity of the emterprise 1o penerate cash and
utilizaticn of thase cash,
Sxatarnet of cash Mo Bas Baen prepaned under the direct method for the year end, cladified by operating. investing:
ared financing ectivities a3 prescribed in paragraph 10 a5 18{a) of IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows.
As par Chige Moo 5 (2] (e) of wotfication Mo, BSEC/CMARCD DO06-158/ 108/ Admin/Bl, Dated: 20 June 1012 a
reconcilistion of Net Cash Flow Frem Opersting Acthties bebween Direct method and Indirect method b thown in
Wate: 3300,
.11 Statemend of Changes in Equisy;
The Statement of Changed in Bquity réflects infaimation about the inonease or decrease in net assets of weahh. The
slatemaent akeo shows item-wise movement along with the description of changes from the end of last year to the end
af tsrrent year,
.12 Property, Masd and Equipment:
ﬂﬂm n-d-mlm.m.
In pursuzant to IAS 16: "Propeny, Plast and Equipment™, the cost of an item of progemy, plant and equipment is
recognized a5 an asset if, and only if it s probable that Tuture sconamic benefits associated with the ikem will flow o

the Entity, and the cost of the Rem can be measured reflably,

Froperty, Plant & Equipment bave been sccounted for ot cofl i3 sccumulated deprecistion. Coat includes exgendilure
Rt is directly atiributable 1o the soquisition of the ibems.

Supeguent costs of enhancement of existing stsets se recagniced as an asset, onby when it s probable that future
wconcenic benefits assocabed with the em will flew 1o the coempany and the cost of such Bems can be measured
refiably. All gther expenditures are chasged to the Ststement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehenihee Bncame in the
financial wear in they are incurred.
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A sets Obfalned wnder Leate Agpressnent

IFRS 16- “Leases” has come into force on 1 Januany 2019, ADN Telecom Limited applied IFRS 16 in its financial
Right-ol-use assots (RO

The ADN Tebkssom Limited recogrines right-of-use adtets at the date of inttial application of IFRS 16, The ROU adiet b
initlally measured at cost ot the st of the leaie Babibty plut any initial direct coets incurred by the lesaee snd
depreciaied uing the straight ine methods from the commencement date (Fiam e Bagineng of July 2009 to the
estlier of the end of the useful life of the right of uee assetor the end of the lease term. The RO aaiets are presented
under Right of use of Assets (Note S

Lieass Liability at the commencemaent date of lease; the ADN Telecom Lmited mecognices base labiigies measured a1
the present walue of the lesue paymsertd 1o B msde ey the lease Term using incremental bornosing rate at the date
of niial application. Lease labdity i3 messured by incresaieg the carrying amount to reflect intereat on the kease

Hability, reduging the chrrying amaount i reflect the lpase payments.

Chort-term lease aod keaied of kw valus Brsets!

Thee ADON Tebecom Limited has elected not to recognice ROU assets and lease Babilitias for lease of low walue aszets
waluing kess than BOT 240,000 pessthy and shart berm lease, L. for which the lease term ends within 13 montis of the
date of witis] application, The ADN Telecom Limited recognices kease payments associsted with thase laases a3 an
eapra

Ag per IFRS 16: "Leases”, summany of lpase related information |s provided in the tabile below:

Summary of IFRS 16: ;
| Particulars ROU Assets Leate: Liakility

ning, Balasop 07,580,088 65,805,282
Addntion 55 048,119 55,08, 113
Depreciation/Teterest Eapense 46,251 486 5852704 |
iraalated Depreciation) Lesie Payment 192,486,512 52,433,564
E-Eloil{-g Balance (Notes 5.00 & Annexure.A.1) 0.181.850 74,372,075
&] Depreciation:

Ho depreciation is charged on land a3 the Band has unlimited uselud Ble. Depreciation on assets is calculated using the
Reducing Balince Method to allocabe the cost amownt over their estimated wseful Bees, In medpect of addition o
Proparty, Plent & Equipment, depreciation i charged from the date of use. Mo deprecation is charged in the mosak of
dizposal.

Depreciation b charged wing the following rated on the Prapenty, Plant & Equipment except ROU assets, BOU assets
deprecistion is caloulated on straight line basi:
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Chartsrs Accoimim

Assats Category 20232004 I0R3-200%
Land and Lird Dewtlopement % %
Radio Link, infrastructure & Backbone Equipmeant 5% 5%
Diata Centre oSN o
Filspr Equipenent & Accessories 1 5%
Computes & Accessories 30 30
Office Equipment a8 i
Optical Fibar i L4
Fuarpiture & Fatings 10% 10%
IFTSP & Video Conference Eguipment i Fii
Moo Vahicle ii 3 0%
Leasehold Maobor Vehice % frin; 3
Support Equipmaent % ™=
) Gairi or Logs on Disposal;

&n itemn of property, plant and equipmast b de-recogrized upon disposal or win R0 fulure ecosamic benafs ane
eapected from ity use or dispoisl Any gain or lots on de-recognition of an item of property, plent and eguipment &
determingd as the difference EBsvween the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the et and B
recogrined 83 prodit or loas. However, Mo disposal ooourred during the year.

e} Complance of VAT and TAX;

ADN Telecom Limited compileet all rules ared reguliations of ITA-2013 and VAT and supplemantary Act, D12 for addition
of all Praperty, Plant and Equipmend.

A per the requirerments of WS 23: "Boerowing Costs®, diectly stfributable borrowing costs ave capialined during
coratruction paripd for all qualifying assets. A qualiyieg aiset is an aie) that necesarily tales & tubstantial period of
lime 1o get ready for its inbended use or sale. The borowing costs that are directly atiributable to the aoquisition,
coratruction of production of a qualifying asset are those BOrrowing oodts Cht would have been swcided i the
enparaditurd on the gualifying siset hid nat been misde. All other bonowing costs are recognized a3 profit or loss in the
iperad n which they are ncurred.

213 intangible Assets;

Intangible aisets [TAS - 38 Para -B] that are scquired by the Company such as computer woftware and have finite useful
et are maasured &1 oot RS Bocumulpied aenonizatian and sccumulded impairment loddes, i any. Subleguent
expenditure IS capitalived ondy when it increases the futune economic beredits embodied in the speciic asset to which
It relatios. |MIAngbE GisEls are amaniied on & redpcing halinds method and changed in ststement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. Amortization methods, uselul ives and resadual valises are reviewed ot gach reperting
date bl edpuited i appropeiate.

.14 |mpairmand of Assets:
) Wan-derieaive Minpncial asiets
Financial assets not clasiied as a0 fair value theoagh profis of lags, are assessed at each reporting date te determing
whethiér thére i4 ohjective avidencs that it B impared. & firancisl asset is iImpeired if objective evidence indicates thak
& boss gvent has cocurred after the initial recogrinion of thi aEset, amd that the kaas avent had & negative eifect an tha
estimated fubure cach fiows of that scset that can be estimated reliably.

B nncrsyin M ¥
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ki) Nom-financial sssets
The fareyieg S oF the non-fieancial maets, othes than investories sie neviewed ot each reporting dake to
determing whethar thene is sy indicaticn of impairmenl. If any isch indication Sists thin the sasty rocmrable
oty are Evtimated. For intangibde assens 1hat heve indefinge lves, reoowerable amount k5 estmated af each
reporting date. An impainment loss & recognized i the anying amount of an asset or its cash gererating unit {0GU]
enceeds ity eatimated recoverable amount.

215 Imopsimant in Adjocisten:
s par BAS-2E: “Irvestments in Aesaciabey and Joing Ventunes® this isnsiitrend 18 nidgoived 19 b Trepted w eveitmant
I Assoclate using Equity Accounting Method, Under Equity Accounting the camying value of the Invetimant is equsl to
cost plus any prodit earned after aoguisition.

.16 Trade and Oiher Recehrabies:
Apcounts Recehvable regresont the amounts dus from selgoniberns and other parties for services. Aocoonds Recevable
are ebasured ot the onginad imoice amount. Accounts Receivables are stated net of sllowance for doubtful f any
dabas. if amy other rectialdes comprae other non-brade receivabies and inberest receivables, Other recetvables are
stated net of provision for doubtful debts, i sy,

AT Advpnce, Depodi B Prepaments;
Achvances dee indially rasuned at oot Afver inial recognition, adwance are carried at cost less deduction, sdjustment
or charges bo cther account Feads, Deposits s measuned at payment value. Frepasyments ane nitlally measured at
oost. After initial recognition prepaysents are carried at ool beda changes 10 Statement of Profis or Loss ard Other
Comrgaehenshe Income.

*18 Caih & Cash Equivalenti:
Cash and caih equivalents comprise Cash Balances and call deposits with matority of three manths or leks From the
date of acquisithon that ane subject to an insgnificant rik of changpes in their fair valkee, snd are yded by the campany s
|hewﬂumafnuhmmwm

,pupnrlmﬂlﬂmtlﬂ mhunrrll.'l hmﬁmmhﬂ.}!? "Prestsbon, Coringent Labilntes and Contingent

Beds®, required management 1o make #imates bl siumptions that affect the reported smounts of revenued and
eapandad, BiEe1s and Rabdides, and the diciouse regurements for contingent saets and laklities during and at the
date of the fingncial statemens. Cug ta 1he inhpresl uncertainty imohed in making estimates, sctual nesult neporied
cenchd differ from those estimabes. Al provisions are recogniped By making th best estimate of the smounts.

340 Tredy & Cahar Pambles;
Trade B ather payabies lor goods and werdces received have been accounted for those god and senvaces for which no
payreeent hud been mads, Payatdes i not inberest bearing and are stated af their normal walue,

131 Finencla Insiruments
Moa-derivative Tinanclal instrements comprise scccunts and othed recahvabiles, cah and cash equivalends, bormoawings
and other payables are shown ot transaciion cost.

1.22 Emplgyes Barafinic
[a] Prowidint Fund:
The company operates & contibutory provisent fund for it permanent employee, which i furdsd by conbribution
partly fromn the employee and patly from the company 81 predetermined rvled. This contribution is irvested
separabely Froen the company’ i iidets. It B adminstened by a Board of Trudtes.
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B Grou Insurance Banafit;

The psrrearstnl amployees of 1k company are ofvered under & Growap Tesm Hiealth Insurance Scheme. Premium of
witich i Bing changed o Statement of Profl of Ledd and Othar Comprehensive Imoome. All regular employess are
entitled 1o the: EBersedits of the Group beim rdursnoe coveragi from the dabe of joining.

The Company has an fended and recognized gratssy schema for il parmanaent emgloyesd under which sn employes i
ertithed 1o the baredit depending on kength of serdge with the Companry,

The company has made a prosision for Wiorkers' Profit Participation Fund (WPPF] for the year ended 30 June 2004, The
Campany provides % of its net profil before tax after charging fwch expends 54 Workerd Pralit Pamicigation Fund &
accardance wih Bangladesh Labour Aot 2006 as amended 2003.

Isgmee Tax Expanses comprisa cumvent and deferred ties. Income tax expende it recopniced in the Ststement of Profit
or Liss andl Other Comprehenshee Inoomse exdept 1o the gxlaend it relates 1o ibems recognized directly in egquinty, in which
cae it i recogedined in eguity.

a)  Cuerent Tax;

Cusrrand Tao is thie tas payable on the tasable income for the year, wsing tax rates a5 applicable for the respective
concern year as per income Tax Act {ITA] 2023, and sy adjustrmssst bo i payalis in respact of prandout years. Curnedl
Tax has beern caloulated on the basis of add and back of soms inadmissinle and admissible expenses nespectively as per
ITA HOZ3. The tan rarte weed for the reporting period {Except revenue earmed from export senvice] s as follows:

20232024 12,508
20022023 |  20.00%

b Deferred Tax:

Deferred tau s recognined in accondance with the provision of 18512, Deferred tax arises doe 10 temporary difference
deductible or tacable for the eventi of frenisctions recognized in the dtatement of comprehenshve mcome. A
temparary diffevence i3 the difference between the i base af an it or lability and 05 Chying amount)’ repedted
amaunt in thi Feencial satement, Deferred tie isset or Bability i the amount of incomne tax payable of recoverable in
fuure period(s] recognized in the current perod. The deferred tax asset) income or Sabllity expense does nof create a
legal lishiity) recoverabiity to and from the income taw autherity, Thi i recognized Tor Book purpode ad equalration
item predacted in the faendial Ratements 1o ihow the retained samings as a consistent reflection of the business
wernts, The rature and aenount of a change as deferred taw in an accounting estimate that has an effect in the current
jperiod or is expected to have an effect in futune periods.

2.34 Caupital § Shareholder's Egu

a) Authorized Capital
Autheriped capitsl is the masimuam amount of Saee capital that the Company & authorioed by its Memorandum of
Association and Articles of Avsoclation to sue bo shareholder.

b Paid-iap Capital:
Paid-up Capital reperesents fotal amount of shareholders capital that has been paid in full by The ordieary shansholdens.

Haldan of ordinary shares are entithed 10 receive dividends s declared from time to time and sne entitled to vote at
shaehoddes's mestings, Ia the event of a winding-sp of the company, ordingry sharebolders rank after a8 ather
shasehodders and creditors and are fully entithed to sy residual proceeds of liquidation,
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€] Share Fremium:
The share premium represents the escess smount received by the Company from iz shareholders over the
nominalfpar value of its share at the time of IFO. The amount of share premium may be tilized a4 per the provision af
Section 5T of The Companies Act, 19504,

d} Eetained Eamings:

The sunphus. amount alter appropriation of prafit s kept in Retained Eamnings.

1.3% Propoved Dividend:
The amount of proposed diidend has net been accounted for but disclosed in the notes to accounts alorg with the
dividend per share in accordance with the requirement of WAS 1:"Presenation of Firaadial Stavemnents™- Also, the
proposed dhidend has ot been considened a0 "Liakility” in acoordance with the requirements of AS 10: "Events after
the Reporting Pericd”. because no obligation exists in the time of approval of accounts and recommerdstion of
dividend by the Board of Directors.
Dividend proposed by the Board of Directors for the period under review shall ke sccownted for afver the approval of
sharehailders in the Annus] General Meeting and the period of such approval,

Mnmnmmdﬂmmd:utmm of strvices rendered, to the exfent that it & probable that the
econgmic berefits from the transactions will fliow to the company and the reverues con be relishly messured.
Roveniats are meatured at the air value of the consideration received or recetvable, net of discourts and saled related
tawes. These taxes are regarded as collected an behal¥ of the authorities.
Revenws from rendering senvices include the fallawing:
Inkernet Serice
Data Servioe-IFVPH-IT Support & Service
1P Telephony Servce
Telehowse & Hosting
Digal Sanvices-IT Support & Serioe
Project Sakes
Wluliiprotocol Label Swiiching [MPLS)IT Support & Serdce
Internatianal Private Leasted Cirout [IPLCHT Support & Service
Coampiny provides thede servioes to the cient on & momnthly basi, and it is charged 1o the clents i prepaid oF podtpaid
badis. The compaey recognizes revenus on the following basis:
& The tomparry MECOEREDES Service b5 fevenus wien invaior i raied at the beginning of the month for prepaid
customirs and at the and of the mangh for thie post paid cusomers.
b Etenast incoena on Bank deposits and short-tem imestments is recognieed on receipt or accrual basks.
. All gther incomeg & recognized on receipt or due bagis.
301 Earmings Per Share (EPS):
The Company caloslates Earnings Per Share [EPS] in accordence with 1A% 35 “Earnings Per Share™ which has been showam
on the face of Statement of Profit of Loss snd Other Comprehensive Income, Eamings per share [EPS) has been
caloulated by dividing the nit profit after tax by the totad ramiber of ordinary shanes outstanding at the end of the
period. Detads are shown in note 30 ta the financial statements.

a] Basic Earnings per Share;
Bask: EPS is caleulated by dividing pralie of loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the entity {the numerator) by

the weighted merage rumber of crdinary shases outsianding [the denominator) during the period.

BT

ADNTEL
Annual Report 2024



@ Rahman Moatala Alam & Co.
Chanefe) AL

302 Related Party Dischosung:
Pasties are considered to be related f one party Bas the abilny, directly or indirectly, to control the other party oF

exprcite significent influence ower the other party in making financial and cpersling dechions. Pasties are also
congidered to be related IF they are subject to commen comred of comemon significant influence. Related party
tranzaction it & trensfer of rescunces, services, of abligations between related parties, reghndeds of whether a price is
charped a3 per WS 24 ‘Relsted Party Discicsures’, BSIE guidelines, Details of the relfated party transactions have been
disclceed in note 45,

3.03 Companents of Finangial fatemants:
&) Saatement of Financial Position
b} Statemnent of Profit or Loss and Other Comprebensive noome
) Statement of Changes in Equity
dj Statement of Cash Flowid; and
€] Notes, comprising & summary of significant accounting palicies and other explanatary informaticn,

Th: mnpurwn mreqmmd e comply with the folowing major legal provisions m addition 1o The Companies Act,
1994 and ather applicable Liws and regulstions but not limited toc

i1 Income Tax dct ITA} 2023

) The Vahae Added Tax Act, 3012 & Rules, 2016

fiij Bangladesh Telecommunication Regulatory Commisshon Act, 3001
W) The Customs Act, 1969

w) Bangladesh Labour Act, 2006 [Amended in 2003

W) Dangladesh Labour Rubes, 2005

wil) The Bargladesh Securities ard Exchango Commission Act, 1953
wiil) The Securities and Exchange Ondinance, 1568

in) The Secunties and Eschange Rules, 2120

%) Dhaka Stock Exchange Listing Regulsticns, 2015

xi) Chistapang Stack Exchange Regulations, 200%

ali) Corporate Governance Code of BSEC, 2018

n.:.perus m'Emumeruu Reporting Period™ are those events favorable and unfinoralibe, 1he1 cooer bEtwien the
end al the reporting year and the date when the Financial Statemerts se guthorized for Bsue, Two types of suent can
be identified;

*Those that provide evidence of conditiorn that existed at the end of the reperting period {ad|usting events after the

reporting period]; and
“Thots 1581 are indicative of cond@tions that arose after the reporting perdcd (nen-adjusting mwenis afier the reporting

pariad].
Deetails are shoen in pote 49 10 1 linandcisl 18 temants
3,06 Reconsillatio ] ] Ao
mﬂmum in rqp-a 0 Partias. fin Bangladesh and cutside Bargladesh) as well 33 Bank are reconciled at regular
intenals to keep the unreconciled bafances within nan-maderial kel
3.07 General
il Brewiows year's figures hawe been rearanged, whensever considered neceddary 1o confirm to the current years

presemtaton.
) Figures agpearing in the fmancial statements have been rounded off 1o the neares Taka
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: Aot in Taka
- Pi— Hane 30 T004_ | Iuse 30 1000
Lot
Cpering balsnon LOTE TR 1,800 7, 800
el ekl nn Suring The pericd 150 337 AT
TASRATRIZ LTINS
e depeasall pdan o) o g The eerhod C 5507515
—LASEAGS LD  LETAN1G4N
Dpereng Ralarae TIAA LR B56, 180, }H
Addd: Changed aring the gerod 5000504 5,783,218
] 418
S — e
*An eaborate wchedale of PPE a0 thasm s annssuns-i
4 |a) Comabdated property, plant ssd sguipmant:
Taw
Opening Ralsace 2075375174 1,500, 799,402
A BRI BT T P A37 631575 1 357
LI R 100 8ED THY
Laria: Chngrridd e e dhusing e perad = 5507 535
 LSLLEET14Y  LETHIFSAE
Arqumralsted deprecistion
Dipering Balwe TN ER1, 125 [ L ]
ddd: (hargped duning th perod LI2.TUS B2 85,479,935
851,396,551 MLIN.133
— TEREELLIS
Writan down vae —LESLETEIN L3NS
=An plabarste scheduie of PR ane ghowe in snceaure-il
520 Fighi-of-une of swet
Lt
Oipevunng Balace 207 SB0L0GE 181175367
Idd: pddfean dudisg The peried } E5MB 113 25,304,731
i L _
Cpaviang Balascw LG, 156 B2E 105,317 4634
hsd ERarged during the perod ___ENIEE  sETLIS
A rrin e s
it e 1 el OF BOH) 3% AN B SN A, |
5 |l Cordobdared Sight-ol - ol saen
AL Telc o Lirmited EUSELR. ;] B3 IES3T2
ADA Ty Services Limited — mnorsoEs -
—tL TN, S IEEANE,
" glaborate schedule of BOU are thown inasnewurs-i1
00 1Atk ASSEtd:
Tast
Oypeveing Ralarde 583,000 381040
At et dutiog the pevet S0
— TEmae LWL
Amarcaane
Oyptrerng Aalarce LIM6ai3 1,575,583
Aad: Crarged doring the period TN el

i platorale weRedube S Ling B ASuEtE B0k e o BEEHE
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Wirithan dowe walur

A plaborate m&hdwu e shzmd B arneue £

Jud 33, paTa

Tasm valym par

80

120

P i

1,000

100
g

AL [Inweibaei L 1S aas0d labes:

ALH Cegirad LB

AL P ia Lisaed

ADH Tabptom Lrsied Rk 555 aod 45% sharwr of ADH Diginet and 5N svedis brited repaciiay. A1 par U4 T8 Thi ibweilivsl 19 35100088 A reqered (o
B Eroated i using Dty Acounming Misthad. Undes [quiy Accousting the vyng vakss of the ivesimant in both compaey s Sl 1 005 plet sy prof

7.02 taver in pharnc Digening Addizian P L) Balance
[stahaf Limited | eopoooo|  sancdsos ] . 16361, 000,000
!I-n - Technalogies 163, | mj# h - B 5T 800
—tBAETAOD 60000000 : A0

O Telacnos Limited hakds BT and 1000 shaves of Shoboj limited and Digican Technologies Lid. neipectiosty. A3 pir IFRS T Lhis ireestmant
i evggubned 56 b Bredrtind i Ivesoment in financisl imeruments.

ADN Intmrnalional Galissy 1LS00,000 AA19AR
Ity Tl Cmavvenication Lid - B512AB5
ADN Diginet Lid. 3808153 LM
Al Midss Lanaed BAI% =
Cagioon Technologert L6 8,157, 800 A.257.M0
AL ERSILIO
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Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co.
@ CRAREED AoIOUrAARE

D0 Trade nd atied fedshoables:
Trade Feceteabie
OHher Betriwibie

BOL Trade receivables:
Opering Balares
Add: h3dran during The year

L Regeivedadpiment during the s
ki Prowtiaon for expected credit lom

2.09.00 Ageing of Avrounts Recehvilie:

1.0 da
11-80 dirgn
&1-30 day
F1 08D days
101355 days
wer 0%

&0 Deginet L1d

vy Tiol Lirruboel

Seruir Cilinen Heakhoas L.
Inipn Tachnology Lid.

SO Wade Lirmibed

00 Duretopemesats Lid

B i L.

e Regeraabie
Dpiving Balnde
Add: AdSiticn Craring i yedr

Lisk: Adjuribment Suring e yiad
O, Bakens e

*Thay nduid i recefeilile on FOR & Related partiey

*irvierest recivainbes bnciucde inteemt oo feed dipouit fecripts asd insenes charges on

Ela) Conialidpied Trade and othes recedes b

ADN Tbaoom Lissited
ADN Irtermational datewiy
AL Edu Servioes Limied

9,00 Adverce, Deposiy mid Prepiymentic

Duepersies,

Al the atowe Advance, Deposis E Prepayments aee consdened secutid and recinerable.

e
i Ter]

S14, 7O 938 SEO LEL.UB4
3T nasETi

T —

80 181 LB AT L0
LA LISHD
apmneTT LATi6316

Amgesnt in Tk Amcunt in Th

T8 AT AT AT 643 4B

IS0 45T 154 IR 0I7

5492197 bLE R
3. 188 580 FE S G
I a5, 353 10, 543 9400
2.0, T 11, 1 HLEES:
—TOLEOE | S80 1410
51135581 AT, M0 40
SR 50T B 18 SES Al
HL503,113 B 025 000
a1 178 553 A7 1TASEY
FLEPL S -
25,097,437 15613337
BTIR 546 A SET 0%
- LEnT
33,619 J2.TTE 134
irT2a 7040 472
I!‘ﬂ' T 413877
EM 185
—tE ELTTEIM
i it pday.
16,365,430 T, 504, 90K,
SE15T0 #4358 BEY
14077 . HE 11,768, 267
_dmaam niaaam

LONLE™ 7,000,006
7,480,815 :

— :

—BELIEAGE, _ BLORDGIE

ADNTEL
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@mmumﬂum&m
| Chartered Accourdant

Amaant s Taka
Hate iyt Jone SO M || e B0 3013
B0Y Adwancey
Erngderpres Tre 0 LAEERE]
Agumt impor TE57.04] IR0 745
Afidl aigfded 3, 1ES M 1,466 46T
Ircnme tan WO 1200507 5406, 50K
Duhers Lot R LR
— R, ITEAMELT
80001 Adwesce Income Tax
Dipesing Balanie B..II.IH lun Tl
Ad: Addisan during the year
e ﬁ"‘*ﬂ“’
9.80.0F Advasce to others:
ADN Techralogien Lid. 0506 E55
el Tboeos Lne W 52332340
Teech Villey Metworks Lid, R [ I
—AR LH S
20T D paitn:
I Bacyglaceih Lid. 4,000,000 4,000,000
Baivh fuat et ae 3 Mg 90201 B4R, TO1 9,575,850
Eameat maney foe fender security 20307 361, R 1,120,500
Saesurty depoin. JEDE 24 77150 3098 631

*Tha absvi depinits Bfe reviewed on The fepodting dibe ind contiuded poditheely Bound IS fecrwirabdiny
*A0N Telspom LimBed poid B0T-80, 00,000/ rwmmm&mmamrmuﬂ-ﬁmrmmﬂamhwm
Gulidlng, prior permission b regeined Tor any thane trarafer of KGW compary, ARl Share Four weprg nusbeni bed 1o BTRE But

Epprowal i 1D MeCEhd

Opering Balacs

e Afjuntment gurng the pear

#0200 Carnest Monay for Tesder Security:
Dpening Ralascs
el Akenkoa duiring the s

00200 Seurity Depodts
Ercurity Dirpoiatd-OiTiee B POF Rert
Saxtgriny Degasing 10 Qi

4 fa) Consolidaied Advanoe, Deposs ard Preparyments.
ADN Tebeoom (hmited
My Tl Covnisrasnicanian Led
A0M imerrational Gaieeay
ADN By Sersces Limiged

ADNTEL
Annual Report 2024

B575 850 14,383,372
£ 51T 38700
15,108 741 1EATELES
TAPRO 5000 11%
R 7., . %\ T— 111
1233450
aam Eaﬂ_
- _Eﬂ.ﬂ
LMiAn m
1391953 L3781
) L LETALS 12.074,800

137 644,290 208605 B30

2534530 LETLET
B4 a2, -
12003035 .
—lSRIETTEE 21105704




@ Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co.
Charianed Ascoumants

: i : Amaund in Taka
I st | _ FRr— R Jung 30 25 June 30 7033
1000 Orther Tinaaclsl indets
Fanders Rark PLT EX AT B0, T, M2
Cawnavapriny Bank FLC AT 148 064 &0044 000
Tha City Dank PLE 20,000,000 .
er— - i

*Cnher Niadacial Esets Cofint of feed depouia bepl with differen Sank and ran hanidng liagacial Rstitution.

"Al of he FRAL are bev with Banks and hEFI's
13 fa] Svermony
Opening

Sabes during the yea

10.00 Cash aned cash equivalents:

Caih i hard
Cash a% bank

1101 Caih in hand:

Branch oifis

Head oifus

Petty canh-imprest lund
Totsl

11,07 Cah at bank:

Rank Name

Bk Ay Fo
Community Bank,
et Bk PRE.
Dhutichs Basgts Bavik PLC
Easigrn Bank PLL.
Gl blgams Bk PLT
IFIC Bank FLC

Islani Band Bangladesh PLE
KU Barik FLC
Rrmana Bark PUD
Muiual Trust Band PLC
WEAL Rank B
Fubak haric Lid FLT
Rupal Rank PLC
Lol Bank PLE
Srand ged Barks LT
Tha Jiny Band FRLC
Uinara Bank FLC

11 [a} Tonmidated Cavh and Cash Equivalent

AN Tedeoem Limdesd

S04 Dewelcpmant Limited
laty Tl Communication Lid
ADN tntsmaticeal J strwey
A0 Fdu Seracrl Lissitid

103

2,000,503 1M 0%
— SL00.435  IS&GELEND
—ROALANE _ISEEITO0S
- 00001
LA 7,0
1040037 1,500,812
—— el B LR
S50 THL 5N
SR04 L55T
401,187 LK)
2219500 114,257
15,080,141 88,424,143
513,127 51455
L5514 PR LR ]
168065 A
130T e
6711 A5 H
TS0 14,595
S AH07 128,739,305
LR 53413
285440 po ]
EHLTEY T340
EFTE 3,550
42271 .
06 5T 4514
I3, B56, 255 5,104 254
BAL1TZ 353,317
bE| 1,758
. miearasm  1546EREN0
91,042,932 V56,527,008
21,760 112,355
Fa o] "
LAXL G -
1, M, TR0 -
—Iﬂ—..i !
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@ Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co.
| Chartersd Accoumants

ADNTEL

— | - Amouniin tass |
i pbviigis [ rnessacas ]| mene3ozom
1203 Share Cagital:
1101 Mambgriesd Capnal:
200,300,000 -Qrtinaey Shares of Th. 10 each —LOM000000 200,008,000
1202 Insesd, Sabiriat gand Pad-up Capitad =T
GAFS1.666 Ordinary Shares of Tk, 10 each —HASIEES0  GS3TRE60
F0-Jun-2d ~ 30Jus28
A —— Woof Holdiag | At W Taka o Holifng Ao b Tkl
Al Wagheaood ERO5% 129, 000 G0 1R18% 138 Ol (00
M sacire Idam oS 65, L0000 flatir, E5, 100,000
WAd Aabibui A Sahel glaliri ) 5, 100,000 jlatic; 65, 100000
Wanguard AL BD Finance Munual Fusd Cne T0Ex pERERKT ] TOER 1R300, 380
Henry Mikion 1% 1,240,000 LEE 1,280,000
MAchamead B farker D0 . 1.30% A5 3 00
Mamoncor Raykid L] 3,050, 000 LOT% ‘Im
Subs-Total ALEBLN ITEEIR 30 L85 T30 344, 180
Obeirr than Spceson and Direcbory ST18% 55, B 300 E;;ﬂ- EE&
ST o Sta 31680
Sporann | Depcor FITT FTET)
Imstte 1E54 1719
Farsign 159 159
Cearvirial Prabiic b aC 5.9
1205 Cesrrdpation Schedule of the Shares:
Earge ol Shanehoidings Murmier of Sharehalkden. Tetal Mumiser of Sharet I HIWJ| S 30, 3033
05,000 1,730 155 a,
8, 000 000 AT T.363,5%09 11.5% 1210
001 SO0000 ™ 7,933,330 1138 1.7
00, (0 500, D00 12 B, Oetd, 523 (L1 a3z
S0, L« 1, 00060, 0000 & 4251448 658 600
1, 0000, 00t 54 651 GES 11 36 458457 ﬁ 85 86
%‘ £ OO ]
1103 Retaired sarsingi:
Cpening Balanoe o14 857 587 TILSTL TSR
Mt Frofi afver Tas for the year JE& %1!1
LOSE, TEO.061 SROLLYT BES
P year prpistment ' [LLOE 296]
Dévidend Dacared [96.977.49% {64651, 656
17 [a] Comalidxied Resained Exmings:
Cpening Balancs S OT7.I03 TILETLTSE
Met Profit after Tax for the year 140467000 258,14 537
1063 548393 979,747,045
Frior it SRt . [L.00:E 216}
Chosing Balance I, e AT

Annual Report 2024




@ Fahman Mostafa Alam & Co.
_ Chartered Accountanis

Arraurnd in Taka

B40) Ledre Liabiities: -Nen-current
Ty Bank LT
PO Finands PLC
gt -ool ol Of arigats

14 fa] Comaldated Ladia Lisbiltieic-Non-curmmt
AMD Felecom Limasd
MO Eddu Serwiies Lisied

101 Ldde LisbEftbei:-cumeni
Ddaig Bask LT
PRC Finanoe PLE
Right-od-une of saegy

b |b] Corsobdaced Lease Liabilited-current
AN Tebecom Limted
ALY Eda Serdces Limined

15,60 Loan and borrowing:
Mon- currinl
Cuerang

1500
150

® Dartail deicianere of Lod anad Borrpwings haee been showm bn Arnesre-£

1550 Now- pprreng
10LE finargy PLE
HOEC PLE
NERC Bank PO
Earters Bank FLC
Tha City Bandk FLLC
Less® Curmient portiens

15 53 Cunni
Cuenist partion of kaeg term loan
St i boan s Bank sverdraly

Corrent portion of lang term kean
IDLE Rt PLC

IDFC PLE

MWRBC Bank PLC

Eaitere Bask PLE

Shout berm inan ard bank swerdrafs
The Oty Bank PLLC
Cammurnily Bank PLE

Earitorn Bank PLE

Dhaks Bard PUE

15 fu) Consslidned Loant ssd Barrtwing
AHD Teleoom Limiing
55 Qewnbogamenis Limited
Wy Tl Commuriration Lid
ADN Ingermatonal Gaieaary

1,988 300 LETE HI8
b T LE] 1,753 TH
1,847,350 30,340,553
37540 55 3LEMATS
S5 B B3 LEd
THIAE IS TEL
A% i
T e BRIT IS
[iNF: EPT] 35,617 SES
 LBopg: :
e ALIRAM  BETTSES
151, THA 54 LER - |
o 1SHAINEST  S015MAOH
—tTLETIE | LESASTIA
BE 26 41 C1981.82%
41,848 233 55,303, 3140
S0,08T 208 -
155,000 48 -
___ [annsen £1.135,471
TEEIESET 7,135 471
ﬂﬂn H:E LEF
20.518.8T1 1EA48] Sd3
16,001,654 15362028
20,E47.008 0,395, 500

30,139,735 16 1B ET
15, TGE 951 19 155 D5E
L457,583 .
— 1L '
— AT
153,123,697 102573403
2,147, %50 T A% O
£177.955 .
— 0N :
—mpeepe,  INTRES
ADNTEL
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Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co.
@ Charlensd Accounianty

Mzt Parteulin
1600 Prowisans
Saiaearg g alowanog I3 RE2A0L 20,6500
Ranchwidth wed fiber rent 15T 36,171,365
IFTSP imeroomnecson changes 4,238 751 1637264
Creriime correeyarcs and sliowance 6415,347 1.815.307
Al b utinies SATE M LEET R ]
'i':l‘\ll:llliml 3005, 574 1,365,000
At e 1T, 50 #02,500
T —— 13,452,840 3203141
78,425,043 72,312,381
16 |a] Comalidsted provisies
AND Telecors Limted TRAS A0 T2,ELE 361
Haty Tl Comrwira o Lod F&LLY B
B Irf el G EbEway 11634278 .
ADR Edu Servcik Lissiting -
R Lol
1700 Emplayes beneliis
Emplopees Grafuity hund 1T 48,000,030
Worker's profit participation fond 156, T4 16,008,001
L, e DUTSEET
1701 Eesplopess Gratulty fund ;
Opening Balarce 55,093,999 0,850,733
Addl: Prorwtibee Ssring The year ; :
TEBLTTA
Lirti: Diburiement during tha yoar _ﬁ: — I ES0THS
i 1R
1782 Worker's r Fand
ﬂwﬂ'ﬂiﬂﬂm :m: ﬂ.&ﬁﬁnu

iafd: Prowision during the yesr

Irecereg T,

#is per fangladeh Lubar Act, 1006 a5 amended in 2013, the amourd i computed 8 5% of ret profit belom

7.03 Emplyyees provident
o g Balanre e 19,947,518

Digering
Less: ddjurtmest durieg b year %
_m

17 00 Trsde and othes payablas:

Tagede: paeyatdns 1EM 170,514,561 118395169
Othes payable 180T 30,783,553 &1 THAND
— LB iAo

1801 Trads Paysbiey: B
Gpening Ralance 138, 194, 150 130,382,803
dadet: Adidimion During the year #1545 HM 455
LesyPayrrand fadjuatment during Bha yeer E8! “ Elﬂ,ﬂi
-

Trade P

Againg of iryilsle: G L

1M dwri ' 2171273 LTI
5150 days AR55S,ARE 2 450, 160
f1-50 days 29,160,052 9405, 105

010 E 18.861,067 16,231,350
1EL:3E5 dawys 10,590,637 &17hSH
Ower 3065 oy b, 150 3,179.411
—IZhIIL150
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Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co.
Chamarnd Anoounianis

Haole Parkelarn
‘Withholding tas payabis 24,045,438 TLESE
‘withbheldng VAT payable 140,57 iﬁ-.,ltm
Fayable in empkyeei 5,132,510 1947508
18 |s] Comolidated frade and other payable:
ALY Tidedinim Limisad 208,198 134 0 i, B0
508 Dnrppboprrerny, Lonited 1,156,797 LA13,635
ALH Intemational Gatrmiy Lid. S4B 252 -
ADH Eda Sersoes Limned 6 801752 —t
—rt SRR, ITLIBRIIE
1980 Pravisken fae Tas Liabality:
Cuemers tas 103 MES. 37 B3B3
Daplivrad tim 1502 137,483,173
_m_m
1984 Proviskan far Cument Tas:
Opsering Balance LER PR HLESE S0
Add Feoeasaon mpde during the year 2700 M Hi } i?,ﬂgu
4,550, 518
Liss: Adpestimerl & Pakd daring the year L1 L] i E5E LG
177
1983 Provisken bae Deferred Tan
Cipering Balance TNTARL1TR 1hL, 345,500
Priniilon fodlined during hi yiar E.00 ) h 6,100 s
1903 Calolation of Dafermed Tax:
Taraie
. Camying on deductsle v Desferad Rax
T g dule | TTT [— || Applissbis reis ”w
Ay on 3 lune, 3037
Pungeerty, Flant & Equipmeni LEITRA 06 EEEISRIE  BEDAISEVS % 137.483.17%
As a0 30 Fane, 2034
Peogety, Flani & Equipmen: LEIT 05550  BREAALERE TIELSSS 19T 215 179 697 544
Grabuiny Prastshon {0, 054, B T4 = P, 054, 1) 5% 143,512, 38E)
Eapeted crede kiss prowhsos 4334772} - [4,354, 721 pris [975,324)
Termporary diference bor IFRS 16 (RO (70, LEL A% [ELR LR ] 21.9% 15 T
Defeered Tas sty TS
Dadereead Tan ba been caloslated on taxable temporary difference only i g Frudent Concepl
149 ja} Conpolidated Provision foo ax liability:
ADN Telecom Lirmiled MARAN 1T RERE1Y
SIS g viinils, Liones £3m :
ADN imerrationg Grievay & RS, 15
ALN Edu SenvDes Lamibed 414830
R - T
ummmmm
ADN Takesorn Lirmeted 149, 4159 203 137 463,173
S0 Evrwelinprnienits Linrsied 7] H
ADN Imerrationgl Galiway 3514
ALN Edu Savioes Linited .EE!- .
AL USTARATS
2000 Usclalmaed Dividend
Flrand kol Year FO2T-2023 281,293 =
Ferasncial Yaar 2001-2007 ITH 16K 1F
Firancial Year 2090-2021 133,145 151,048
Firwscial Yaar 20052000 " A AGS
PR T
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& Co
@ R

Amcaunt in Taka
Note Particutars Mby "’:: 023 mm:;m
Junae 30, 2024 June 30, 2023
21,00 Rpvenus:
Local services 21.01 425592193 A7, 744,529
IT support and services 1.0z AB7 126357 471,613,011
Export servicas-ionesgn currancy .03 L16 THT 044 G4 B9R 572
LTSN 1315611
21.04 Local services:
IFtEnnet senvioes 378,152,008 283,249,907
1P sdephany sndons 0426673 31,607,268
Telehouie arsd hosting senaas 2,604 627 BI2.319
Project sales 5 S0, 795 12,058 035
35,692,190 ii—‘—'—z 743,529
21.02 1T support and services:
Crata sanvice-IPVPN 48T 126 35T l!_Tf!..El:'I.Dll
—LA2EICT ______ATLELIO0LL
21.03 Export Service-Foreign Currency:
Multiprotocsl Libet Switching (MPLSHT suppornt and senvices 423 63,040 530, 146, 596
Ieternationad Private Leased Circus® [IPLCHT supoar and services 24,504,004 ‘.I.-HIE-EIIQH
5T P —— YN
i fa) Comsolidated revenue
ADM Telecam Limited 1,425 585 5594 1,344 256,212
5005 Developments: Limited 38800 2,320,600
ADN Intarnational Gatpway 63,406,500 -
ADN Edu Servoes Limited 13168773 -
22.00 Costof goods sald and services: '
Bandwidth and transmizsion (NTTH) 315,439,597 227 275,651
Infrastructung, squipments and notwork expenses 154,143,122 112,816,298
Last mile lease rent TB.115.735 8,708,272
Salaries and allowanoes 148, 440,079 144,434,084
Point of presence (POP) rent 17,594,130 14, 706, 556
Uidinies 19,598,045 13,537 854
Bepair and maintenance 3,703,503 1,525372
Traweling and corveyance 1536842 2,095 245
Petrol cil and lubricants {POL) 11696161 10,456,791
1P Telephony Inter consectivity Sxponses 14,372 957 11919015
IPTSP revmriue sharing 1,185 G54 TA0A51
Ligenaes, subscriptions and regulstory fees 5,348,576 5,805,563
Telephone, mobile, courier and fax 5,140,231 4815 T8
Depreciation 109,700,430 104,031,980
—
*Deanils of depraciation are shown in Annexure-A,
#3 (2] Consolidated cost of goods sold and services
ADM Telec o Limied 90,060,515 726,164,054
505 Desslopments Limited 565,000 1904910
ADN International Gabeway 139,739,540 L
ADN Edu Services Limited E— T : :
e SRS ETY, e T28.062,008

ADNTEL
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Mote Particulars

13.00 Administrative expenses:
Salaries and aliceances 110318738 111,811,565
Utiliias 10,445,659 8,106,671
Printing and statioreries 1LB9T 686 1,663,016
Traealing i COPMYRN0E 2,065,854 1,504, T48
Petrol oil and lubricant [(POL) 12520497 11,263,150
Lipgnsas, subscripticns and regulatory fees 3,336,503 2,450,331
Telephans, mobide, couriar and fax 1.315.457 1,474,357
Fees and charges 3.870,761 2410677
Office maintenance 6,864,732 6,546,475
Repeis & maintenanos 2608340 2,004 67
Entertainment 1,757,192 2,023,111
Ingurgnca 1.669.535 1,443,524
baedicsl 1,409,126 1,027,854
Training and devefopment 510.72% 1,250,813
Bank charges 1,784,792 2,347 667
D praciation 209 555 880 22,628 450
Amortization ) 1187123 101 o4

23 (a)

244a)

"% per IFRS-16, POP Rent is treated as RO Assets and Charged depraciation on it
*Datais of Dopreciation and Amoetization are shawn in Annexure & and B,

Consolidated administrative experses;

ADM Telecom Limited 193 137063 151, 054, 640
505 Developments Limiged 4,556,437 1,006,405
iy Tl Commumication Lid 1.245.001 s
ADN Intermational Gateway 10,095 764 -
ADN Edu Services Limited 460,566 .
Marketing, selling and distribution expanses:
Lalaries and allowances 73,584,993 70,842,331
Busingss deviopment and promaotion 10,365,397 6,396,475
Achertisement, Sponsarship ard media buying 10,763,757 49832 713
Trawelling and corrveyancos 9.184.083 7.512.358
Petrel o and lubricands {FOL] 1625586 3,059,669
Printing and stationsries 4,034,785 2,980,151
Telephone, Mobile and Fax 1,096,600 947 895
Entertainment BE3BEY GE0, 245
Expected Credit Loss 4334773 4215440
LTS 10051278
Consalidated Distribution and Marketing Expenses:
ADN Telecom Limited 117 85T 456 106,617 378
5045 Developments Limited 424,200 -
ADN Imernational Gateway 3735177 :
—l2i T3y I06§IT2TE

ADNTEL
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Mote Particulars ok i i i
_ June 30, 2024 Bune 30, 2025
2500 Fimance |eapense]/intome
nterest income
Related parties 5425319 4,950,845
Shart Larm i posit 1,343 467 2,405,731
Fized deposit reLeipis 4,684,275 3,532,476
Provident fund forlelune amouni 1,439.999 BIE456
Gain on disposal of assets - 1.358.924
12,893,061 13,106,473
Interest Experied:
Tesm loan 7082 844 10,320,812
Lease [ipbiliey (ROLY 5952714 6,369,229
Finance lease 582467 428971
7 17,118.012
Het fimance (expense]/income _‘% #Hﬁm
25.01 aterost on tEnm loan:
Ievlenesst on pyverdral 7A52.964 1,204,129
Shart tarm loaen QAGT.579
Long berm o 10,161,904 9.116.683
S 2. r V. - W— -1 18
I50a) Corsolidated financisl exparse:
ADM Telecom Limted (20,724,564 | 4,012,539}
ADM Edu Services Limited (4, 817,524) -
= — s
2600 Exchanpe |Gasn)/Loss: £
Transaction] gainlficss 12,05 (11,618,560
16 |a) Corsolidated exchange [gain)/lous:
B0M Telecom Umited (12 051,053] 111,618, 560]
2700 Incomie T3 EARENSTS
Currant b 3830631 ITBATHIT
Pravision skartfall 17,627,756 3,225 506

27 {a)

1500

I8 (%]

ADNTEL
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*Dertails are shawn in Anrsmang-O

Cornsolidated Current Tax Expéniat:
ADM Tedecom Limited

S0 Dealopmsents Limited

Al International Gabeway

AN Edu Services Limited

Digfersad Tan Expenses/|income) 19.02

Consofidated deferred tax experses) [Incoma):
A0 Tebecom Lmited

ADHN International Gateway

ADN Edu Services Limited

) EEE 5%.108.313

51,957,387 58,108,319
£.903 13,924
4,855 153 =
414,830 -
—wange s
11,936,030 6,133,864
ﬁm [CETFETE]
11,936,030 6,133, 864
B514
33,545
— GI3LAER
*



3

30 (a)

Rahmen Mostata Alam & Co.
Cirapriaeraed Arcoasnisnis

[Hame [ Dasignation | [ Jumw 30, 7024 _| [ June 30, 2023 ]
Disclosure of managerial salary:

The tatal amaunt of salary pald 1o the director of the company during the periad is as follows

Henry Hiltan Maraging Director [Ex-officia) — 5340000 5430000
The total amaunt of salary paid to the Directors nd 0P exeoutives of the company i as follows:

Salary 47,238,029 38,856,154
Benefits 4563931 2,880 828

b 260
1) Mo amount of maney was expersed by the compady fof compensating any member of the Baard for specisl terdces
rendgred,
il) The company does not pay Sy board mesting attendance fee 1o the directors of the compary.

Disclosures under para 3 of Schadule XI part Il of the Companies Act 1994 [amended upto 2020)

Salary Range | Monthiy) Mumber of Emplayees

Baskrw TE. 3,000 il

Aboed T, 3,000 565
Disclosures under pars 6 of Schoduls X1 part Il of the Companies Act 1594 [amended upto 2030}
Rakenan Moatala Alam & Co. Chartered Accountants Audi Fee 517,500 402 500

517500 02,500

Earnings Per $hare (EPS):
Basic Eammings Per Share [EPS):
Profit Attributable te Ordinary Shaneholder 144,301,074 458,535,111
Welghted Average Numnber of Ordinary Shares Duistanding
durirg the Year 30,02 64,651, 666 6, 651,666
Basie Easmings Per Share [EPS) IE d,

Weighted Average Mumber of Drdinary Shares a3 on 30 June, 2024:
The fallowing caleufation for the denceminator of the EPS calculation.

Parsbcalary | Nuamber of Days| Number of Shares | Weighted Average
Outstanding in lsue Number of Shares
Cutstanding shares as at 1t July 1033 365 G4, 551 66 64,651 656
Cutstanding shares as at 30 June 2024 —rLE5L666 B4,651,656
Cansalidated Batic Earnings Per Share [CEFS):
Profit Attributable o Ord@nary Sharcholder 145,467,090 258,174,327
Welghted Average Nufmber of Dedinary Shares Dutstanding 30,03 64,651,666 G4, 651, B66
Basic Earnings Per $hare (EPS) FETH £.00
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Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co.

[Particulars |[otes ][ June 30,3024 | [ June 30,3023]
Net Asset Value Per Share (NAVS):

Share Cagital GG, 516, BED 646,516,660
Sharg Preméum 413,704 655 413,704, 659
Retained earnings —?il_tﬂl:i?_ 14,457 587
et Asset Value [NAY) 1 1

Tatal numbser of Existing share 30,03 H.Eﬁig_ 54 651, 566
Met Asget Value Par Share [MAVE] — XN
Consolidated Met Asset Value Per Share [CNAVS):

Share Capital E46, 516,660 b6, 516, 660
Share Premium 413, 704 659 413,704,659
Rietained earnings 56, 506, 704 414,077,203
et Asset Value (MAV] 2026, 78R 113 I.’H‘Jﬂ,ﬁ.
Total rumbser of Existing shara I5.07 64,651 666 54,651,666
Consolidated Net Asset Value Per Share [CNAVS) EIEL ) —30.50
Het operating cash flow per shans ;

Met Cash Flaw from Operating Activities 333,127,748 157,534,126
Total number of Existing share 54,651,666 B4,651,666
Het Dperating Cash Flow per share CFE A4
Opecsting cash flow per share @

Net Cash Flow from Dperating Activities 385,033,024 166, 280, T3
Total fumber of Existing share 1,656 64,651 66E

Recontiliation af Cash Flow trom Operating Activities through Indirect Method:
As per Clause Mo, 5 (2] (o] of Natification Mo. BSEC/CMRACD/2006-158/208/Admin/81, Dated: 20 June 2018: A

Reconciliation of Met operating cash fiow under indirect bMethod is provided below:

Cash fiow fram operating activities:

As per dinect methed

As per indirect mpthod:

Profit afver Income tax

Add: Non cash iem

Depreciation Changes

Armortication of tangible assets
Werkers' Profit Participation Furd [WPPF)
Share of profitfloss] of assacisnes
Deorepts i Income tax Provision
Encrease in trade and other recesvables
Increase in advance, depadits and prepayments
Increass in trade and cther payabdes
increase in Prowision

Deferred tax assetsflabilities)

et Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Cash received from customers:
Revenue during the year
Changes in Trade Recaivabis
Exchamge gain

21.00
2.00
260

144,301,074 258555 111
139,257,790 126,680,410
1,197,122 101,024
14,538,577 6,529, BG5S
3,140,472 {E77,083)
(1,553,182) 4,214,310
(28,867, 380) (160,044, 795)
75,575,829 (24,099, 285)
[31,915,166) (1,761,023}
7,113,081 {2,778.267)
1,429, 585,594 1.344.256,212
65458, 146 [111,465.620)
11.@51:mz 14,554,574
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@ Rahkmman Mostata Al & Co.

[Particulars | Notes | [ Pune 36, 2634 | [ june 36, 3673 |
Collection from customers and cther

ADM Telpoom Limiged 1,486,567 281 1,254 717 BT?
5005 Developments Limited 6,566,232 F20,E00
ADM bnbernational Gatesdy 14,476,315) '
ADM Edu Services Limited 10,448,388 .

Cash paid 1o suppliens and othars!

Cost of Goods § Serviied

Changes in Trade and other payable
Depreclation in Cost of Goods Sold & Services
Trarelation gain

Consolidated cash paid 1o suppliers and athers:

ADN Teledom Limited

5045 Developments Limited
My Tiel Communication Lig

ADN Imerrational Gateway
ADN Edu Servces Limited

Payments for operating expendes
Change in Advances, Depasits amd Fre-paypments
Changes in other recervabbe

Change in Accrued Expenses

Advance Income Tax

Administratnee E‘I:pl:rl!ﬂ

Distribution & Marketing Expenses
Oepreciation in Administrative Experdes
Amartichlion in Adminsiratine Expantes
Contribution ta WPPF

Change in employess benefits

Consolidated payments for operating expendes:
ADN Telecom Limited

505 Developments Limited

My Tel Communication Lid

ADN Interablaonal Gateway

ADN Edu Services Limifed

Financial expersas pald:
Finarcial Expenses

200 (888015452)  (M6906883)
1500 {31,915,165) [1,761,023)
220 109, 100410 104031 580
26.00 - (2,936,004
(618,774530) (627.661,910)
195 08 (673, 754}
{75,118.645) .
19,590,556 :
B (2 )
75,570 829 (119202 359)
(81,432 565]) {35,472, 707]
7113081 {2,778, 267}
e 25 436 BER
(193,137,063)  (177.884213)
(117,857 85&) (106,617 278}
20,556,880 22 628,430
1,197,123 101,024
(10,566, 745) -
14,538,577
L L L)
[M2E16570]  (403.254587)
15,02, 289) 1631,553
(B4,651,956] -
114,220,558) -
Eumass] -

l}!!,!ii! i!SI
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@ Rakman Mostals Alam & Co.
Craneed Ao

[Particulars

1[_Motes [ June 30,2028 | [ June 30,2023 |

interest received:

Opening Imberest Receivable
Interest Imcame during tha year
Less: Closing intorest Aeceivable
Interest Received during the year

Consalidated financs axpenies pald:
ADM Talecom Limited

50% Developmients Limited

ADM Edu Services Limited

Income tax pald:

Tan Payable Opening
Add: Prowvision during the yoar

Tax Pasyakbe Chosing
Tax Pald dusing the year

Consodidated Income tax expenses :
ADN Telecoen Limited

32,776,234 27042472
12,893,061 13,106,473

EBJ':T?E.HJE

(20,724 564) (1%, 466 680]

; {4.454]
(4.817.524) -

175,365,986 160017812
63,893,417 64,242,183
739,759,201 728,750,595
183,74 175,365,986
Eﬁ — OO0
[55,510,569) 48,594,009]




Hatman Mostals Alas & Co.
e

40,00 Addggn repaymend io Lesre Labiltey: )
[Pariatans [ motes  |[ sonedo zas |[ pune 3o man |
Cloing Leas Labilmies 1400
Opening Leate LSty 1450

AL Feancial Rish Managemen:
nbpmationsl Finandisl Reporting Stasdasd IFRS 7 "Financial irearuments: Disclosures™ - requines dscionune of information relating
mirl fair vabses and rak indormation the compenies policies for oontrolling roki ind exposutet. The company has expotene Lo the
fadloraing riski fro i15 use OF TASNGE NS MEBEML
- Crpdin Righ
= Liguidity Fisk
« ariet Ritk
Thie Baaid of Dirgcsoes hid reivall Fesporaibiling for the establishmend and ovenight of the oompaey’s righ masagesent insewod. The
Board overiees hive mansgemens mosilen compliings with 1tk wanagement poscies and procedunes, and nevidwd B sdiguicy o
i sk massagEmen iramework in relagion jo rak faced by the comgany.

4200 Cresdit Rik:
Credit rik b5 the risk of fnancial los: to the company iF 5 culemes oF COuRDENPAITY 10 3 Tnaecial instrament fals fo meet i

iontractesl obligation, and arke princigally from the company’s receivable from cusfomens and imvestment securitie. The compamy’s
Egverae e made w0 Bank, Francal irmbitetion, Multnstional (orporate, Public & Privaoe L. companses, ADN's sirategic pariners
inchade amaong the lispeil compansss in the ghobal selicommaenicaiond secton, induding Sisgapore Telecommuncations Lid. [SingTel],
Tats Comnimenications Lid 25 well 3 Orenge. The comgany dho Bai & strabag Slkesce with Bharti Airel and Brigish Telecom (BT).

Exposere o Credit Rink
Trade and Othes Recihables BIL035, 105 Fa5 050,916
Advance, Depoait & Prepayments 137 544, 199 TEA 334,128
Cain and Bank Estance __apuss  1sesIo0s
TR T ST

! ) s ot 33 June T034

c"'-" ; R | Grest || Amount || (]
Trade and Other Becurables BIL005, 105 TI
Esbeanie, Deposit B Prepaymends 137544, 1 13.H%
Cais it Bl Balanoe TA553,B55 TI0EN,
Cahs 6 hand 20,503 . 19%
Cash at bank _ msese 6
Eank Aua PUC AL 652,052 (L5
ERALC Bank FLC AAL £8 324 DD
Corrmianity Bank PUC A 493,557 11,14
haka Bk PLE Ah 2215500 oIS
[Durtch Ranglta Bank PLC Ads LA 0 200%,
aibers Rank PO AAE 513,127 05N,
hadsad idarml Band PLC A 2568 514 LI5%
W Bank PLC BA L530,565 0 1E%
Hlami Bank Bangisdesh FLC B 1200007 012
Inrmiing EBank PLC HAL &TI1 00
lanats Bank FLC Ba(RAAS 13.50% Qui0as
Sutual Trust Bank FLE A 40424071 e
WABL Bank PLT A 04,122 Lk Y
Pishali Rartk PLE AAE 570, T80 CUES s
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. Rahman Mostala Alem & Ca,
@ i) ALO LR

As at 30 lune 2024

i et Credit | Amcunt v [%)
Rupak Bank PLC A-AKA} 34 800 0.0
Sonali Bami PLC s AAA] 4737 0.00%
Starediard Bank PLE ARY 506,575 0.0%%
Thae City Bank FLE LEY 23,123456 2IT%
Usitid Commercial Bank PLC AR 5172 || .08%
Uteaen Bank PLC A 21 0.00%
Liquidity Risk:

Wigubdiny visk is tha risk that the Company will not be able fo meet it Snancisd abligations a5 they fll dus. The Compamy's approach o
ennaging Equicity & 1o endre, as far as possible, that it will abways have sufficlent liquidity 1o meet it labithes whan dis, under bath
marrral gnd Pressed conditians, withoul infurring unacoeptable losses or risking damage o the Company’s rputition. Typically, the
Company erdungs That it has sulfciat cash and cash equivalent to meet expected operational expenses, including the servicing of
finaniciad obligation through pregaration of the cash forecast, prepared based on tme line of paymend of the finsncisl oblipation ane
accordingly amange for sufficient Bquidityund to make the expecied payment within due date. Moreover, the Company déeki ba
eprtaln short term Bnes of credit with swheduled commencial banks o ensure payment of obligations in the ovent that there b
inauffickent cash to make the required payment. The reguirement is determined in advance through cash flows projections snd credit
nas facilities with banks are negotiated accordingly.

Thae Fedlewing arg the poniractual maturities af financial BEabilties a3 at 30 June 2034

Caarying Maburity | Mominal | |Wikin § montha||  \Wichin 6-12 than
Particulars Amount period | Inkerest rabe ar hedy maonthi e
) Taka Taks % Taka Taka Taka
Tradis and othar payables L, 23E,114 . M o0 A5 057 100,548,057 | -
o 79,425,447 . T 52.5950.295 26475, 147 | .
Loans and borrowings 421,882,738 ; 000 79,551,849 THE61E 262758541
Leaae liakdlites TRGTL ALY 1200 564,422 0,564 417 -
Contribution 1o WPEE fund 0560, T4% | Ma-15 A . 10,566,748 -
Prosduion for tax labdity 34, 320631 - HiA " 34,320,631 -
| Todal: 826,173,656 353,725,622 || 272,146,854 252,758,541
Market Risk:
Currency Rk

The Compary is exposed bo curnenty risk on punchased of eguipments & received curnency from ghobal Partners that are denaminated in
a paiTengy othver than the functional currency primariy in U 5, DaBars, The affects of foreign purchase are instgnificant to the Company.
The Cisripiry P Aot amtered into any type of dertmtves instrument in order 19 hidpe foreign curmency risk a5 at 30 June 2004, There
are no foreign corrency messetany dssels and lakdites a5 a8 30 June J004 resulting net exposure (o forelps ourmency ik i ml,

Inberest Rate Risk
rvberest rade risk i thee sk thad arkes dus to changes in inberest rabes on bomowings. Local fufrenty baded an howaver not sigraficantly
atfected by Muctuations in imterest rates.
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@ Rakhman Mostala Alam & Co.
C: hanrferied Aledrunilae

Contingent Liability:

As por 1AS 37: A contingent Liability s a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existaence will be
confismed anly by the soourrence or non-occurrence of one of mone uncertain future events not wholly within the controd
of the entity; or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:

[1) It is nat probable that an outlhow of resources embodying econemic benefits will be required to sedtle the obligation;
of

(2] the amaunt of the obligation can not be measured with sufficlent reliability.

Contimgent Liability of Bank Gurantee: The company has issued total bank guarantee of Tk. 8,48,47,005 of which Tk
424,701 has been accounted for (Mote: 9.02.1)

Attendance Status of Board of Directors Meeting:
During the year from 01.07.2023 to 30.06.2024 there were 4 [Five) Board Meetings held. The attendance status of all the
meetings are a5 follows:

Marme of the Director Position Meeting Held Attended Remarks
.ﬂeslf Mahmood Chalrman 4 4
Henry Hilton Managing Director a 3
Md. Moinul kslam [Director 4 +
Md, Mahfuz Ali Sahel Director 4 4
Wagar Ahmad Choudhury
(Momines of Vanguard AML BD Finance |Direcior 4 4
Mutwal Fursd Oma) )

; e la Resignied on 6
Khondiar Atique-c-Rabbani Independent Director 4 - January 2024,
heg. Maruf Independent Director 1 4
Major General Galam : Apposnied on 27
: independent Directar 4 ]

Miphammad, nde, psc [re1d) I_n ; ot | ' Jung Hk4,
For Beard Meeting, attendance fees wene not pald to the Directors af the companty.
Other Disclosures:

i A5 por consolidated financials, the compary’s sales grew by BOT 160 million, 13% over the preceding year. BOT 78 million,

&% salos growth came from its subsidiaries and the rest of the sales growth was driven by B2C. With the acquisition ol an
additional 40% shares in ADN International Gateway during the year the total shareholding of ADN Telecom increased (o
B, which enhanced consolidated sales,

I5F rotall business [B2C) invohved substantial costs In the pre-break-gven stage due to the economies of scale along with
axtonske marketing push in the backdrop of stiff competition in this segment. Also, interest on loans increased for
upward trend of borrawing costs. Company's last year EPS was exceptionally good due to, some one-time sales (OTC)
under different prajects. Alongside growing inflation, all these faciors impacted the vadiance in EPS.

iii) Mt Dpérating Cash Flow Per Share (NOCFPS| increased from BOT 2.57 to BOT 5.96 because of the increase in collection of

receivabdes from the customers.

ADNTEL

The Baard of Directors of ADN Telocom Limited in it's 137th meeting held on 24th October 2024 has recommended for
declaration of Cash dividend £10% to the shaseholders for approval in the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

Annual Report 2024
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@ Rahman Mostata Alam & Co.
Chameod Aoccaambanis

ADN Telpcam Lid
Curriend Tax Calculation
far this year ended on June 30, 2024
Annexune-0
Az on 30 burse 3024 Asmaunt in BEDT
Profit befose tax 208,154,451
Iradenissibie Eapbnses 5% 626,875
Admisile Expangas T3381 612
Prafit bedone corporate Tax 31,437,758
e— - Percartagn of | Profit apportions as per % Pravition for
> . m o Rinviniie = _,hh“ Currgrit Tax
Export Services 516,767,044 I6.15% 83,660,193 12.50% 18,823,543
IIT Support liﬁrmn:: 487 126,357 34.07% ?B\.Hﬁlfﬁl? 0.00%
Loscall Semvices 425,697 193 - }'5.?8! 68915 248 22.50% 15,506,088
~ Total | 1,429,585 594 100% 231,437,758 33,329,631
Curvent Tax Exponses for 2024
—
Aegular tax on the basis of net profit - As above: 34.,339.53L
F
AIT deducted at source by Custormars (U/S- 162 Note: 13.01.02 I’T:Hr g 11,200,507
Tam on the basis of Grods receipt @ 0LS0% 5,654,755
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The Auditor’s Report and
The Audited Financial Statements

for the year ended on 30 June 2024




Chartered Accountants B

MARIE MOLLAH QUADIR YUSUF & CO.2

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
Of
ADN International Gateway Limited
Rapart on the Audit of the Financial Stabemanls

Opinian

e have audiled the financial stalements of ADN international Gateway Limited which compeise the
statement of financial pasition as al 30 June, 2024, and statement of profit or loss and other comprehanseae
incone, slatement of changes in equily, stabsmes of cash Mows for the yeas then ended, and noles 1o the
financial slabements. including & summary of sagnificant accounting policies.

In gur opEnion, the accompanying financial slatemants give 8 inse and 1air view of the linancial position of The
company a5 on 30 June 2084, and of its financal perfoemance and ts cash fows Bor (he year than ended in
accordanca with intermational Financiad Repering Standards. (IFRSs).

Blasks for Qpinkon

W conducied our audd in @ocondancd with Inbematicnal Standards on Auditing (IS45). Our responsiétios
urder IBose standards ane further described in the Awsdiors’ Responsibditins for the audit of the financial
slatemenis section of cur reporl We ane indspenderd awditor of the company in accordance with Bha
Inbmalicral Ehice Siamdards Board [of Accounlants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants 1ol her
wilh s gthical reguinements that are relevant bo our awdil of the financal slatements in Bangladesh and we
hawse fuslilad our othar ethical responsibilties in accordance with Meds athical requinsmenis. We balisve the
audd gvidenca that we have oblainged is sufficient and apgropiate [o provice B Dasis for our Bpanion

Responsibifities of Management and Those Charged with Governance Tor the Financial Stabemenis

Managemaoni is responsibie for the preparation of fingncial stalements thal ghee 8 IFue and & view in
accordancs with IFREs. and for such inbemal control as managamant determings i Necessary 10 enabls ihe
preparation of financial slatements that are free from material missiatemant, whether due to rawed o eno

In peepanng the financial stalemants, managemen |8 responsible fof assedsing the Company's abiity ta
continue as a going concamn, disclasing, as applicabie. mateds related W Qoing concam and using the gong
concem bass of accounling unigss management esiher intends o liquidaie the Company of 80 ceass
operations, or has no realistic altesmative but o da 50,

Thase charged with govemance are responsible for oversasing the Company's inancial repodting process

Auditors Respansibilities Tor the Awdit of the Financial Statemants
Ouwr phjectves ane o oblain reasonsble dssussnce aboul whether the financial statements 85 8 whole ane
frae from matedial misstatement, whether dus to baod o emor and 1o (ssue an suditor's repen Bal inchides
o cpinion. Reasonalde assurance is a high lovel of assurance, but s not @ guaranbes thal oo Audt
conducted in accordance with [3As will abways dotect a materal misstaloment whan || axiats, Mastalaments
can arae fom fraud of errcd and st considered maderial i, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably Do sapacted 1o infsendcd e ssonomic decisions of users taken on the bass of these financial
slalemanis,
As parl of a0 audil in accordance with 1545, wo sxercise professional judgment and mamiain professaonal
shapliciem hroughoul the audit Ve also:
= koridy and gasess e dska of malerial misslatement of the financial stalements, whathar dus 10
fraud or emor, desgn and perform Sudil procedures nesponsive o thase risks, and obtain audil
evidonos that is sulficiend ard appropdiabs 1o pravide & basis for Gur opinson. The risk of not dedecting a
matarial missiabemant mesulling from fraud & higher than Tor one resulling from ermor. as frawd may
imvoher collission, forgery, inkpnlional cenissons, misrepredantations, of the owerride of intemal oongl

Call - DITIE-5814348, 01019-501438, E-mad | alim@mgyca. com. mgye20 Bfigmel com, Web : waw. mayca.com
Hoad Office @ Mouse 8 GLF [Ird Fioor) Dolphin Goll, Lake Circus Kalabagan, Dhanmandi, Dhaka-1205, Bangladesh,
Cal: D18 10507388 01518-531438 04 TPI-TOSMBE, O1731-150558, E-mai: gy oom, Mgy CalSyahon ofem, Wl | wiw Mgpch Som
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« Oibtain an understanding of intemal control relevan 1o the audil in orser 1o design aud procedures
thai are appropriale in the circumstances, but not for the purposa of expressing an opinion on the
effoctiveness of the compamy’s inlemnal control,

« Evaluate the approprialeness of accounting policies wsed and the reasonablaness of accounting
estimales and reladed disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriatensss of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audil evidence oblained, whether a material uncertainty exists related b @vents of
condilions thal may cast significant doubt on the Company's abfifty 10 confinue a3 a going concem. If
wa conclisde thatl 8 maberial uncertainty axists, we ane requined 10 draw ailention in ow audilor's report
i the related disclosuras in the financial statements of, il such disclosures are inadequate, 1o modify
our apinsan. Our conclusions ang based on the sudil evidence obiained up 1o the date of our Buditor's
feport. Howeved, fulure evenls of conditions may cause tha Company 1o cease bo continue as a gaing
GONCETT.

o Evaluate the overall presepialion, sireciure and content of the Company’ financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represant the undedying Irnsactions
and gvents in @ manner that achigves fair presentation.

Ve comimunicale with ihose charged with govermance reganding, amaong other matbers, the planned scops
and tming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant defickencies in internal coniral
that we idenify during our awdit.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requiremants

In accordance wilh the Companies Act, 1084 | we also report the following:

@) Wl

have oblained all the nformation and explanations which o the best of our knowledge and belial wera

macessary for the purposes of cur audd and made due verification themeaf,

b} in cur opinion, proper books of accound as required by law have been kepl by the Company S0 far as i
appeared rom our examination of hese books, and

€) the

siglements of financial posithon and statements of predit or loss and ofher comprehensive incomea dealt

with by the repart are in agreement wilh the books of account.

i

5

Mollah Quadir Yusul & Co.
Chanered Accountants
03 September, 2024 Mohammed Abdul Alim FCA, CISA
Chaka Partnar
Enngimeni no: 1532

DVC: Ripoigisd2A512 Floo




ADN International Gateway Limited
Statemont of financial position
Az at 30 June, 2024

- Amounts in Taka
Particulars Motes 30 June, 2024 A0 June, 2023
ASEETH
Hon-Currgnt Assets: 14,955,121 13,872,502
Praperty, plar and equpman 4.00 13485121 13672502
Mwaslmant in sharg 5.00 1,500, 000 -
Current Assota: 21,339, 588 13,128,938
Trade and othar receivables 600 BT BE2 B15 21,396, TRS
Mdvance depodll 0l prepaymants T.00 12.023.935 | 11,822 285
Cash and cash equivalents B.00 1,432 806 208,867 |
Total Assets 86204877 47101439
Equity: 21,945 478 9,048,589
Eesued captal 9.00 40,000 10,000
Retained eamings 21,935478 9,08 589
Liabilities: 74,349 198 38,052,850
Won-Curront Liabilities: 3,208, 514 3,200,000
Dederred tax liabities 11.00 8,514 -
Laans and Borrowings 10.00 3,200,000 3.200.000
Current Liabélities: 71,140,584 34,883 B8O
Trade and olhers payable 12.00 54,611,252 20,592,933
Provisions and Booiued expenses 13.00 11,634 2759 3860,687
Curmant tax liabiltios 14,00 4 BO% 153 || 1,398,201
Tatal Equlﬁr and Liabiities H.M?T 47,101,439

The annaxed nete forms are an integral part of these financial slatomants

A

Managin

[ 1 e

Chakrman

Signad imterm of our separate report of gven dale annexed

Date: 03 September, 2024
Fiace: Dhaka

L

Mollah Quadir Yusuf & Co.

Charlered Accountants

Mohammaed Abdul Alim FCA, CISA

Fariner

Enrolment Mumber-1532
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ADHN International Gateway Limited

Satatement of Profit or Loss & Other Comprehansive income

For the petiod from 01 July, 2023 10 30 June, 2024

Amcunts in Taka

01 July 2023 ol July 2022
Partbculars Hotes to o

30 June 2024 __ 30 June 2023
Revenusa fram Sendces 15.0:0 161,361 437 50 9064 533
Cosi of servicas 16.0:0 (129,729,940) (87 801 B75)
Gross Profit 31,631,487 12,162,848
Ganaral adminisirative axpenses 17.0:0 (10,025 658) {7 465,77
Sallng and marketing expenses 18.00 t!.mﬂﬂh {1,329.018)
Profit From Operation 17,868,622 3,368,060
Financial expenses 19,0 {66, 056) {135,918
Met Profit Before Tax 17,800,557 3,232,142
Tax axpensas 20.00 (4, 50% 68T) 1,389,231}
Mat Profit After Tax 12,896,500 1,832,911

The annexesd nate forms ane an inbegral part of these financial statements.

D Bk

Managing Director

Chairman

Signed in feam of our separate repart of even dale annexed.

Date: 03 Septernbar, 2024
Piace: Ohaka

Mallah Quadir Yusul & Co.
Charbered Accountans

Mahammad Abdul Alim FCA, CTISA
P artnar 7

Enralment Mumber-1532




ADN international Gateway Limited

Statemaent of Changes in Equity
For the period from 04 July, 2023 o 30 June, 2024

Amounts in Taka
Particulars Share Capital  Retained Earning Tatal
Balance as al 01 July, 3032 10,000 T.205678 Ta156TE
Mit ProfithLoss) for the yoar . 1832811 1.832.911
Balance as on 30 June, 2023 10,0040 8,038,588 9,048,559
Balance as at 01 July, 2023 10000 8,038 580 9,045,588
Mat ProfithLoss) for the yead - 12 A0E 850 12 B96 890
Balance as on 30 June, 2024 10,0040 21,835 478 21,545,478

Managing Director ' Chairman

ADNTEL
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ADN Intermaticnal Gateway Limited
Statement of Cash Flows
Far the paricd from 01 July, 2023 1o 30 June, 2034

Amounts in Taka

01 July 2023 01 July 2022
Particulars to o

30 June 2024 30 June 2023
A Cash Flow frem Oparating Activities (i+ii) 3,700,572 {302,413}
(i} Oparating Profitiloss) Before Waorking Capital Changes 159,295,570 4,784,642
Bt Profil fod the yaar 17,800,557 2232142
Add: Adjustmant for items nof invalving ihe movement of cash: - -
Cepreciation 1485014 1,552,500
Amarization of pre-operaling expensas . -
(i) Adjustment for (increasepdecrease in Current Assets (15,594, 558) {5,087 055)
{increaseDecreasa in inveniories - .
{IncreaseiDacraass in iade Receivables (46, 486,029) 7.385.295
(IncreaseyDacraass in advance, daposis and propayments (507,650 {4,104 127}
IncreaseDecreass) in Liabities for Expenses 25018318 1,545 554
IncreasedDecreasa] in rade and olher payables 7073592 (8,454 555)
Tax pawd (1.399.251) (1,398,231}
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities (2,477 633) -
Acgulsition of propery. plant and equipmsent (477 B33) -
Equity-accounied invesiess (1.500.000) -
. Cash Flow from Financing Activities = -
Share Money deposit/(pald) - -
Inerease in shane capdtal d 3
Met changes in Cash and Cash Equivalents [A+B+C) 1,222,939 [302,412)
Dipening cash and cash aguivalants 209 867 512,279
Closing Cash and Cash Eguivalents 1,432 806 208 867

Ly kil
H‘-!I‘Il-:h}ﬂ Director Chairman




ADN International Gateway Limited
Motes to the Financlal Statements
A% at & For the year ended June 30, 2024
1.00 Company and its activities
aj 1

Company Profile:

ADM International Gateway Limited is a private company limited by shares andwas incorparation on 2Tih
Octabar, 2011 undes the Companies Act, 1584 Vide Registration No C-8560511

Address of Registered Office of Reporting ENUie:

The registered office of the company is located at Red Crescent Concard Tower, (19th Floar), 17
Mohaknas Cia, Dhaka- 1212, Bangladesh

b} Mature of Business:

ADN International Gateway Limited is the prime service provider for dgomestc and barnational
connectivity services and solutions duly aulhorized by the Bangladesh Telecommunzation Regulaory
Commission (BTRC). The prncipal activites of the company are providing seamiess, secured data &
imemel connectivity to vanous grades of customers using fiber. salelile and wirglass solulions since
2011,

200 Matgrial Accounting Polickes and Basis of Preparaiion
The accounting policies set cut below, which comply with IFRSs. have been applied consistently to all
periods presenied in these financial staternents, and have been applked consistently by the company.

2.01 Statement of Compliance:

These financial statements of ADN Intermational Gateway Limited Limited have been prepared on a going
concern basis under historical cost convention in accordance with IFRSs. The disclosures of information
are made in accardanca with the requirgments of the Companies Act 1994, (he financial statements have
teen prepared in accordance with LAS-1 using the accrual basis of accounting. In the preparation of
{hese financial staements, management used available information to make judgments, estimate and
assumption that affect the application of accounting poicies and the reparied amounts of assets and
labilities, income and expenses. Actual resulls may differ from ihose estimatas.

a) Legal Compliance:
The financial statements have been prepared and the disclosures of information made in accordance wih
the requirements of The Companies Act 1954, international Accounting Standards (IAS) and International

Remarks
1__|Prasentation of Financial Statements | Comphad |
1AS 7 |Statemant of Cash Flows g , Complied
IAS 8 |Accounting Polices. Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors Complied
10_|Events after the Reporting Perod A
' | _Complisd
_ Complied |
MIA
for Governmant Grants and Disclosuns of Govemmant Assisiance MIA
Complied |
Compled |
: . Complied
uriling and Reporing by Retirernent Banafil Plans NiA
|rala Financial Statements PR,
_|investments in Associales and Joint Ventures Complied
| BA,
. Financial Insirements. Presentaton Complied |
1A5 33 Em;.ar_s;h_f!ﬂ NIA
A5 34_|Interim Financial Reporing =
IAS 36 _|Impairnent of Assets A

|
X _,,.'
o P ______',
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2.02

2,03

204

Complied
_NiA
Complied
MR
| Pl
IFRS 1 _[Firsi Time Adoplicn M
IFRS 2 _|Share Based Payment MIA
IFRS 3 |Business Combnabons P,
IFRS 4_|Insurance Contracts e = _ NIA
_IFRS 5 [Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations NA
IFRS 6_|Explocation for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources [N
IFRS T _|[Financial Inglruments : Disclodures Complied |
| IFRS 8_[Operaling Segments __ [ pok
[_IFRS 10 [C teed Financial Stalemsnts A
| IFRS 11 | Joint Arrangements — A
| IFRS 12 |Desclosuwis of inberests in Oiber Enlilies Complisd |
|_IFRS 13 [Fair Value Measuremen Complied
IFRS 14_|Regulatory Deleral Accounls WA
IFRS 15 |Revenue [rom cOniracts with cusiomars Comgplied
IFRS 16 |Leases _ NIA
IFRS 17 _|Indurance conlrac WA

The Company has adequabe resources ko continue operalion for foreseeable fulune and henos, the
fnancial slalements have beén prepared on Going concam basis. As per management assassmant thene
am no material uncerainties related to evenis or conddions which may casi significant doubl upon iha
Company's abdity fo continue as a going conoern

Functicoal and Pressntation Currsncy:
lbems included in thede financial stalemants are measured using the cierency of the pnmary econsmic
envirgnment in which the company oparales (the funclional cerency’}. These financial stalemants ane
presanied in Bangladeshi Taka (Taka/Tk /BOT) which is alsa the funclional currency of the company. The
amourls in these financial siaiemants have been rounded off (o ihe nearest Taka

-

Reparting Period:
Thease financial stabemenis cower mwmm!m 01 July, 2023 4o 30 June, 2024,

Cmmrmnhmamm;umdmnmmmdem-lmmmmhm
financial stalements &nd also the narrative and descripbive infarmation whene il is reléevard Tor
undgrstanding of the cument year's financial statomants. Figures for prior year have besn re-arranged,
mmmm-dmmw hmmmmnymmmmtw-r

2.07

mmedﬁwmlmmmhwmthR&mmmwmm
judgmenis. estimates and assumplions that affect the applicabls of accounting policles and the reporied
amounts of assels, liabilties, incoma and expenses, and disclosure reguirements for conBingant assels
and liabiities during and at the date of the fmancial stabements. Actual result may difler from these
eslimatas. Estimates and undarying assumptions are roviewsd on an ongoing basis. Roevisions of
accouniing eslimates are recognized in the perod in which the eslimate & revised in any fulure years
alfecied as required by IAS 8: "Accounting Pobces, Changes in Accownting Esbmates and Emans.”

Materiality and Aggregation:

Each matenal item considersd by managemant a5 significant has been presented separately in financial
stalemands. Mo amount has been sed off unkass the ADN International Gatewsy Limiled has & begal nghi to
set off the amourits and irlends 1o saltfe on net Basis. Income and expenses ana presented on & nel basis
oaly whan parmitied by the relavant accounting standards,




208 Consistency:
in accordance with IFRS framework for the presentation of financial statements fogether with LAS-1 and
IAS-B ADM International Gadeway Limited Limiled discloses its mbormation consistently from one pariod 10
the it While selecting and applying new accounting policies, changes n accounting policins, canmaction
of arors. the amount involved are accounted for and disclosed retiospectively in accordance with the
requirement of LAS-8. However, for changes in the accounting estimates the relaled amaunt &= recognised
prospectively in the curment pariod and in the naxt period of perads.

2.09 Statement of Cash Flows;

145 1 requires that a mmmﬂmm=mmmmipmmmdeNumﬂm.

The statement of cash flows is prepared as it provides information about cash flows of the enterprise

which is usehul in providing users of financial stalaments with the infermation about ability of the enterprse

o genarale cash and utiization ol those cash.

Staterment of cash flows has been prepared under the indirect method for tha year end, classified by
aperating, investing and financing activities as prescribed in (AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows.

210 Statemaent of Changes in Equity;

The Statement of Changes in Equity reflects information about the increasa or decrease in nel assels or
wealth The statement also shows fdem-wise movement along wih the description of changes from the
end of last year 1o the end of current year.

211 Property, Plant and Equipmant:
a) Recognition and meagurement:

in purswand to IAS 16; "Property, Plant and Equipment”, the cost of an em of property. plant and
equipment is recognized as an asset if, and only if il is probable that future economic benefits associated
with The flem will fiow to the enlity, and the cost of the item can be measuréd reliably.
Propery, Plant & Equipment have been accounied for at cost bess accumulated depreciation. Cosl
includes expanditung thad is directly atiributable o the acguisifion of the items.
Subsequent cosls of enhancemant of axisting assats ane recognized as an assel, only when il s probable
that Tubure econcmic benefits associaled with the item will fiow 1o the company and the cos! of such ems
can be measured reliably, AN other expenditures are charged 1o the Statement of Profit or Loss and Othar
Comprehensive ncome @0 the financial year in thay ang inturméd,

b) Depreciation:
Mo depreciation is charged on land as the land has unlimited useful Be Depreciation on assels &
calculmed using the Reducing Balance Method to allocale the cosi amound ower their estmated usaful
lives. in respect of addition of Property, Plant & Equipment, depreciation is charged from 1he date of use.
Mo depreciation is charged in the month of disposal.
Depreciation is charged using the Tollewing rates on the Propery, Plant & Equipmeni excepl ROU assels,
ROL assels depreciation is caloulabed on straight lme basis:

Assats Category 2023-24 2022-23
Computer & Accessaries 10% 10%
Cilfice: Equipment 10% 10%:

€] Gainor Loss on Disposal;
An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognized upon disposal of when no fulure econDmes
benefits afe expectad from s wse or disposal, Any gain or loss on de-recogniion of an fdem of property.
plant and equipment is determined as the difference betwesen ihe nel disposal proceeds and the canmying
amounit of the assed and is recognized 88 profi or loss. However, o disposal cocurred during Bha yaar

di / H

ADN Indemational Gateway Limited comples all rules and regutations of ITA-2023 and VAT and
supplementary Act, 2012 for addition of all Propesty, Plant and Equipmant.
L] L 1 X I R T Ers

&1-3-L 41 Sl AP REWEEONT R ool ches 1 AAE LS
ADN Inemational Gateway Limited has nof recognised lease ageements under the scope of IFRS-16

ADNTEL
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214

.15

.16

247

Trade and Other Receivabbes:
Mnmwmmmm;mmnﬂmmmﬂw“ww

Accounts Recoivable are measured &l ihe onginal invoice amount. Accounts Receivables are staled ned
of allowanoe for doubthd if any debts, if any other recerables comprise other non-trade receivables and
interest receivabies. Other receivabias are siated rat of provision for doubthul debis, i any.,

Advances are infially measured at cost After initial recogniion, advance are camied at cost less
deduction, adjustment of charges to ofher accounl heads. Deposits are measured al paymant vake,
Prepaymants are inflinlly measured 8 cosl. Afar initial recognition propayments ane carred i cost less
charges to Statement of Profit or Loss and Oiher Comprehensive Incoema.

Cazh & Cash Equivalents:

Cash and cash squivalenis comprise cash balances and call deposits with maturty of three months or
fass froem the date of acquisition thal are subpect 1o an inskgnificant sk of changes in their fair value, and
are used by the company in the management of its shoi 1 commilments.

il D aLRILIEY snbing

Tha p-rﬂpamlan qi'ﬂnm:hlm mmﬂnmﬂruih 145-37; “Provision, Conbngant Liabdities and
Contingent Assets®, requires management 1o make estimates and assumplions thal affect the repored
amounds of revenues and expenses, assels and llabiktes, and the disclcsure requiements for conlingent
assels and Eabiites duwing and at the date of the financial slalements. Due b he inherent uncertainty
irvotved in making estmates, aciual resull reporied could differ from those estimates. All provisians are
recoghized by making the best estimate of the amounts.

Trade & Othor Payables:
Trade & other payables for goods and sendces received have been accounted for those goods and
sarvices for which no payment has bean made. Payables are nof inlerast bearing and are stated al their

Einanclal instruments
Mon-derivative financial instruments comprss acoounts and ofher receivables, cash and cash eguivadents,
borrowings and other payables are shown at iransaction cost

Inceme Tax Expenses only slated curmend laxes |ncome (& expenss is recognized in the Stalement of
Profil ar Loss and Other Comprehensive Incomas except 1o the extent it nelates 1o ilems recognized directly
in equity. in which case il is recognized in aguity.

a) Curren] Tax:

Currenl Tax is the tax payable on the iaxable income for the year, using tax rates as applicable for the
respective conoem year as per income Tax Act (TTA) 2023, and any adjustmant 1o tax payable = respect
of previous years. Curnenl Tax has been calculaied on the basis of add and back of some inaBdmissible
and admissible axpenses respectively as por ITA 2023, The tax rate used fof the reporing pefiod (Except
revenia samed from expon service) is as folows:

Yoar: Tax rate:
2023-24 25% o 27.50%
202223 2750%

Deferred tax is recognized in accordance wilh the provision of 1AS.-12. Deferred tax arises due bo
temparary difference deduciible or laxable for the events of transactions recognized in the statemant of
comprahensive income. A lemporary diffarence is the difference betwean the tax base of an assel or
liabiity and il$ canying amouny reporied amount in the financial statement. Deferred tax assel or hability
is the amount of income tax payable or recoverable in futune pariod(s) recognized in the current panod
The dafermed 13x assel Ncome of Hability/ expenss does nol creals a legal kabdity' recoverabdity to and
freen the income tax suthodity. This is recognized for book purpose as equalization ilem presenled in the
financial stabements bo show the retained eamings as a consistent reflection of the business evenls. The
nature and amouwnt of a change as deferred [ax in an accounting estimate that has an effect in the cunment
penod of 5 axpecied i have an affect in future panods




2.19 Capital ! Shareholder's Eauity:

a) Authorized Capital;
Authorized capial is Bhe maxmim amount of share capital that the Company & suthorged by iis
Memorandum of AssociaBon and Amches of Associalon i Bsus 10 sharehalders

k) Paid-up Capital: K
Paid-up Capilal represants tobal amount of shargholders capital that has been paid in full by tha ondinany
shareholders. Holders of ondinary shanes ore entitied to recesve dividends as declared from time o time
and are enliled 1o wobe at shareholders masalings. In the evenl of a winding-up of Ihe company, ardinary
shargholders rank after all alher shareholders and creditors and ane fully entitled b any residual proceads
of liguidation,

T wrplmmm lrl'taranpmprﬂum afpmfrrut-ummﬂlhl'udlim

The EMMWIFRSW mm:mmmmm for anrual reporting
penads beginning on of afler 01 January 2008, IFRS 1% provides a single, principhes-based spproach io
ihe mecognition of mevenue from all contrects with cuslomers. 1| focuses on the identification of
parformance obligations in a conlraci and fequires revenus 1o be recognized wheh of &8 hose
periemance chligations ane satishied

The new standard is based on the peinciple that revenus is recognized when conirel of goods or services
transfers 1o a customer, S0 the concepd of control repiaces the existing concept of risks and rewards. This
standard comibines, enhances and replaces apecific guidance on recognizing revenue wilh & single
stancard. & new five-step process must be apphed balors revenue from condract with customer can be
recoanzed;

i, Identify the contracts with customeans;

iih, Identi#y the separale peromeance cbligation;

iii), Detesrming the iransaction price of the confract,

iw). Allocate the ransacton price to each of the separade performance oblgabons, and

vl. Recognize the revenue as sach perdomance obligation is satisfad,

Resanue from rendering sendices includa the following:

1. Brandwith

2. Techrical suppost

101 Raolated Party Disclonun;
Parties ane considersd 1o be related if one party has the ability, dinsclly or indiresily, 10 contnal the other
paty of exercise significant influence over the ofher party in making financial and operaling decisions,
Farties are also considered 10 be related if Thay are subjec! o common confrol or commion sigrshicant
nfluence. Retsled party ranaasction i a ransfer of resourcas, services, of obligations between related
parties, regardless of whalher & phice is charged as per |AS 24 Ralated Pary Disclasunes”, . Detadls of the
related party ransactions have been disclosed in Male 19,

a-]ﬂahmrn!Flrum

b Statement of Proff or Loss and Other Comprshensive IRcame

¢} Statemand of Changes in Eguity

o) Statement of Cash Flows; and

&) Mobes, comprising a summary of significant acoownting policies and olhar explanabory nfanmatsn

The company & also reguired to comply with the following major legal provisions in addition o The
Corrganies A, 1994 and other appicabie lws and reguiations but not limied 0!

i} Imcome Tax Act {(ITA) 2023

iy The Valus Added Tax Act, 20912 & Rules, 2016

i} The Customs Act, 1968

fv) Bangladash Labour Act. 2006 (Amonded in 2013)

vl Bangladesh Labow Rules, 2015
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105 Events afte

J.06

107

AR Mo PRITIAY PHe ]

As per IAS -10: "Events after the Reparting Paricd” are those events favorable and unfavarable, that
ooour between the end of the reporting year and the dabe when the Financial Statements are suthonzed
for issue. Two types of event can be idantified:

*Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed al the end af the reparling penod (adjustng events
aftar this reponing pesiod); and

*“Those thai ane indicative of conditians that asose after 1he reporting period (non-adjusting evenls afier The
reporting pediod].

Thera is no evenis after reporing peniod duning the year.

Reconciliation of Books and Accounts:

Books of accound in regard 1o Parties (in Bangladesh and outside Bangladesh) as well 83 Bank are
reconciled at regular intervals fo keep the unreconciad balances within nor-matarial level,

i) Pravious year's figures have been rearanged, whanaver considened necessary ko confiem ko the current
yEars pressnlation

i} Figures appearing in the financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest Taka.




_ . Amounls in Taka
Motes Particulars 30 June, 2024 30 June, 2023

400 Propery. plant and equipment

Crpening Balance 13,872,502 15,525,002
Add: Addilicn dusing the yaar BTT.633 -
Less: Depreciation dunng the year {1.495.014) (1.552.5000

713& ‘ 5111 13,972,502

500  Investment in share

MYTEL Limibed 1, 5001 000 -
1,500,000 -
600 Trade and other receivable
Opaning Balance 21,396,786 28, 752061
Agd:Adition during thae year 15. 0 161,361 437 85.064 523
182,758,223 128,726 604
Leds: Receied/adjustment dusing tha year 114,875 408 107320818

67,882,815 21,396,786

7.00  Advance deposit and prepayments

Eeank Guaraniss 1,000,000 1,000,000
Saecunty deposd 6,584,010 5,791,800
Advance Income tax 4 439 525 1,385 231
Advance for Expanses 3331154

12,023,835 11,5:52:5

8.00 Cash and Cash oquivalents

Cash im hand 117.5563 28,502
Cash &l bank a.01 1,315,253 184 275

1,432 806 09,867

801 Cash at Bank

The Cay Bank PLC, Guishan Avenue Branch, AC- 1101525585001 1,281,728 170,805
idami Bank Bangladesh FLC, Mohakhali Branch, AIC- 15104-34812 A7 B0 8B 464
One Bank PLC, Guishan-1 Branch, AnC- 002102008033 5,016 7086
Bank Asla PLC, Mohakhal Branch, AC-03833001 366 S 1,770
1,315,253 268,125 |

9.00  psued capital
Authorisad: 2 500 000 Ordinary shares of Tk 100 aach

250000000 _ 260,000,000

issuoed and fully paid.up: 100 Oedinary sharas of Tk 100 sach

Harme of share holders ~ Hoof Sheres
e T T 200624  30.06.23
ADN Tebacom Limited 80 40 8,000 4,000
Tech Vallpy Mebworks Limibed - 40 . 4 (00
ADN Technologies Limited 20 20 2,000 2,000
10,000 10,000
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Amounts in Taka
Wotes  Particulars 30 June, 2024 30 Juna, 2023

10,00 Leans and borrowings
ADM Telecom Limited 1,600,000 1,600,000
Tech Vally Networks Lid 1,600,000 1,600,000

3,200,000 3.200,000

11.00 Provision for Deferred Tax:

Opening Batance -
Add Provision made duing the year =
Provision realized during ihe year B.514
8,514 .
11.10 Calculation of Deferred Tax:
| Carrying on : Cop Deferred tax
Particulars reporting | Tax Base ‘T“f:m' IM Applicable rate |Habilitiesiasset
#
— | date ; ; b
Az an 30 June, 2023
Propery, Plant & .
Equipmant 13672 503 13,806,483 166,010 27.507% 45,653
Daferrad tax Habdlity 45,653
&g on 30 June, 2024
e 19456122 1326862 196870 270 s4%67
Dwterred Tax Liability 54,167
8514

Dwlared Tax has been caloulaisd on taxable temporany diferences only as per Prudent Concept

1200  Trade and others payable

Bandwidth 37471917 25 873,021
Transmissiom 9878 502 3619812
Co-lacation and interconnecian 1,774,273
Revanue sharing and ather expenses 5 486 560

54,611,252 29,592,933

13.00 Provisions and accrued expenses

Audit s T0,000 G4 TOE
Liability for expenses 6,724,134 212 524
Pravedenl fund payabie 695,740 263138
Agcrund expensas 4140405 1,320,319

: ‘Iill'ﬁ'. 74 3.860 687

1400 Current e labilities

Openng Balance 1,388,231 T22 46T
Agdd; Dunring the year 4,888 153 1,399,221
iﬁﬂl 2,121,658

Lass AdjustmentClasing Balance {1,388.231) 1l?22 48
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Amaounts in Taka

01 July 2023 0 July 2032
Maotes Particulars o ]
S0 June 2024 0 June 2023
1500  Revenus From Serdces
Basifwndih TH 742 543
Techeical suppor 5, 017 m:ﬂtim
16.00 Cost of goods services
Bandwadith and transmisssan BEAT0,TEA 621598 184
Depraciabon 1,444 877 1813 T3Y
Revanug Sharing 10 BE8 B45 7124918
Hasrctware and Wechnical kngw how Teas A0 555 B4d 16,963 825
ﬂ‘ﬁ-M ﬂllﬂie!ﬂi
17.00 General administrative expenses
Salaries and allowance 487,003 5,850,241
Reguiasory expenses 1,268,004 28504
Repair & Mainhanance 1.000 578 -
Waketle axpanges BS5, D00 680,000
Office supplies 141,517 188,135
Life rsurancs, Medical and traning S8, Cul]) 14 850
Audd fes 0,000 B4, 704
Depreciation 0,537 18,763
Tedephone and mobide ~ 4BOTS 3,571
10,029 688 T AEE TTO
1800 Selling & Marketing Expénses
Travelling and comveyanos 2,383,315 1,952,791
Enfertairsmant expenses 72,880 Ve 22T
Business developmaen 1378072 -
3, TISATY 1,328,018
19,00  Financial Exponses
Bank changes 5,065 135,814
BB, 66 135,918
.00  Income tax Expenses
Currgnt tax Exponses 4 B9s 153 1,359,231
Daferrad ke expensas 8504 -
4,903,667 1,399,231
The details broak-up is mada up as folows:
Met Profit befors tax Rate  harsount

Portion of Export Revenue
Fertion of Local Revenus

Regutar tax o e Basis of el profil - As abowe
AIT ceducied at source by Customers |- 153 Note: 50
Tax on the bass of Gross receipt & 0609

27.50% A 585153
4,895,153

higher LA

w5h, 169
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Amounits i Taka

A ADNTEL
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0F July 2023 04 July 2022
Hoies Particulars i ]
30 Juns 2024 30 June 3023
Curreni Tax Expansos for 2033
Faguias tax on e basis of nd prof - Ag above Which ever is AR BAG |
AIT daducted ad source by Customaes (LVS- 1631 Mo 510 highas 1,380 23 |
Tax on the basis of Gross receipt  050% il 599 787
21.00 Reconcilintban of Cesh Now Iram aperating sctivition throwgh dinsct and indirec] mothed:
Cash Flow from Operating Activities 3,700,571 [302.413)
Cash rgcived from Cusiomans 114 875,408 567 737
Cagh paid 12 supplaes and othacs (104 719621} (BOBTEEE)|
Fasgl for Cplaang axpases and othars (4,997 918) {16 458 388))
Finmnos axpenss paid {BE.058) {135 B14E)
Incoms Tan paid (1,399.231) {1,369,231)|
1200 Retated Party Disclosunes:

Dwuring e year B Comparry camied oof @ number of ransactions with relaied parties in the normal courss of
busineas and on &0 aim'e lengih basis. The name of related paies, nature of Fansactions, Sei iotal vales and
closing balances have been sef out in Booordancs with the provisions of 1AS 24 “Redated Party Dsclosue™,

: Total Transaction FY ‘
Hame of Company/| Malureof | Balance as on mﬁmﬂv  Balance as on
Party Transaction 01.07.2023 Addition I0.06.2024
“'”I. “‘! 1"“‘“"“‘“,- Sale/ Purchase soes077 | 97722089 58206978 ||  46.421.168
My Tel Lid Irvestment . 1,500,000 1,500,000
Illm‘:hl' ‘v!“"l I IFrvastTant 1.800,000 | . 1600000
Total 8586077 | 99.222.069 58,286,978 40,521,168
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The Auditor’s Report and
The Audited Financial Statements

for the year ended on 30 June 2024




M @ m MOLLAH QUADIR YUSUF & CO. 2

Chartered Ac{:nuntantsﬁ

INDEPENDEMNT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF
ADN Eduservices Limited
Raepart on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opénion

W Rave gudibed the financal staiements of ADM Eduservices Limited which compise the statement of
Bramcial position & at 30 June, 2024, and statemants of profil of loss and other compdshensive incoma,
stalement of receipts @nd payments for the year then ended, and nofes to the fnancial stalemenis,
including & summary of signilicant accounting policsss

In ouF openion, the accompanying Bnancial slatements give a rue and T& vies of the inandal position of
the company &8 on 30 June 2024, and of ils Bnancial performance and its cash Nows for Ihe year than
ended in accordanca wih intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs),

Basis for Opinion

e conducied our audd in accondance with Inermational Slandards on Awditing (1548}, Cur respansibilities
undar thase standards are further described in the Audilors’ Respontdistes for the audit of tha financial
siabements saction of ouwr reporl. Wo are independent awditor of the company it BooONdance with the
niemational Ethics Standands Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Prolessional Accownlants
bagelser with the ethical requiremsants thai are relovant bo our awdid of the finsncial stalements in
Bangladesh and we hawve fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these ethical
requirgments, VWe beligve ive awdl evidence thal we have obtained is sulficion! and appropriabe o provide
@ basis for our opinian

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Managemaeni is responsidble for the preparalion of financial stalements hal give a true and fair view in
acoordance with IFRSs, and for such imernal contfol a5 managemant delermings & nacessary 1o enable
the preparation of financial statemenls that are rés rom maberral misstalement, whather due o fraud or
L=

In preparing the financial stalements. management is redponsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue 85 8 going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matiers relabed 10 going concam and using he
goirg concedn basis of accouning unless manageamant efher inlends 1o Equidate the Company of i caase
operations, of has no realshs allemnative bul 1o 390 80

Thosa charged with governancs are respondible lof overseeing the Company’s financial reporing process

Auditor's Responsibllities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objecives are to obilain reascnable assurance aboul whether the firancial stabemants as 8 while are
free from maberial missiatemant, whather dug 1o frasd or érmor and 0 Bdue an auditors repo thal includes
ol openion. Ressonable assurance i a high lewel of assurance, bul is noq & guaranies thal an Sudt
conducted in accordance wath 15As will ahvays delect @ maleral misstalement when i exisls
Misstatomenls can atise froem fraud of efmor and are corsadered matertal if, individually o in the aggregate.
thay could measonably be eopected 1o influence the sconomic decisions ol users laken on the bass of
ihasa fnancial stalements,
As part of an audit in accordance wilh 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and manlain professonal
siapticem thnowghowt the audil, We also;
= kerilily and assess the nisks of matenal misstaberment ol the financial slatements, whethed due 1o
fraud of eirod, design and perform awdd procedunes responsiva 1o those risks, and obtain auds
avidenca thal is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide 8 basss fof ol opinion. Tha sk of nat detacting
a material misstaberment resulling fom fraud i highes than for cne resulting from emor, as fraud may
imvolve collusion, forgery, nbenlicnal oeigsions, misrepreseniations, or the owemde of infemal
coninol,

Maohakhali OfMice . Flal @ C-4, Aneoo Trade Cenve (41h FIED'I';I Mouss ¥ F-63, Besids Ban Bhaban {Amish) Mehakhali, Dhaka-1212,
Call - D1716-501438, 01519-551438, E-mall - alimf@mayca.com, mayc2D1SiRgmad.com, Wab | www moyca.com
Head Cifice | House # 63F (Ird Floor) Doiphin Gol, Lake Circus Kalabagan, Dhanmondi, Dhaka-1208, Bangladesh.
Cal: D1519-54T355 01815550430, 01 770-POS4ES, 01731-1 19585, E-mal mfodSmagyca com, may_cafiyahon oom, Web @ www. mayca com
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= Oibian an wnderstanding of intamal conkrol relevant 1o the audt in order bo degign sudil procedunes
that ase appropriabe in the circurnstances, buf nal lor the pwpose of expressing an epinion on the
effectivaness of the compamy's inbernal conbrol

» Evaluaie the approprialeness ol accownting policies used and the reascnableness of accounling
estimates and reladed disclosures made by mansgedman.
» Conclude on the appropriatensss of managemeni's use of the going concern basis of accounling
and, based on the audt evidence oblained, whather a maberial uncertainty exisis relaled 1o events or
conditions thad may cast significant doubt on e Company's ability to continue as a going concem. If
wi cancude thal a material uncedtainty exists, we are reguired o draw atiention in our audilor's
repcet bo the related disclosures i the financial stalements o, if such discloswnes are inadequale, 1o
modify our opinion. Our conclustons are based on the aud® evidence cbtained up to the dabe of our
guditce's repon. Howawer, futme events of conditions may cause the Company o cease 10 continue
&5 3 Qoing concem,
# Evaluaie the overall preseniation, stnucture and contert of the Company' financial statements.
inctuding the disclosures, and whether the Bnancial stalements represent the underdying transachons
and gvents in & manner thal acheaves fair presentation

Ve communicabe with those charged with govemnance regarding, ameng olher matiers, the planned scope

and timing of the awdit and significand aydi findings, including any signifcant deficiencies in internal contral

that w identify during our audit

Report on othar Logal and Regulatory Reguirements

in accordance with fhe Companies Act, 1584 | we also rpor the fallowing:

a) we have cbtained all the information and explanations which 1o the best of our knowledge and belied

wire necessany for the purposes of our audit and mace due verification thaneaf:

bl in cur opinicn. propes books of accownt as requined by krw have bean kepl by the Company so far a5 if

appeaned from cur examination of these books, and

c) he staterménts of inancial position and siatements of prof or loss and olher comprehansive Mcome

deall with by the repor are in agresment with the books of account.

NS

Mollah Quadir Yusuf & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Dated: 04 September 2024 Mohammed Abdul Alim FCA, CISA
Placze: Dhaka Enroliman Mo: 1532
DWC: 2400251 532A5624341




ADN Eduservices Limited

Statermnent of Financial Position
Aug al 30 June 2024
Amount in taka
Particulars MHobe 30 June 2024 30 June 2023
Assats
MomCurrent Assls: 22,230,030 7,381,422
Proparty. Plant and Equipment 500 10,448,198 7,351 422
Right of Lisa Assets 6.00 11,780,832 *
Current Asssta: 18,303,116 B.757 BO8
Trade & Oshers Receivabies T.00 2,720,385 561 268
Advance, Deposil & Prepayments B.00 4 G20 584 3 757737
Inter-Company Receivable 900 8,582 367 1,500,000 |
Cash and Cash Equivalanis. 10.00 1,389, T80 2,578,802
Total Assets 40,533,145 16,145,229
Equity & Liabilities
Shareholders Equity: {1.011.214) (41,521,228)
Paid-up Capital 11.00 9,000,000 1,000,000
Shara Premium 32,000, 000 -
Retained Earnings 12.00 (42.011.214) {42 521,326)
Non-Current Liabilities 10,752,026
Leasa Liability 13.10 10,718,482
Defered Tax Liability 14.00 33,545
Current Liabilities 30,792,333 S7.670,555
Inter-Company Loan 15,00 - 40,563,850
Leass Liability 13.10 1,680,092
Accounts and Others Payables 16.00 26,902,752 | 16,420,708
Liability for Expenses 17,00 EUJSH-BE 686,197
Tatal Liability 41,544,359 57,670,558
Taotal Equity & Liabilities 40,533,145 18,149,229

Annaged notes form ane an integral part of these fnancial stmemeants

o

Managing Directar

Signed in tarms of cur separale reporl of even dale anmexed.

Mollah Quadir Yusuf & Co.

Dated: 04 Septembser 2034
Piace : Dhaka

Chalrman

Charerad Accountanis

Mohammed Abdul Alim FCA, CISA

Farnar
Enrcliment bo-1532
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ADM Eduservices Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprahensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2024

Amount in taka

01 July 2023 01 July 2022
Particulars Note fo o

30 June 2024 30 Jung 2033
Revenug 18.00 13,188,773 8,083 686
Cost of Services 19.00 (6,512, 196) (7.222.332)
Groas Profiti|Loss) 6,256,578 1,661,334
Genoral and Administrative Expensas 20.00 (480, 566) (463,222)
Oparating ProfitiLoss) 5776010 1,198,112
Financial Expenses 21.00 (4,817 524) {528,184)
Met Profiti|Loss) bofore Tax SEH 486 669,928
Income Tax 22,00 (414 B30 (274,135
Defarred tax 14.00 (33,545) -
Hat PmﬂﬂLmJIMr Tax 510,112 395,7TRO

Annixed noles form ane an integral pan of these fnancis statements

Managing Director Chairman

Signad in terms of our separate repor of even dabe annexed.

Maollah Quadir Yusuf & Co.

Charenéd Accountans
Dated: 04 September 2024 Mohammad Abdul Alim FCA, CISA
Flace : Dhaka Fartnar

Enrglimen Mo-1532

ADNTEL
Annual Report 2024



ADM Eduservices Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity

For the yoar ended 30 June 2024

Amount in Laka
Particular Share Capital  Share Pramium :.m Total
Balance as at 01 July 2023 1,000,000 [42521328)  (41521,326)
Addition Duging The Year 8,000,000 32,000,000 : 40,000,000
Mei F'mtﬁU-[Lmu] during the year - 510,112 Bi0,112
Balanco as at 30 June 2024 9,000,000 32,000,000 (42,011,214} 11,’li11.114]
Balance as at 01 July 2022 1,000,000 (42.917.114)  (41.817.114)
Addition During The Year - =
Mel Profit(Loss) during (he yeas 395.11!5 255, 7RG
Balance as at 30 June 2023 1,000,000 = (42,521,326)  (41,521,326)

Managing Director

Chalrman
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ADM Eduservices Limited
Statement of Cash Flows
For ihe ypéar ended 30 June 2024

.ﬂ_l'l!l:_l_l.ll‘lt in taka

01 July 2023 0 July 2022
Particulars o to

30 June 2024 30 June 2023
A.Cash flows from Oporating Activitios 4,655,144 1,093,882
Het Profit{Loss) 510,112 358,780
Depreciation () 2,206, 740 1.089 4867
{Incresse)Decrease in ROU (11,780,832) .
Increasad[Decreasa) n Lease Liabildy 12,578,574 -
Increase/[Decrease) in Delered Tax Lability 33,545 -
{Incroase)Decrease in Advance & Deposil {862,547} {1.800,000)
{Increase)Decreass n inter-Company Receivable (7 G492, 38T) (171, 489)
{Increase)Decreass o Trade & Others Receivabies (2.159,116) (THT.TAT)
Increase/{Docreass) in Trade & Other Payables 11,825,338 | | 2 437,861
B.Cash flow from Investing Activities (5,504, 518) _IITGE.IESI:I
Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment | (5,304,518 | (T46.424) |
C.Cash flow from Financing Activities (583,680} -
Loans & Bomowings (#0,563.650) =
Paid-up Capital B.000, 000 -
Share Premium 32000000 -
Mot surplus/{Deficit) of cash & Bank balance[A+B+C) {1,208.022) 34T 453
Cpaning cash and cash equevalent 2,578 802 2,231,339
Closing cash and cash equivalent 1,369,780 2 578 802

Managing Director Chairman
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ADM Eduservices Limited
Hotes to the Financlal Statemants
As at & For the year ended June 30, 2024

1.00  Company and its activities

Company Profile:

ADM Eduservices Limiled (the Company) was incorporated in Bangladesh C136183E017 on
Fabruary 23, 2017 under the Companies Act, 1954 as a Privale Limited Company. il commenced il$
comamarcial operation on 3017

The Registered Office of the company is located al Red Crescent Concord Tower (18th Floor), 17
Mohakhali Commercial Area, Dhaka-1212, Bangladesh,

b} Mature of Business:
To carry on the business of human resource davelopmant and employment faciitation. To establish,
sperate, conduct and setup |T training centers in order lo promote and produce IT professional
skifipd manpower. To make available valuable resources on different prodessional skills by
conduciing regular operations,
To conduel and pariicipate in seminars, workshops, exhibdions, conderences and the ke and 1o
obigin technical know-how, literature, brochures, technical data from home and abroad and
disseminate them accordingly and io siudy the development, marketing, implementing systems and
application softwane packages and relaled producls.

.00 Matorial Accounting Policies and Sasis of Freparation

The accounting policies sel out below, which comply with IFRS%, have been applied consistently to

all periods presented in these financal sialements, and have been appled consistertly by the

CoHmpany,

201 Statement of Compliance:
Thase financial siatements of ADM Eduservdces Limited have been prepared on 8 going conosm
basis under historical cost convention in accordance with IFRSs. The disclosures of informatsan ane
made in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1994 and the financial slatements
have been prepared in accordance with IAS-1 using the accrual basis of accounting. In the
preparation of these financial stalements, management used available information lo make
judgments, estimate and assumption that affect the application of accounting policses and the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, ncome and expenses. Actual results may differ from
those estimales,

a) Legal Compliance:
The financial statements have been prepared and the disclosures of infarmation made o
secordance with the requrements of The Companies Act 1684, Intermnational Accountng Siandards
(143} and Indemalional Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

b) Compliancg with imtematsonal FIRAHCIAL ReROriinG ata v,

1451 |Presentation of Financial Statements Complied
1A5 T Statement of Cash Flows Complied
IAS 8 E v Policies, Changes in Accouniing Esimales and Complied
IAS 10 |Evenis afler the Reporting Paricd NI
145 12  |income Taxes Comped
IAS 16 [Property, Plant and Equipment g  Complad
M,
IAS 21 |The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
IAS 23 |Borowing Cosls
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.03

2.04

1.08

145 24  |Redaled Party Desciosures Complied

AS 26 [Accounting and Reporting by Ratirement Benefit Plans A,
IA527  |Conschdated and Separale Financial Stalemants i,
S 28 [Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures i,
AS 31 [interests m Joint Ventures MiA
1532 |Financial Instruments: Presentation Complied
14533 |Eamings per Share M
A5 24 [interim Financial Reporting WA
IAS 38  |Impainmant of Assets A
IAS 37  |Provisions, Contingent Liabilties and Contingent Assats Complied
145 38 |Iinlangidble Assels 1Y
A5 39  |Financial Instrumants: Recogrition and Maasurement Complind

1AS 40 IFndeatimsen Fropany

IAS 41 |Agriculture

IFRS 1 |First Time Adoplion

IFR% 31  [Business Combinations

VVI_EESJ Insurance Coniracts

IFRS5  |Non-Current Assats Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

A
MR
ik
IFRS2 |Share Based Payment MIA,
M
M
M
it

FRS 6 |Exploration for and Evalation of Mineral Resowurces

IFRE T  |Financial Instruments : Disclosures Complied
IFRS8 [Operating Segments MiA
IFRS 10 [Consoldated Financis Stalements MR
IFR5 11 [Joani Amangements i
IFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in Oihar Enlilies Complied
IFRS 13 |Fair Valus Measuremant Complied
IFRS 14  |Regulaiory Deferal Accounts A
IFRS 15 |Rewenus from confracts with cusiomens Complied
IFRS 16 |Leases Complied
IFRS 1T [Insurance conlract Wik

The Company has adeguati resowces 1o conlinue operation for foreseeabls fulure and hence, ihe
financial stabemants have bean prepansd ch goang concan DEsE. A per management assessment
there are no materkal uncerainties related to events or conditions which may cast significant doubl
wpan the Company’s abilty 1o continue 85 a going concerm.

3 & ﬂmmammmwuammmﬂmumm
mmmmm in which the company operates (the functional currency’). These financial
siatements are prasanted in Bangladeshi Taka (TakaTk/BOT) which is alsc the funchional curency
ol the company. The amaunls in (hede financal statemants have been rounded ol io ihe neanes)
Taka.

Reporting Poriod:
These financial stalements cover ona year starting from 0 July 2023 to 30 June 2024,

Comparative information has been disclosed in respect of the year Tor all numerical Flamation n
fhe fnancial slalements and also the namative and descriplive information where it is relevant fo
undersianding of the curent year's fnancial staiements. Figures for prior year have been re-
amanged, wheraves conskiensd necessary, (o ensure betior comparabiity with cument yoar




Rl HCLAIF RN fEH 1 [ THIE

| N5

The preparabon of fnancial | 18 in con y IFRS:s requires managemsant o make
judgments, estimates and assumplions that affect the applicable of accounting policies and the
mpoited amounts of assels. liabdities, income and expenses, and dSdosure reguinements for
cantingenl assets and liabilities during and at the dale of the financial stalements. Achual resull may
differ from 1haese esbmates. Eslimates and undarlying assumplions are resewed on an ongoing
bass. Rewsions of accounting estimates & recognized i the paricd In which the estimats is
peviged wn ary fulure years aMecied as reguired by IAS B “Accounting Policles. Changes in
#ocounting Estimates and Efmars.”

207  Matgriality and Aggreoation:
Each material ilem considered by managemenl as significant has been presented separalely in
financiad statements. Mo amourt has baen set off unless the ADN Eduserdces Limited has a legal
l‘iﬁ'ﬂtnﬂtnﬂlh&mi!-nndlnhnd!hlﬂﬂnmndm.ummdmmmmm
on a net basis only when permitted by the relevant accounting standards.

.08  Consistoncy:
In accondance with IFRS framework for the presentation of financial statoments together with 1AS-1
and |AS-B, ADN Edusenices Limited discloses s informaion consistently from one pesiod bo he
pit. VWil sslecting and apphing new acccuning policies, changes in accounling policies,
comection of emors, ihe amounl ifmled afe sccounted for and ceeclosed refroepecsivaly in
accordance with the roguiremant of WAS-8, However, for changes n the acoaunling eslimales the
related amaunt is recogrized prospectivaly in the curment periad and in the nexd period or periods.

200 Statement of Cash Flows:
185 1 reguires that a complaie set of financial stabement requines preparalion of slatement of Chah
fows. The siadement of cash fiows s propared as | provides infommation aboul cash Nows of he
enterprise which ts usedul in providing users of financial stalemends with the information about abilty
of the enismpriss to generale cash and ulilization of those cash,

Statement of cash Nows has been prepared under the indirect method for the year end, dassified by

operating, investing and financing activities as prescribed in paragraph 10 and 18{a) of 1AS 7
Statement of Cash Flows.

240 Statement of Changes in Equity:
The Statement of Changes in Eguily refects information about the incresse or decrease in net
assels of wealih The siaiement alse shows Bem-wise movement along with the descripbon of
changes from the end of last year 1o the end of current year,

211 Propprty, Plant and Equipment:
a) Regoqnition and measurgment;

in pursuant o 1AS 18: "Propery, Plant and Equipment”, the cosi of an item of property, pland and
equipmant is recognized as an assel il and only if il is probable that futse oconcmic benafits
assaciaied with the item will Bow o the entiy, and the cosl of the ilem can bb measured reliably.

Property, Plant & Equipment hawe been sceounded lor 81 cost bess accumulated depreciation. Cost
includes expendiure that is directly attribulalble to the acquisition of the bems,

Depreciation is charged using the Toliowing rates on the Property, Flant & Equipmant.

Assets Category 20232024 20232023
Computer & Accessories 20% 20°%
Cifice Equipmsen 20% 20%
Fumniture & Equipment 10% 10%
Yehecie 10% 10%
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dj Gain or Logs on Disposal:
An item of ploperty. plant and equipment s de-recogniced upon disposal of when no future
goonoimic benefils are eapecied from ils use of disposal, Any gain or loss on de-recognilion of an
fem of proparty, plant and equipment is determined a3 the difference Detwean The et disposal
piocesds and the camying amount of the assat and is recognized as profil or loss. However
Disposal occurned during fhe yead bul e i no gain of loss for the disposal

#) Compliance of VAT and TAX:;
ADN Bduservices Limited complies all rules and regulatons of ITA-2023 and VAT and
supplemantary Acl, 2012

fj Assets Obtained under Lease Agreamants:
IFRS 16 “Loasas” has come info force on 1 January 2019, ADN Eduservices Limited applied IFRS
16 in its financial statemants wsng madified retraspociive approach where the company measwed
the lease Habiity al the present value of the remaining lease payments, discownted it using the
inciementsl bofrowang rate at the date of inial application, and recognized a right-of-use assel al
the date of initial application on a lease by lease basis. Due 1o applying modified retrospective effect.
prir year resulls have not besn restaled.

Right-al-use assets (ROU}

The ADN Eduservices Limied recognizes right-ol-use assats ai the daie of initial application of IFRS
16, The ROU assed |8 inftially measured at cost af the amount of the lease liabilty plus any inital
dinect cosis incurred by the lessse and depreciated using the siraghl line methods from the
commencament date to tha aarber of the end of the useful lde of the right of use assel o the end of
tha lease ferm. The ROU assets are presented under Right of use of Assats (Nabe &),

Lease Liability

Lease Liabilty at the commencement date of lease: the ADN Edusendces Liméed recognizes leass
Kabilities measured al the present value of the lsase paymenis 1o ba made over tha lease lerm using
incremantal borrowing rate al the dale of initial application. Leasa liability is measured by increasing
the carmying amaunt 10 reflect interest on the iease lability, reducing the camying amount to reflect
tha lease payments.

As per IFRS 16: “Loases”, summary of lease refaled information |5 provided in the lable balow

Summary of IFRS 18:

Particulars A ROU Assets | Lease Liability
ing Balance - =
Addition 14 176 833 14,245 T4l

D-prmnmlm:r 101) 1456011
md‘%tm Payment w‘ﬁ,wgn 13,123 180)|
E@ Balance (Motes 6.00 & iﬁi 11,780 832 12,578,574 |

212 ] il
mmmmﬂmm&dmfmamwmmmsmm
Accounts Receiwable are measured at the criging! invoics amount. Accounts Receivables arg stated
rat of allewance for doubthd if any debls  any ofher receivables comprise othed non-rade
receivablos and interast receivables, Other receivables are stated nat of provision for doubtul debls,

213

Aﬁunmnmkﬂhalhmmadumsl After inisial recognition, advance are camied at cosl less
doduction, adjusiment or charges 10 olher account heads. Deposits ane measuied ol paymean value
Prepaymaents ane infially measured at cost. After indial recogndlion prepayments arg carmied al cosl
less charges bo Statement of Profil of Lote and Ciher Comprehansive InCome
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214 Gash & Cash Equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents compiise cash balances and call deposils with matwity of Mrea months
or less am Ihe dale of acquisiion that are subject 1o an insignificant rsk of changes in fheir Ta
value, and ane used by the company in the managamant of its shorl term commitments.

218

mmwwmmmmmmnmm? “Provision, Contingent Liabiktes
and Conlingen Assets™, requires manageman to make eslimates and assumplions thal affect the
reported amounts of revenues and expentes, sesats and liabilities. and the disclodure reguinements
for contngent assels and liabiiiies durng and @ the dale of the Bnancial statements. Due 1o the
inherant uncestainty involved in making estimates, actual resull reported could differ from those
gslimates. All provisions ane recogniced by making the best estmate of the amounts,

218  Trade & Other Pavables:
Trade & othes payables for goods and sendces recesved have been accounted for thase goods and
sarvices for which no paymaent has been made. Payables are nolt inlerast baaring and are stated ot
217 Eimancial Instruments
Mon-serivative financial msiremants comprise accounts and cbher recetvables, cash and cash
equivalents, boroeangs and other payables are shown al ransaction Sosl.

z.18 Income Tax Expemses:

incoma Tax Expenses comprise curment and defermed 18xas. Income [ax expenss i@ recognized =
the Stabement of Profit or Loss and Other Compeehenaiie Income except 1o the exbend | nelates bo
Boms recogrized deectly in equity, in which case il i recognized in equily.

a) Curront Tax:

Currerl Tax i e lax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rales as applicable for
i FEEpactiee concon year as per Income Tax Act [FTA) 2023, and any adjstment 1o [ax payable n
raspect of previous years, Currerl Tax has been calculaled on the basis of add and back of som
inadmissible and admissible expenses respectvely as per ITA 2023, Tha lax rate used for the
reporting pediod (Excepl revenue aamed from axpor service) i as Tolows:

Yoar: Tax rato:
2023-2024 25 00%
20222023 27 50%

Dedesred tax ks recognized in accardance with the provision of 1A5-12. Deferned 1ax afises due 1o
wemparary diference deductbie or taxable for the events of iransactions recognized in the sialement
of comprehensive income. A lemporarny difforence is the difference betwean the tax base of an assod
or liahility and its carrying amaount! reported amaunt in the financial statemant. Deferred tax asset or
liability ks the amourd of incoma [ax payabés or recoverable in future paricdiz) recognized in the
currant period. The deferred tax asset! income o liabdity! expanse does nol creale a legal labaty/
recoverability 1o and from the income tax authority. This is recognized for book purpose &s
equalzation item preserded in the financial statemants 1o show the retained 8amings as @ consisbent
reflection of the business evenls. The nature and amount of @ change as delemed fax in an
accounting estimate that has an effect in e cument perod of is expecied 1o have an affect in fulure

2.19 | [

&) Authorized Capital:
Auihorized capfipl B the maximum amownt of share capilad that the Company is sulhorized by ils
Mamorandum of Assocation and ficles of Associalion 1o Bsua to shareholders
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b} Paid-up Cagital;
Paid-up Capital represents total amount of shareholders cagital that has been pasd in full by the
ordinary shareholders. Holders of ordinary shares are enlithed 1o recaive dvidands as declared from
fime o e and ane entited 1o vale al shareholder's meelings. In the avent of a winding-up of the
company, ordinary sharehoiders rank after all cther shareholders and crediors and are fully entiled
o any residual proceeds of liquidation.

¢} Share Premium;
The share premium represents the excess amount received by the Company from its shareholders
over the nominalipar value of &5 share. The amount of share pramium may be ulilized as per ihe
provision of Section 57 of The Companses Act, 1994,

d) Retained Earnings:
The surplus amount afler appropeiation of profit is kept in Retaingéd Earmings.

i e N A REN, Med AL rgsgntation

The Company has applied IFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers™ for annual reporting
periods beginning on of after 01 January 2018. IFRS 15 provides a ngle, principles-based
approach 1o the recogaition of revenue from all contracts with customers. It focuses on the
identification of performance cbigalions in 8 contract and requires revenue 1o be recognized when
of @% thase performance oiigations ane satsfied,

“The new standard s based on the principle thal revenue is recognized when control of goods or
services transfers 10 @ cusiomer, 5o the concepd of controd replaces the existing concepl of risks and
rewards. This standard combines, enhances and replaces specific guidance on recognizing revenus
with a single standard. A new frve-slep process musl be applied before revenue from contract with
customer can be recognized:

i1, Identify the contracts with cusiomis;

ii). Identify the separale perofmance sbbgation;

iiiy. Diefesmena the transaciion prica of the contract,

iv). Allocate the transaction price to each of the separate performance obligations; and

¥). Recognize the revenus as each performance obligation is satisfied

Revenue from rendering services include the follcwing:;
1. IT Training Cenier Service
2. [T Prafessional Service

301 Related Party Disclosure;

Parlies are considered 1o be ralaled if one parly has the abilty, directly or indirectly, 1o conirgl the
other pany or exercise significant inflence over the other pary in making financial and cperating
deciaions. Paries are also considered o be relaled if they are subject 1o common contral of
common significant influence. Related party transaction is a transfer of resources, sensces, or
obligations. between relaled pamies, regardiess of whether a price is charged as per 1AS 24 ‘Related
Parly Disciosures' Details of the related pany iransactions have bpan dischosed in nole 24,

FARLLELS, ALERY L L= L= E LS
a) Statement of Financial Position
b Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Incoms
¢) Satement of Changes in Equity
o) Statement of Cash Flows; and
#) Nedes, comprising a summary of Matirial accounting policies and cthes explanatory information.

LEE T g caita Doy S i FlRl=i-H

The company |8 also reguired to comply with the following majer legal provisions in addaion to The
Companies Acl, 1994 and ofher appicable laws and regulations but not limited ta:
i} Incorme Tax Act (ITA) 2023

iiy The Valwe Added Tax Act, 2012 & Rules, 2016

ity The Cusloms Acl, 1968

iv) Bangladesh Labour A, 2006 (Amended in 2013)
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S WETNES TR e MEPOTTng J=erioe

As par 145 <10 "Events afler the Reparling Period” are those events favorable and unfavorable, that
ool batween the and of the rapeting year and the date when the Financial Statemenls ane
authorized for issud, Two bypes of event can be idantifed:

*Those thal provide evidence of condtions that exisied at the end of the reponing period (adjusting
events afler the reporting pericd); and

*Those that are indicative of conditions that arose afer the reponing pericd (non-adjusting events
aftar the raporting perad),

Theara is no events afier the reponing penod for ihis fmancial yeas.

reconciled 8 regular inlervals to keep the unreconciled balances within non-material level

400 Gengral
i} Previous year's figures hawve been rearranged, whenever considered necessary to confirm (o the
cumant year's preseniation.
i) Figuras appearing in the financial stalaments have bean rounded off 1o the neares! Taka.
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Hate Particulers 30 June 2024 3 Juna 2023
500 Property, Plant and Equipment | 10449108 || 7,351,422 |
Details Shown In Arneure-A | 10,449,198 7,351,422
E.00 Right of Use Assets
Opaning Balance - .
Add: Addsion during the yaar 14,176,633 =
14,178,933 -
Less: Accumulaied Deprecalion {&,296,101) .
11,760,832 -
7.00 Trade & Others Receivables 2,720,385 | 561,269 |
2,720,385 581,269
8.00 Advance, Deposit & Prepayments
Advance Income Tax 414 530 274,138
Advance against Expansas Mobe 8,10 1,885,754 1,163,568
2,300,584 1,437,737
Duposit
#dvance for Office Rent 645,000 645, 000
Parformance Guaranies 1,675,000 1.875.000
2,320,000 2,320,000
4,670,584 1,787,737
810 Advance against Expenses
Advance Against PO 1,868,800 1,113,383
Advance 1o Employses 15,854 50215
1,888,784 1,163,598
ADM Diginet Limited | 8,50z 367 || 1,800,000 |
9,582,367 1,500,000
o
16,080 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash ai Barik Mote 10.10 1,041,860 2,492,789
Cash in Hand 2T 20 86,013
1,369.780 2,578,802
10,10 Cash at Bank
Dutch-Bangla Bank Limied (A0C-1711100013561) 1,021,258
Bank Asta Limied ASC0E333000865) 8443
Eank Asia Limited (AC-DES330008ET) 12,118
1,041,800




Amaunt in taka

Hote Particulars 30 June 2024 30 June 2023
11.00  Share Capital
Authedized Share Capital
5,000,000 ordinary shares of Tk 10 each 50,000,000 $0,000,000
lsued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Capital
ADM Tedeoom Limsed 8,000,000 .
Asif Mahimood 800,000 B00,000
Aref Mahmood 100,000 100,000
Tapan Kanbi Sarkar . 100,000
ADM DigilNet Limited 100, D03 -
9,000,000 1,000,000
12.00 Retained Earnings
Opening Balanca (42,521,326 (42,917,114}
Add: Mel ProfitLoss for the year 510,112 385,788
(42,011,214) [42,521,326)
13,00 Lease Liability
Cpening =
Addition during the yaar 14,245 743
Finance costs during the year 1,456,011 3
16,701,754 .
Less: Payments during the year {3,123, 180) .
Closing liability 12,578,574 =
1310 Leaso Liability _
Lease Liability-Cument 1,860,062 -
Lease Liability-Maon Curnant 10,718,482 -
12,578,574 -
14.00 Daferrod tax
Carrying ameunt 10,449,158
Tax base 10,327,218 .
TaxableiDeductible) lemporary difference ) 121,980 .
Deferred tax liability{Assats) 33545 =
1500 Inter-Company Loan
ADN Telecom Lid. [ - | 40,563 650 |
0583550
16.00 Accounts and Others Payables
Trade Payalbile 2,536,333 2,002,340
Cither Payable 8,000,000 325,000
Intoras! Payable 16, 368419 13,004,804
Advance received from Cuslomers - 1,088 462

26,902,752 16,420,708
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. Amount In aka
Haote Particulors 30 June 2024 0 June 2023

17.00  Liability lor Expansos

Audit Foes 63,250 63,250
Salary & Allowance 178,220 35,500
LHilstios 79,471 -
IT Professional Expenses 789,811 -
‘Withhoiding VAT & Tax 504,107 33,308
Provetsson for income Tax 414,830 274 139
:.m,qg 685,197

IEA ADNTEL
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Amount in taka

01 July 2023 04 July 2022
Holn Particulers o to
A0 June 2024 30 Juno 2023
1800  Revenue -
IT Training Center Seracs 10,455 510 6,220 868
IT Professional Senvica 2,713,283 2,853 000
13,168,773 £,883.666
18,00 Costof Bervices
IT Professional Expanses 250,085 2,032,011
IT Trainirsg Cenbér Exparnsas 438 308 1,581,760
Salary & Allcwancs 1,082,970 585,660
Renl - 1,338 TES
Litifity 508,011 534 G55
Deprecislion on ROU 23946101 -
Copreciation 2,208,740 1,089 45T
6,912,196 7,222,332
2000 Goneral and Administrative Exponses
Lile Imsurance Framium 1,004 2.785
Postage & Courler 11,580 40,110
Oiffice supphes & Others 65118 168,240
Office Mainlenancs 40,788 142 260
Eniestalnment 6,504 245
Telephone & Mobile T.890 5,056
Fuel & Lubricam 17,048 13047
Professional Fea 230,000 -
Licenss & Renevwal foa £2. 72 20,933
Bank Charges 12,082 5,140
Audit Fees £3,250 63,250
480,568 453,233
21.00 Financial Expenses
Inlerast on Loase Liabdity 145601 -
Irler-Company Inlenes] 3,381,513 | 528,184
4817524 528 184
2200 Incorme Tax Expenses )
Current Year Income Tax | 414,830 || 274,138 |
4&' ZT4139
Current Year Income Tax
a On Profit bafore Tax (27 .5%) D53 584 164,230
b Minimaum Tax On Revanue {0.6%) 78,013 53,302
€. Advance Income Tax 414 B30 27410
Higher of a.b & ¢ 414,830 274138
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Amount in taka
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01 July 2023 01 July 2022
Hobs Particulors o 1o
B 30 June 2024 30 June 2023
23.00 Cash Flow from Cperating Activities
Cash recetved from Customers 10,242 524 8,712,177
Cash paid 1o suppliers and others (5,185, 322)| {7.271,978)|
Paid for operating expeses and oihars (401,095) {341,167)
Finance axpensa paid (12,982) (5,140
4,655,144 1,003,892
24.00 FRelated Party Disclosures:

Dusirig the year Ihe Company camed oul 8 number of transactions with related parties in the normal
course of busingss and on an arm's lenglh basis. The nama of related parlies, natung of transalions.
iheir total value and closing balances have been sai oul in accordance with the provisions of 1AS 24

“Refated Pary Disclosura™ AT
= . Tolal Transaction FY
"‘"p_""f'if Naturoof | S¥%0C0%% | oa304 || Balancesson
S - P
Party Transaction 01.07.2023 | Addition aymaent/ 30.08. 2024
ADN Diginat  [intecompany ;
|Limted T 5 1,800,000 9.268.017 1,573.850 B 562 38T
Tatal L 1,900,000 9,266,017 1,573,650 8,542 36T
(ADHN Telecom  [Inbecompany : d i
pracompent | s0ss3sso 0,563,650
Total 40,563,650 - 40,563,650 -
Tatal 42,483,850 | 9,266,017 41137.3“_ 8,592 367
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The Auditor’s Report and
The Audited Financial Statements
for the year ended on 30 June 2024




MOLLAH QUADIR YUSUF & CO.

Chartered Accountant

il

&
@

INDEPEMDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
of
My Tel Limited
Raport on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qpinkan

We have audited the financial stalements of My Tel Limited whesh comprise the stabement of financial positson as
at 30 Jume, 2024, and statemenl of profd or loss and other comprehendive mcome, statement of changes in
aquity, stalement of cash Mows for the year then ended, and notes to the Bnancial staleménts, including a
surnmary of sgnificant accounting policies,

I our opirion, the accompanying financial statements give & true and fair view of the financial position of the
compary as on 30 Jume 2024, and of &5 financial parformance and #is cash Nows for the year then endad in
accordance with Infernatianal Finansial Reparting Standands (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our aud in accordancos wilth Internalional Standards on Audting (I5As). Our responsibiitees under
ihose standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibiiies for the audit of the financial slatements
sechion of our repodt. We ae independent audilcr of tha company in accordance with the Infernaticnal Ethics
Standards Board for Accountanls' Code of Ethica for Prolessssnal Accounlants together with tha athical
reguirements thal are relevant to our awdit of the financial stalements i Bangladeah and wa have uflled our
other elfical resporsibiliies in accordance with thase elhecal mquiemants. We belisve the audit evidence that we
have obiained is sufficieni and appropriate o provide & basis for our opinion

Rosponsibifities of Management and These Changed with Governance for the Financial Statements

Managemeni i responsible for ihe preparation of financial siatements that ghye a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs, and for such inlemal corrol a8 managemen! delenmings is necassary 1o enable the praparabon of
firamcial statemans that are free from mabedal misslatement, whether due 10 frsud of efmor.

In preparing the fnancial statements, managemen! is responsible for assessing the Company’s abikly bo conlinue
4% & oing concem, disclosing, a3 spplicable, mattars redated 1o gaing concerm and using the going concem bass
of accocunting unless mansgemenl either intends 1o Bquidabe the Company of 1o cease aperabons. or has no
reglistc altemative but to do so.

Thase charged with governance are responsible for ovesseeing the Company’s financial reporling process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Siatements

Du objectroes ane 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as & whola are free
from maderial misstatement, whather due o fraud or emor and 1o issue an awditor's repedt that mchedes our oginicn
Reasonable assurance is a high level of asswance, bul B rol 8 guaranies thal an sul! conducted in accordance
with I5As will always detect a material misstalement when i euists. Misstadenents can anse from fravd of ermor
and are eonsidered matedal if, individually o in the aggregale, they could easonably be axpacted 1o influence the
econamic decisions of usens {aken on tha basis of these inancial statemants.

As panl of an sudil in sccordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maini@in professional
skaglicism throughout the audil. We also:

= Igantify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the fnancial statemenls. whether dus fo fraud o
eror. design and perform audil procedures responsive to those risks, and oblain audd evidence that is
sulfient @nd appropriale to provide a basis for cur opinion. The sk of nol debecling 8 maledisl
misstaternend resulting from fraud |8 higher than for one resulting from emor, as fraud may inveive collusion,
fargery. intentional amissions, méssepreseniations, of the overrite of imemal controd

Mokakhali Office ; Flat @ C-4, Aneco Trade Centre (4th Floor) House W F-63, Basido Bon Bhaban [Ameod) Mohakhali, Dhala-1212.
Call ;01T 16-551438, 01919-591438, E-mail : alim@mgycs com, mayc20198pmml.com, Web | wwa mipyca.com
Hoad Officr © House # B3F (3rd Floor) Dolphin Goli, Lake Cincus Katabagan, Dhanmond], Dhaka- 1205, Bangladesh
Calt BIATE-54T 366, 01300-501438, D1TT0-TOSES, 01T31.1 19555, Bl infoffmayca com, mdy_chiliyahon. oo, WD - Wit MgyDs om
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% Oibtain an understanding of intamal control redavant 1o the audt in order b design audd procedured (hal
are approgpriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpese of axpressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the company’s imesmal condrol,

# Evaluain the appropriateness of accounting policies used and The reasonabloness of accounting
esfimaies and related disclosuwes mads by Management

# Conclude on the appropriatenass of management's use of ihe going concem basis of acoounbing and,
basad an the pudd evidence obtained, whether & material uncertainty exisis relaled fo events of conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability 1o confinue as & gong cancern. If we conchlude
that a malerial uncertainty exists. we are required 1o draw attention in our auditor's repon 1o the related
disclosures In the financial stalements of, ¥ such disclosures are inadequate, to modily our opirian. Our
candusions are based on the audit evidence oblaned up 1o the dabe of our audior's repor. However,
fubure events of condilions may cause the Company 1o cease io conlinue 85 A goINg CONCEM.

» Evalusts tha overall pressntation, siruciure and conberd of the Company” financlal stalements, including
the disclosunes, and whather the financial statements reprasant the undetlying transactions and evens in a

Wa communicabe wilh those charged wilh governanca regarding, among other matlers. the planned scope and
timing of tha audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
sdentify during our awdil.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I accordance with the Companies Act, 1964 | we also repor the following:

a) e have obitaned all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowiedge and belie! ware
mecessary for the purposes of our audil and made due verfication thensod,

b} in cur opinign, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as i
appeaned from cur examination of these Books. ard

¢l the siatements of inanclal position and statemends of profit or loss and oher comprehansive income deal
wilh by The report are in agreemant with the books of account,

Mollah Quadir Yusuf & Co.
Chamered Accouniants
Date: 07 Septemibar, 2024 Mohammaed Abdul Alim FCA, CISA
Place: Dhaka Parinar

Enrolment noc 1532
OVGC: 240923153 2A580T062




My Tel Limited
Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2024

Arnounis In Taka

Particulars Holes 30 June, 2024 30 June, 2023
Assels:
Non.Current assets: | - | - |
Currént Asasls: B4, 66T 487 69,723,326
Loan, Advances, Deposits and Prépaymians 300 B4 542 021 609,638 925
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4.00 25,486 83,400
Total Assets B4 BET 48T 69,723,326
Equity & Liabilities:
Equity: 24,669,017 26,914,018
Share Capilal 504 30,000,000 30,000,000
Rataingd Eamings (5,330,983) (3085 582)
Current Liabilities; 58,993,470 42,803,208
Loan from Shameholders 6,00 57,783 404 42 761,308
Liabidites Tor expanses T.00 2,235,068 48,000
Total Equity and Liabilities 84,667 45T 649,723,326

— ——

The annexed nobe forms ahe an inegral pa of thesa financial statements
Director My Diirecior
Sigmed in term of our separabe rapodt of even dale annexed,
Mollah Quadir Yusuf & Co.
Chaftersd Accountants

Date: 07 Septermber, 2024 Mohammed Abdul Allm FCA, CISA
Flace: Dhaka Partnar

Enfolment Number-1532
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My Tel Limited

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Incoma
For this year ended 30 Juna 7034

— Amourts In Taka

01 Jusly 2023 o1 July 26022
Particulars Hotins to 1]

30 June 2024 30 Jupne 2023
Rgvenuae 5 -
Cosl of Servicas r -
Gross Profit - =
Gengral Adminsgirative Expensas B.00 (2240 S} (54.470)
ProfitjLess) from Operation (2.240,965) [84.470)
Financial Expénses 8.00 {4.035) (1,820
et ProfitijLoss) Before Tax (2,245,001) (66.290)
Tax Expanses M z
Het Profit[Loss) After Tax [2.245,001) {56, 280)

The annexed nole forms are an integral pan of these financial statemants.

LL-‘Ll 1N

Direcior

i

Managing Director e

Signed in berm of pur separate report of gven dale annexed,

Date: OF September, 2024
Placa: Chaka

Mollah Quadir Yusuf & Co.
Chanered Accountants

Mohammed Abdul Alim FCA, CISA

Parinar
Enrgiman Mumber-1532




My Tel Limited
Statement of Changes In Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2024

c Amounts in Taka
Particulars Share Capital  Retained Earming Total
Balance as on 01 July, 2023 30,000,000 (3,085,983} 26,914,018
Mt FrofitiLoss) for i year - [2.245,001) [2,245,001)
Balance as on 30 June 2024 30,000,000 (5,330,983} 4,669,017
Balance as on 30 June 2023 30,000,000 (3,085,982} 26,914,018

Director

T S
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My Tel Limited
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 20 June 2024

01 July 2023 01 July 2022

Particukars ] 1o
30 June 2024 30 Jume 2033
& Cash Flows from operating activities (15,060,031) 2878110
Med Profif [ Loss before fax (2,245,001} | {66, 280)
Deprasciation Duing 1he Year - -
12,245,001) (6, 280)
Changes of Working Capital
Increase(Decrease] in Loan, Advances, Deposits and Prepayments (15,002.098) 3,000,000
IncreasaDeciaase) in Lisbilties for expansas 2,157 066 | (55, 600)
(12,815,030) 2,844,400
B. Cash flew from investing activitles - -
Propery. Plant and Equipment’s | - |l . ]
C. Cash flow from financing activities 15,002,096 (3,000,000
Loan from Shareholders [ 15002005 || {3.000,000)|
D. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C | ( {57,935 | {121,890
E. Opening balance cash and cash equivalents. | s34 || 208291 |
F. Closing Balance Cash and Cash oquivalents, 25,466 83,401
\ L(.
Director Managing Director




My Tel Limited
MHobes io the Financial Statements
Az at & For the year ended June 30, 2034

100 Company and its activities

a) g -
My Tal Limied | harsinafior reforred 1o as “the Company™) was incomporabed &8 a private Limited by
Shares dated 5th December 2071 in Bangladesh vide regisiration no-C-BT51211 wnder fhe
Companses Act, 1994 with the Registral of Joinl Slock Companies and Finms.

Addrgss of Registored Office of Reporting Entities.

This regisiered sddress of ihe company i Fed Crescant Concord Tower (19th floor), 17 Mohakhali
CiA. Dhaka-1212, Dhaka,

b) Nature of Business;

To establish, maintain, cperale and provide ICT (Information Communicalion Technology] and
Talecommunication Services, both locally and intemationally, Including: Gatoway Services. such as,
1GW {Intermational Galeway) and 135 (Iremational Infernel Gabeway

2.00 AbEr LRI = Gl | P riparabic

‘pni-:ha il oul Delow, mm. with IFRSs, hawve been applied consstently o all
pavicgds presenied n these inancial statements, and have baen applied consigtenlly by the company,

0 Ziatement of CompRANGE:

These financial siatements of My Tol Limied have been prepared on a going concem basis unoer
histonical cost convention in accordance with IFRSs. The disclosures of information are made in
accordance with the requiremsants of the Companies Act 1994 and tha financial stabemenis have been
prapared in @ccordance with 145-1 using the aconsal basis of accounting, In the preparation of These
financial sisfements, mansgement used available nformaton to make uadgments, astimate and
assumphion thal affect the applicalion of accounting policies and tha repored amounts of assets and
habilities, income and expendes. Actual resiits may difler from those estimates,

a) Legal Compliance:
The financial statements have bean prepared and the disclosunas of information mads i accordance
wilh Bhe reguirements of The Companies Act 1894, InMernational Accounting Standards {1AS) and
internaticnal Financial Reporing Standards (IFRS),

b) Compllance with International Financial Reporting Stand

LAS Titha — Remarks
185 1 Presentation of Financial Statements Croenphed
1AS T Satement of Cash Flows Complied
a5 @ Accounling Policies, Changes in Accountng Estimabes and Enors Compliad
WS 10 |Events afier the Reporting Period LY
AS 12 incoma Taxes Compled
W5 16  |Property, Plant and Equipmant HiA
A5 18 |Employee Benefts ]

Accourling for Govemmenl Grans and Disclosure of Govemment

WAB;20 Assistance PoA
A5 24 The Effecls of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates M
WS I3 |Bormowing Cosls B4
A5 24 Redated Pay Disclosures Complisd
s Accounting and Repariing by Retirement Benafd Plans HiA
LAS T Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements A
A5 F8 Imysstments in Associabes and Jaind Yantures [Ehe
LAS 31 Interasts in Joint Venhues MiA

ADNTEL
Annual Report 2024



IE& ADNTEL
Annual Report 2024

.02

.04

205

2.06

A5 32 |Financial instraments. Prasentation Complied
A5 33 Eamings par Shara MiA
IAS 34 Infein Fingncial Repomng MiA
1AS 38 impairmant of Assats it
IAS 37 |Provisions. Conlingent Liabsliies and Confingen! Assals Camphed
A5 38 Inangifie Assets i,
A5 38 Fanancial Instrumenls: Recagniton and Measwament Complied
IAS &0 invasiment Propesty MR
IAS 41 griculiure LT
IFRS 1 First Tima Adoplion A
IFRS 2  |Share Based Payment A
IFRS3  |Business Combinations KA
IFRS 4 Insurance Conbracls A
IFRS 5 Mon-Curmend Asseds Held for Sade and Discontinued Operations LY
IFRS & Explorabon for and Evaluaton of Minaral Resowces BiA
IFRS T  |Financial Instruments : Disclosures Compled
IFRS & Cperaling Segments 1
IFRS 10 Consalidaled Financial Stalements [ T
IFRS 11 Lloint Arrangemanks Py
IFRS 12 |Discloswre of nterests in Other Entities Compligd
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measuremenl Complied
IFRS 14 [Regutatory Deleral Accounts )
IFRS 15  |Rewvenus fhom condracts with cusiomers 1)
IFRS 16 |Leases IR,
IFRS 17 |insurance condract ~ )

The Compary has adequate resources b continue operation for foresesable fulure and Rencs, Fha
financial siafements have been prépaned on going concam basis. AS per managemani assessmant
thera are nd materal uncertainkias related to events of conditions which may cast significant doubt
upan the Company's ability bo continue as a gaing concern.

ltems included in these financial statements are moaswed usng the currency of the primary
BLONCMEC gnvircnment i which the company operales (The funtlional currency’). Thess financial
statements are presented in Bangladeshi Taka (TakaTk /BDT) which & alsa (he functional CUTEnCY
¢! the company. The amounts in these financial stalaments have been raunded off o the nearest
Taka

These financial stataments cover one year staning fram July 01, 2023 o June 30, 2024,

understanding of the current year's financial statements. Figures for prior year have beon re-amangad,
wherevar considerad necessary, 10 ensure betier comparability with cunmen year

HISE e O S b g Lilalini g

The preparation of fnancial stalements in camity with IFRS4 requites management 10 make
jggments, estimates and assumplions that affect the applicable of accounting policies and tha
reponied amounds of assels, labilities, income and expenses, and disclosure requemants for
contingent assats and kabdities during and at the date of the financial statements. Actual result may
diffar from these estimales. Estimales and underying assumptions are reviewnd on an ongoing basis.
Revisions of accounting eslimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised in any
future years affected as required by IAS 8. "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
mnd Enrars, ™




.07 Materiality and Sgqreqatian
Each material lem consdered by management &s significan has been presented separately in
financial statements. Mo amourt has been se1 off unless the My Tel Limited  has a legal right fo set
o the armaunds and intends to setlle on net basis. Income and EXpENses are prosenind an a net basis
only when parmittad by tha relevant accounting slandasds

208  Consistency:

In accordance with IFRS framework for the presentation of financial statements iogether with LAS-1
and 1AS-8, My Tel Limited discioses (ts information consistently from one period to the next. While
selecteng and applying new accounting policies, changes in accounting policies. correction of errors,
fhe amounl invobeed are accounted for and disclosed retrospactively in accordance with 1he
requiremant of 1458 However, for changas in the accounding estimades the relsled amount is
recognized prospectively in the current period and in the next penod or periods

209 Statement of Cash Flows:
IAS 1 requires thal a complels sat of financial statamant requires preparation of statement od cash
fiaws. The statement of cash flows is prepared as i provides miormalion aboul cash fiows of the
entevprise which is usedul in providing users of financial statemenls with the infarmation about abilty
of tha antarpnss 10 generabe cash and ulilizaton af those cash,

Ziatement of cash flows has been prepared under the indinec! method for tha year end, clasedied by
operating, mwesting and financng activilies as prescribed In accordance wilh 1A% 7 Statement of
Cash Flows,

210 Statement of Changes in Equity:
The Siatement of Changes in Equily roflects mformation about the increass or decreass in ned assats
o wealth. The stalement alse shows ilem-wise movement along wilh the descriplion of changes from
the end of Last year 1o the end of current year.

291 Property, Plant and Equipment;

4) Recognition and measuremant:

In pursuant o |AS 16 “Propery. Flani and Equipmant”, the cost of an item of propery, plan? and
equipment is recognized as an assel i, and only if it is probable thal fulure ecantic Denefis
associaled with the item will flow 1o the enbty, and ihe cost of the item can be measured
reliably There i no Property, Plant and Equipment tor the company Tor the year

212 Trade and Qiher Receivables:
Accouwils Recevable reprasant the amounts dus rom subscrbors and ofher parlies fof Sennces
Ascounts Recmeable are measured af the onginal invoice amount. Accounls Receivables a staled
not of alipwance for doubldl d any debls f ary oiher receivablies comprise ofher non-rade
;&mtﬂu and inlerest receivaties. Oiher receivables are stated nat of provisan lor deubthul dabds.
any,

213 Advance. Deposit & Prepayments:
Advances are mitally measured al cost AHer initial recognition, advance are carried al cosl |ess
deductan, adustment or charges 1o olher aceount heads, Deposds ane measured al payment value,
Prepayments ang initally measwed ol cost, After infial recognitian prepaymenis ane carried & cost
Iess charges to Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income,

214 Cagh & Cash Equivalents;
Cash and cash squivalents compaise cash balances and call deposits with maturity of three marihs o
bess from the date of Boguisition that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in thair far valse,
ang are used by the company in the managamant of its shorl lenm commitments
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The preparation of financial stafements in conformigy with 1A5-37; “Provision, Contingart Liabilities
and Contingenl Assels” reguires managemant bo make estmaies and assumplions that affect the
repodted amourts of revenues and expenses, assets and liabilties, and the diclasune requeemants
far comtingent assets and liabildies dunng and a She date of the financial statements. Due 10 the
inhiwend uncarainty invodved in making estimales, aciual resull reported could differ from those
eslimates. All provisions. ane recognized by making the best estimate of the amounts.

218 Irade & Other Pavables:
Trade & olser payables fof goods and services recanved have Deen accounled for those pocds and
servioes for which no payment has béen made. Payables are not enferest bearng and are siated at
thair normal value

247 Einancial Instrumants
Mon-genvativn financial insbruments compnsa sccounts and othed receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, bormowings and other payables ane shown al transaction cost

218 ngoms Tax Exponses:
Incosma Tax Expanses comprss curnend and dedorred taxes income lax sxpense is recognized in the
Saprement of Prodil or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income excepl 1o the axiént it relates lo ilems
recognized direcly in aquiy, inwhich case il is recognized in aguity,
al  Curreni Tax;
Cusrent Tax is the tax payable on the taxable ncoma bar he year, using las rales &8 applicalie lof the
redpeciive concEm yea a3 per Income Tax Add (ITA)] 2023, and any adjustmant to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

219 Capital | Shareholder's Equity:
a) Authorized Capital:

Authorized capital is the maximum amount of share capitsl that the Company is authorized by its

Memarandum of Association and Articles of ASSociation 1o issue 1o shareholders

b Paid-up Capital;
Faid-up Capital represenis 1olal amount of sharshokiers captal that has been paid in full by the
adinary sharsholders. Holders of ardinary shares are entitled 10 receive dividends as declared fom
tme 1o time ard are entitled to vole al sharehodder's meslings. In the event of a winding-up of the
comgany, ordnary shaneholders rank afier all other shareholkders and creditors and are Tully entified 1o
any reskiual proceeds of bguidaticn.

d‘] Eﬂ |ﬂ‘ld ll— mhn.
The surplus amount aMer approgeiation of profil is kept in Relained Eamngs.

.20 Ry Rec i 1 i Frgganiatio
The Caompany has appbed IFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Cusiomers” for annual reportag
perigds beginding on o afler 01 Janeary 2018, IFRS 15 provides & single. principles-based approach
ta the recognition of revenus from all contracis with cusbomens. I focuses on ihe identification of
parfommancs obligabong in a conbrac and requines revenue 0 be recognized whan of 83 Thass
parformance obligations are satisfied.

“Tha new standard 5 based on the prnciple that revenue is mecognized when coninal of goods of
services (Fanabers 10 8 cushomer, 50 the concepl of control replaces the existing concept of risks and
reveards. This siandard combines, enhances and replaces spocific guidance on recognizng revenus
wilh a single standard A new Fee-siep process musl be applied before mevenue from contract with
cusiomer can be recognized.

i1, Idenify the conlracts wilh customers;

iy, idenlity Ihe separate petormance obligation,

iy Determing heé Iransaction price of e conlrss!;

IR, PR, R AN Fraganialion
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), Allecats the transaction price 1o each of the separale pedformance obligations; and
w). Recognize the revenue as aach performance obligation Is satisfiad,
Thare is no Revenue recogmsed fof Ihe year.

.

F‘annsammnﬂdnﬂhhrﬁaudnrmepammm:m dwactly or indirecty, to control tha
ofher party of exercise significant influenca over the other party in making financial and operating
deciskons. Parties are also considenad 1o be retated if By afe subject b cOMMoN comrol of common
significant influence. Felabed party fransaction is a transfer of resources, services, or cbligations
babween related parties, regardless ol whether a prica s charged as per 145 I4 Relaled Party
Disclasures’ Details of the related paety ransactions have been dsclosed in nole 11,

x2

a) Em-mut -H Financial Position

bl Statemwent of Profil or Loss and Oiher Compreheansive Incoma

cj Statermeant of Changes in Equity

d} Statement of Cash Flows; and

&) Noles, comprising & summary of Matiial accounting policies and other explanatory information.

I3

Thampmrladmmqmndm camply wilh the fallowing major legal provisions in addition 10 The
Companies Act, 1554 and other appicable laws and regulations but nod limitad b

i) bncome Tax Act [ITA) 2023

iy The Valee Added Tax Act, 3012 & Rules, 2016

i The Cusloams Act, 1969

iv) Bangladesh Labour Act, 2008 (Amended n 2013)

.24  Events after the reporting period

As per |45 -10: "Events afler the Repoarting Period™ are those évens Tavorable and unfavorable, that
pocur batwean the end of the reporting year and the dale when the Financial Siaiements are
autharized for issue. Two types of evenl can be identiied:

*Thosa that provide evidence of conditions that existed ad the end of the meperting penod (adjusling
erveends afier the repading pericd); and

*Thaose thal are indicalive of conditions thal arose after tha reporting peviod (non-adjusling events
aftar tha raporting periad),

There is no events alier the reporting penod for this financial year.

2.25 af Book: : '
Bunuﬂlmmunﬂn ragmﬂh?uﬁuuvmlmﬂmkammhdutmwlumtaruulnmhmmha
unreconciled balances within non-matarial kval,

126 General
ip Prevsous years figures have been reamanged, whenaver considered necessary 1o confirm to thi
cument year's prasentation,

if} Figures appaaring in the financial staternents. have been rounded off 1o the nearest Taka.
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Amounts In Taka

Hotos Particulars 30 Juna, 2024 A0 June, 2023
3100 Leans, Advances, Deposits & Prepayments
Banglatel Lid. 45975 234 45975234
Jibandhara Scluticns Lid, 23,664 B 23664 601
Sinha Fashions Lid, 7.501 048
Madiar Garmeants Lid 7501 048 -
B4 642,021 65,630,825
400 Cash & Bank Balance
Cash im hand 53 800
Cash at Bank:
One Bank AC Mo, 001002663008 25 465 | 2‘9_5:11
25466 N 83,401
5.0 Share Capital
fa) Aiithorized: _
100,000,000 Ordinary Shares of @ Tk, 10 each 1,000,000,000 1,000, 000,000
30,000,000 30,000,000

Companies Shanehaolding position a8 &1 the balance sheat date was as follows:

ADM Te